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Date Remarks 

06/03/99 Application. 
06/03/99 Acknowledgement letter. 
06/17/99 Order granting request to deviate from 807 KAR 5:076, Section 1. 
07/09/99 MOTION TO INTERVENE (E BLACKFORD AG) 
07/16/99 Order granting motion of the Attorney General for full intervention. 
07/16/99 AG REQ FOR INFO (AG E BLACKFORD) 
07/19/99 REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON SERVICE LIST (ROBERT BROWN) 
08/03/99 Data Request Order, response due 8/17/99. 
08/05/99 AGREEMENT TO PROTECT RESPONSE TO AG REQ FOR INFO (ROBERT BROWN CITIPOWER LLC) 
08/09/99 MOTION TO PROTECT MATERIAL AS CONFIDENTIAL TO AG REQ FOR INFO (CITIPOWER HILL) 
08/26/99 MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO RESPOND TO PSC REQUEST FOR INFORMATIO (TERESA HILL 

08/30/99 Order granting ext. of time until 9/7/99 to respond to 8/3/99 Order. 
08/30/99 Letter granting 8/9/99 petition for conf. filed on behalf of Citipower, LLC. 
09/07/99 RESPONSE TO PSC ORDER OF AUGUST 13,99 (JANE BRYANT LAWSON CITIPOWER) 
09/07/99 RESPONSE TO ORDER OF AUGUST 3,99 FOR RATE FILING (JANE LAWSON CITIPOWER LLC) 
10/27/99 Data Request Order, response due 11/10/99. 
11/05/99 MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO RESPOND TO PSC REQ FOR INFORMATION (HILL,CITIPOWER 

11/17/99 Order granting motion; responses to 10/27 Order are now due 11/30/99. 
12/01/99 RESPONSE TO PSC ORDER OF OCT 27,99 (HEATHER MCCUE CITIPOWER) 
01/10/00 Letter to David Brock advising that PSC will set up a review of records soon. 
03/17/00 Order setting hearing 3/29/2000; staff report, comments due 3/27/2000. 
03/3 1/00 Final Order approving rates in Appendix A. 
05/16/00 Reminder letter sent 5/16, tariff due 5/26. 
05/16/00 MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME (TERESA HILL CITIPOWER) 
05/24/00 RESPONSE TO ORDER OF MARCH 3 1,OO APPROVING TARIFF (TERESA HILL CITIPOWER) 
05/3 1/00 Order granting ext. of time until 6/1/2000 to file revised tariffs. 
11/21/02 Final Order approving rates 

CITIPOWER LLC) 

LLC) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

1 BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

THE APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC FOR AN 
ADJUSTMENT OF RATES PURSUANT TO THE ) CASE NO. 
ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR ) 1999-00225 
SMALL UTILITIES ) 

) 

\ \  < r I  and 

NOTICE OF GAS COST ADJUSTMENT FILING OF ) CASE NO. 
CITIPOWER, LLC ) 2002-00390 

O R D E R ’  ’ 

On March 31 , 2000, the Commission issued its Order in Case No. 1999-00225 

approving a rate adjustment for Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”). The -rate schedule 

attached as Appendix A to that Order provided that the first .7 Mcf for residential and 

commercial customers and the first .8 Mcf for industrial and institutional customers be 

charged at a rate of $5.00 and the remaining Mcfs be charged at a volumetric rate. 

However, during a financial examination of Citipower’s records for the year ended 

December 31 , 2001 , Commission Staff determined that Citipower had interpreted that 

Order to mean that it should charge a flat rate per Mcf subject to a $5.00 minimum 

charge and that, since March 31, 2000, it has billed its customers accordingly. In order 

to evaluate the reasonableness of Citipower’s billing method, the Commission, on its 

own motion, hereby reopens Case No. 1999-00225. 

The Commission’s Order in that case provided for further rate adjustments in 

accordance with the provisions of Citipower’s gas cost adjustment (“GCA) clause. The 

Commission notes that on October 30, 2002 Citipower filed a GCA application 



proposing an effective date of December 1, 2002. That application has been docketed 

as Case No. 2002-00390. The Commission believes that the issues in Case Nos. 1999- 

00225 and 2002-00390 are inter-related and can be more efficiently and expeditiously 

addressed through one consolidated proceeding. 

Case No. 1999-00225 

A review of the record in Case No. 1999-00225 indicates that the text included in 

the appendix to the final Order was based on Citipower’s response to Item 11 of the 

Commission’s August 3, 1999 data request, wherein it explained why its billing analysis 

included no minimum bill revenue. In that response, Citipower included a schedule that 

represented the usage levels, by customer class, that resulted in customers receiving 

minimum bills. The schedule identified 0.0 to 0.7 Mcf as the level for residential and 

commercial customers and 0.0 to 0.8 Mcf as the level for industrial and institutional 

F customers. Based on this response, we understood Citipower to be .requesting a rate 

design that included a minimum bill for the first 0.7 or 0.8 Mcf, depending on customer 

class. However, it appears that Citipower‘s intention was to have a rate design 

consisting of a single volumetric rate as evidenced by the text of its response to that 

same request, which states that, “[tlhe small amount of gas used by customers 

receiving a minimum bill is not charged for, rather, the $5.00 recovers administrative 

costs incurred by Citipower in processing the monthly billing.” Consistent with that 

language, Citipower has been charging all Mcf sales at a flat rate, subject to a $5.00 

minimum charge. 

Review of the March 17, 2000 Staff Report issued in that case shows the 

revenue of $21 5,750 produced by Citipower’s proposed rates was calculated using 

Citipower’s single rate method of billing rather than the two-step volumetric rate design 

-2- 
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included in Appendix A of the Commission’s March 31, 2000 Order. Taking this into 

consideration, the Commission finds that Citipower’s method of billing and its calculation 

of customers’ bills are reasonable and that the text of Citipower’s rate tariffs should be 

modified to more clearly describe its billing method. The appropriate text changes are 

included in the Appendix to this Order. 

Case No. 2002-00390 1 $ 3  

Citipower proposes revised rates to pass on its expected change in gas costs to 

its customers. Its expected gas cost (“ECG”) is $3.0331 per Mcf, a decrease of 1.69 

cents per Mcf from the prior EGC of $3.05. Citipower set out an actual adjustment 

(“AA”) of 1.46 cents per Mcf to collect under-recovered gas costs from .May, June and 

July 2002. The total AA is $1.1282 per Mcf, which is an increase of 1.46 cents per Mcf 

from the previous total AA. This total AA includes a previous quarterly AA that will 

remain in effect for 36 months. These combined adjustments produce a gas cost 

adjustment of $4.1613 per Mcf, 0.23 cent Mcf less than the prior rate of $4.1636. 

Citipower did not propose a balance adjustment nor a refund adjustment. 

After reviewing the records in both cases and being otherwise sufficiently 

advised, the Commission finds that the rates set forth in the Appendix to this Order are 

fair, just, and reasonable, in the public interest, and should be approved for service 

rendered on and after December 1,2002. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that: 

1. The rates in the Appendix to this Order are fair, just, and reasonable, and 

are effective for service rendered on and after December 1 , 2002. 
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2. Within 20 days of the date of this Order, Citipower shall file with this 

Commission its revised tariffs setting out the rates and tariff language changes 

authorized herein. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 21 st day of November, 2002 - 
By the Commission 

ATTEST: 

Executive Director 



.' e 
APPENDIX 

APPENDIX TO AN ORDER OF THE KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION IN CONSOLIDATED CASE NOS. 2002-00390 AND 
1999-00225 DATED November 21 I 2002  

The following rates and charges are prescribed for the customers served by 

Citipower, LLC. All other rates and charges not specifically mentioned herein shall 
1 > \  

remain the same as those in effect under authority of this Commission prior to the 

effective date of this Order. 

Residential and Commercial 
Gas Cost 
Recovery 

Base Rate Rate Total 

Volumetric Rate $6.4592 $4.1613 $1 0.6205 

The volumetric rate will apply to all Mcfs sold, subject to a minimum bill of $5.00. In 
those cases where the usage applied to the volumetric rate results in an amount less 
than $5.00, the customer will be charged the $5.00 minimum. 

Industrial and Institutional 

Gas Cost 
Recovery 

Base Rate - Rate Total 

Volumetric Rate $5.4592 $4.1 6 1 3 $9.6205 

The volumetric rate will apply to all Mcfs sold, subject to a minimum bill of $5.00. In 
those cases where the usage applied to the volumetric rate results in an amount less 
than $5.00, the customer will be charged the $5.00 minimum. 
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May 31, 2000 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 1999-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission’s Order in 

the above case. 

Secretary of the Commission 
.. : 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 
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President 
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Corbin, KY 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
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P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
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Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

THE APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES PURSUANT ) CASE NO. 
TO THE ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING PROCEDURE ) 99-225 
FOR SMALL UTILITIES 1 

O R D E R  

Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”), on May 16, 2000, filed a motion requesting an 

extension of time to file its revised tariff rates. The Commission’s Order dated March 31 , 

2000 stated that this information was due within 30 days of the date of the Order. 

Citipower requests Commission approval to file its revised tariff rates on or before June 1 , 

2000. The Commission, being sufficiently advised, HEREBY ORDERS that this motion is 

granted and Citipower shall file its revised tariff rates on or before June 1 , 2000. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 31st day of May, 2000. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 

Executive Hrector 



BROWN & HILL, PLLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1005 S. MAIN STREET, SUITE 10 1 
CORBIN, KENTUCKY 4070 1 

ROBERT L. BROWN 111 
TERESA J. HILL 

May 15,2000 

Hon. Martin Huelsman 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
P.O. Box 615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

RE: Application of Citipower, LLC, Case No. 99-225 

Dear Mr. Huelsman: 

Enclosed please find a motion for an extension of time in order to file the 
revised tariff rates for Citipower, LLC, per the Commission’s Order dated March 31, 
2000. Although the motion asks for an extension through June 1, 2000, we are 
hopeful that the revision of tariffs can be filed well before that date. 

Should you have any questions or comments, please do not hesitate to 
contact me. 

Sincerely, / 

TJH:bh 
Enclosures 

Teresa J. Hill 



In the Matter of: 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE 

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, 1 
L. L. C. FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF ) 
RATES PURSUANT TO THE 1 
ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING ) 
PROCEDURE FOR SMALL UTILITIES ) CASE NO. 99-225 

MOTION FOR EXT ENSION OF TIM E 
TO FI LE REVISED TA RIFF OF CITIPOWER. LLC 

Comes now, Citipower, LLC, the Applicant in the above-styled matter, and 

respectfully requests an extension to June 1, 2000, to file its Revised Tariff in 

response to the March 31,2000, Order by the Kentucky Public Service Commission. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

BROWN @ILL, PLLC . 
1005 S. Main St., S-101 
Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

Attorney for Applicant, Citipower, LLC 
(606) 528-3073 

1 



CERTIFICATE 
,e 

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing was on the day of May, 2000, 
served by mailing the original and true and exact copies of same, all postage prepaid, 
addressed for delivery to: 

Hon. Martin Huelsman 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P.O. Box615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

- B R O y  HILL, PLLC 

2 



Paul E. Patton 
Governor 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 615 

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602 

(502) 564-3940 
Fax (502) 564-3460 

www.psc.state. ky.us 

Ronald B. McCloud, Secretary . 
Public Protection and 

Regulation Cabinet 

Helen HeltOn 
Executive Director 

Public Service Commission 

May 16,2000 

Mr. James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY 42653 

Re: Case No. 1999-225 
Filing Requirements 

Dear Mr. High: 

The Commission entered its final Order in this case on March 31 , 2000 approving 
certain tariff revisions. The Commission ordered CitiPower, L.L.C. to submit revised 
tariffs no later than April 30, 2000. To date we have not received these tariffs. They 
must be filed to fully comply with the Commission’s Order. Please submit two cover 
letters referencing the case number along with the original and three copies of the tariffs 
within ten days from the date of this letter. Blank tariff forms are enclosed for your 
convenience. 

If you have questions concerning completing the forms, please contact our Tariff 
Branch at (502) 564-3940, extension 252 or 263. 

Sincerely, 

flvm w 
Stephanie Bell 
Secretary of the Commission 

djw 
Enclosures 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

21 1 SOWER BOULEVARD 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 

FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 
(502) 564-3940 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

RE: Case No. 1 9 9 9 - 2 2 5  
CITIPOWER, L.L.C. 

I, Stephanie Bell, Secretary of the Public 
Service Commission, hereby certify that the enclosed attested 
copy of the Commission’s Order in the above case was 
served upon the following by U.S. Mail on March 31,  2 0 0 0 .  

See attached parties of record. 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY. 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY. 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY. 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Honorable Teresa J. Hill 
Counsel for Citipower, LLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin, KY. 40701 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

THE APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, ) 
LLC FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 1 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASE NO. 99-225 
RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR 1 
SMALL UTILITIES 1 

O R D E R  

On June 3, 1999, Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) applied for an adjustment of its 

rates for natural gas distribution services pursuant to 807 KAR 5:076, the Alternative 

Rate Adjustment Procedure for Small Utilities. Intervention was requested by and 

granted to the Office of the Attorney General (“AG”). 

Citipower’s proposed rates produced additional annual normalized revenue of 

$40,466, an increase of 23 percent over Commission Staffs (“Staff‘) normalized test 

period revenue from natural gas distribution services of $174,796. Staff conducted a 

limited review of Citipower’s test period financial records and issued its report on March 

17, 2000, which recommended that the Commission grant Citipower an annual revenue 

requirement from rates of $215,262, an increase of $40,466, or 23 percent, based on 

rates proposed by Citipower in its application. 

The Commission’s March 17, 2000 Order requested that all parties submit written 

comments on the Staff Report within 10 days from the date of the Order. Neither 

Citipower nor the AG filed a response to the Staff Report recommendations within the 
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prescribed comment period; therefore, the case has been submitted to the Commission 

for a decision. 

The Commission, after considering the evidence of record and being otherwise 

sufficiently advised, finds that: 

1. The recommendations and findings in the Staff Report are reasonable and 

should be adopted as the Commission’s findings and incorporated by reference as if 

fully set out herein. 

2. The rates in Appendix A will produce gross annual natural gas distribution 

service revenue of $215,750, including revenues from late payment fees, and are fair, 

just and reasonable rates for Citipower. 

3. In order to assure that Citipower complies with the various 

recommendations adopted herein in a timely manner, Citipower should file its plan for 

compliance with the recommendations contained in the Staff Report within 60 days from 

the issuance of this Order. 

4. Citipower should file quarterly reports 45 days after the end of each 

calendar quarter beginning with the period ending June 30, 2000, to allow the 

Commission to monitor its compliance with the requirements of this Order. At a 

minimum, these reports should include a comparative balance sheet, a detailed income 

statement, and a statement of cash flows. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that: 

1. The rates requested by Citipower and recommended by Staff, contained in 

Appendix A, are approved for service rendered by Citipower on and after the date of this 

Order. 
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2. Citipower shall comply with all instructions set out in Findings 3 and 4 as if 

they were individually so ordered. 

3. Within 30 days of the date of this Order, Citipower shall file with the 

Commission its revised tariffs setting out the rates approved herein, showing their 

effective date and that they were issued pursuant to this Order. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 31st day of m c h ,  2000. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 



APPENDIX A 

APPENDIX TO AN ORDER OF THE KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION IN CASE NO. 99-225 DATED MARCH 31 ,  2000 

The following rates and charges are prescribed for the customers in the area 

sewed by Citipower, LLC. All other rates and charges not specifically mentioned herein 

shall remain the same as those in effect under authority of this Commission prior to the 

effective date of this Order. 

Resid entia I 

Minimum Bill: 

Volumetric Rate 
0 - .7 MCf 

Commercial 

Minimum Bill: 

Volumetric Rate 
0 - .7 Mcf 

Institutional 

Minimum Bill: 

Volumetric Rate 
0 - .8 Mcf 

Industrial 

Minimum Bill: 

Volumetric Rate 
0 - .8 MCf 

$5.00 
8.50 

$5.00 
8.50 

$5.00 
7.50 

$5.00 
7.50 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

21 1 SOWER BOULEVARD 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 

FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 
(502) 564-3940 

March 1 7 ,  2000 

.. 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 1999-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

mission 

SB/sh 
Enclosure 



David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Honorable Teresa J. Hill 
Counsel for Citipower, LLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin, KY 40701 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

CASE NO. 99-225 
THE ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING ) 
OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 

O R D E R  

On June 3, 1999, Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) applied for an adjustment of rates 

pursuant to Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 5:076, the alternative rate filing 

procedure for small utilities. Having performed a limited financial review of Citipower’s 

operations, Commission Staff has submitted to the Commission a report of its findings 

and recommendations regarding the proposed rate adjustment. A copy of this report is 

attached hereto. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that: 

1. All parties shall have 10 days from the date of this Order to review the 

Commission Staff Report and comment upon it. 

2. Any party objecting to any finding or recommendation contained in the 

Commission Staff Report shall file such objections in writing within 10 days of the date 

of this Order. Parties submitting written objections shall identify each finding and 

recommendation to which they object and state the basis for their objection. 

3. If a party does not submit any objection to the Commission Staff Report 

within 10 days of the date of this Order, the Commission Staffs findings and 

recommendations shall be considered accepted by that party. 



4. A public hearing on the proposed rate adjustment shall be held in Hearing 

Room 2 of the Commission’s offices at 211 Sower Blvd., Frankfort, Kentucky on March 

29, 2000, at 1O:OO a.m., Eastern Standard Time. 

5. Citipower shall cause to be published in a newspaper of general 

circulation in the area affected by its proposed rate adjustment, no later than March 22, 

2000, notice of the purpose, time, place, and date of the hearing. 

6. If no objections to the findings and recommendations of the Commission 

Staff Report are received within I O  days of the date of this Order, the scheduled hearing 

in this matter shall be canceled and this matter shall stand submitted to the Commission 

for decision based upon the existing record. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 1 7  t h  day of  March , 2000. 

ATTEST: 



I 
I STAFF REPORT 

- ON 

CITIPOWER. LLC 

Case No. 99-225 

Preface 

On June 3, 1999, Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) filed an application for a rate 

adjustment pursuant to Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 5076, the Alternative Rate 

Filing Procedure for Small Utilities (“ARF”). Staff has determined that the amount of 

increase produced by the proposed rates is $40,466, which represents a 23 percent 

increase over revenues from existing rates. In order to meet the minimum filing 

requirements for an ARF, a utility must have less than 500 customers or less than 

$300,000 in gross annual revenues. During 1998, Citipower met the minimum 

requirements for an ARF filing. 

The Commission Staff performed a limited financial review of Citipower’s 

operations for the test year ending December 31 , 1998. The Commission’s objective 

was to reduce the need for additional written data requests, and therefore, decrease the 

expense to the utility. On January 7, 2000, the Commission issued a letter specifying 

what information would be needed to assist Commission Staff (“Staff) during the field 

review. John Williams and Katy Finn of the Commission’s Division of Financial Analysis 

performed the field visit on January 24 to 26, 2000, at the business office of Citipower in 

Whitley City, Kentucky. Dawn McGee of the Division of Financial Analysis performed a 

review of Citipower’s reported revenues at the office of the Commission. 



Scope 

The scope of the review was limited to obtaining information to determine that the 

operating expenses as reported in Citipower‘s application for the period ending 

December 31 I 1998 were representative of normal operations, and to gather information 

to evaluate the pro forma adjustments proposed in Citipower’s filing. Expenditures 

charged to test-year operations were reviewed, including any supporting invoices. 

Insignificant or immaterial discrepancies were not pursued and are not addressed 

herein. 

Accountins and Record-Keepins Procedures 

The company’s accounting records and procedures are subject to the 

requirements established by the Uniform System of Accounts (“USoA”) prescribed for 

natural gas companies in the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”), Title 18, Chapter I, 

Subchapter F, as well as the financial reporting requirements prescribed by the 

Kentucky Public Service Commission. Several deviations from the USoA and 

prescribed practices and procedures were disclosed. We have noted the following 

exceptions: 

Plant Records 

Plant records presently maintained by the utility are insufficient to determine the 

historical cost of utility property, plant and equipment. It is imperative that the cost of 

plant assets be effectively controlled and accurately accounted for, because of the 

importance of these costs in determining periodic depreciation charges and as a 

measure of rate base. Staff recommends that a subsidiary plant ledger be maintained 

with the accounting records to contain a card or sheet for each unit of property, showing 
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details such as description, location, cost, vendor, date of purchase or installation, 

estimated salvage value, estimated cost of removal rate and method of depreciation, 

depreciation accumulated to date, and capitalized repairs, replacements, and 

improvements. Supplementary information to the plant ledger would include 

documentation of periodic inventories and periodic appraisals of property, plant, and 

equipment for insurance purposes. 

Unauthorized Amounts Charsed 

From September 23, 1998 through December 31,1998 Citipower charged hook- 

up fees, and refundable deposits that were not authorized by the Commission. There 

are no provisions for these charges in its tariff.’ KRS 278.160 requires that “each utility 

shall file with the Commission, within such time and in such form as the Commission 

designates, schedules showing all rates and conditions for service established by it and 

collected or enforced.” Citipower is advised to cease collection of any unauthorized rate 

or charge until such time as it is approved in its tariff. 

Maintainincl Books and Records 

Citipower retains the accounting firm of Ernst and Young to prepare its audited 

financial statements. As of the conclusion of the field review on January 26, 2000, 

Citipower’s 1998 audited financial statements had not been released as “final.” 

Citipower used the calendar year 1998 operating statement information included in the 

1998 annual report to the Commission as the test period in this case. 

’ The Tariff Filing Of Citipower, L.L.C. Of Whitley City, Kentucky For Furnishing 
Natural Gas Service In McCreary County, Kentucky, Case No. 97-528, September 23, 
1998. 
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Staff requested supporting documentation that would verify the financial 

information contained in the filing, yet Citipower was not able to supply sufficient 

information to reconcile the general ledger accounts to either its “draft” audited financial 

statements or the annual report to the Commission prior to the field review. Citipower 

provided a general ledger that did not reconcile with the information in the annual report. 

Following the field review, Citipower provided a second copy of the general ledger that 

was not in agreement with the first general ledger. For purposes of this report, Staff 

used the 1998 annual report to the Commission and the version of the general ledger 

that was provided prior to Staffs field review. Although some information from 1999 is 

used in this report, Staff determined that Citipower’s 1999 records could not be relied 

upon as a basis for an updated 1999 test year. 

Staff emphasizes the importance of having one general ledger that can be used 

as support for the financial statements. The general ledgers that were provided to Staff 

did not reconcile with Citipower’s 1998 annual report or its 1998 draft audit report. The 

general ledger is a permanent organizational record and as such is vital in reporting to 

regulatory authorities, other federal, state and local authorities, and owners or limited 

liability members. 

Records Retention 

According to the CFR 18, Subchapter F, Section 225.3, Item 10, general and 

subsidiary ledgers should be retained for at least 50 years, and the trial balance sheets 

of the general and subsidiary ledgers should be kept for two years. Citipower has not 

complied with this section of the CFR. 
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The CFR 18, Subchapter F, Section 225.2(d)(2) states, “If the media form of the 

record retained is other than a readable paper copy, then reader and/or printer 

equipment and related printout programs, if required, shall be provided by the utility for 

data reference.” Section (9) states, ”(I) All records created or maintained in a media 

and a format other than readable entries on paper shall: (i) Be prepared, arranged, 

classified, identified, and indexed as to permit the subsequent location, examination, 

and reproduction of the record to a readable media.” 

Citipower did not produce a complete copy of their supporting/subsidiary ledgers, 

transaction journals, or other supporting workpapers necessary to trace receipts and 

disbursements to its general ledgers. In the general ledgers provided to Staff, the 

transactions were divided into separate accounts for record-keeping purposes. 

However, the general ledgers did not indicate which accounts these were. 

Governina Statutes and Regulations 

The operation of a utility in Kentucky is subject to statutes as provided by the 

Kentucky Revised Statutes (“KRS”) and to regulations as established by the Kentucky 

Administrative Regulations (XAR”). The following deviations were disclosed during the 

review: 

Issuance or Assumption of Debt bv Utilitv 

Citipower obtained an auto loan from the Bank of McCreary County in 1998 

without prior approval from the Commission. The auto loan was issued to finance the 

purchase of a 1996 Toyota Tacoma 4-Wheel Drive Truck. The loan was dated 

February IO, 1998, has a four-year maturity, a 9.467% interest rate, and a total amount 

financed of $18,871. A utility is required by KRS 278.300 to obtain prior approval before 
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assuming evidence of indebtedness payable in more than two years from the date of 

issuance and/or renewing such debt for a period exceeding six years from the date of 

issuance of the original debt. Prior to the test period, Citipower obtained three 

additional auto loans that also required Commission approval because of the 

indebtedness’ term to maturity. 

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessitv (“CPCN”) for Gas Plant Additions 

KRS 278.020(1) requires utilities to seek Commission approval prior to “the I 
I 

construction of any plant, equipment, property or facility for furnishing to the public any 

of the services enumerated in KRS 278.010.” During 1998, Citipower placed in service 

in excess of $560,000 of Kentucky jurisdictional natural gas utility plant and equipment. 

Staff believes that Citipower should have obtained a CPCN for the projects constructed 

in 1998. Additionally, Citipower has filed no application for Commission approval of a 

CPCN for any of its planned 1999 capital projects referenced in its application. Staff 

does not believe the extensions of this scope qualify for treatment as “extensions in the 

ordinary course of business” under the statute.2 

Purchase of McCrearv Natural Gas Svstems, Inc. (“McCrearv”) Assets. 

Citipower was initially formed to purchase McCreary’s assets. The purchase 

took place on September 26, 1996. Staff requested data or any studies performed to 

determine the original cost of the assets purchased. Citipower provided McCreary’s 

balance sheet for the year ended December 31, 1995. However, no up-to-date detailed 

807 KAR 5:001, Section 9(3), provides that in order to qualify as an extension 
in the ordinary course of business, said extensions should not “involve sufficient capital 
outlay to materially affect the existing financial condition of the utility involved, or will not 
result in increased charges to its customers.” 
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supporting information was provided concerning the cost of the assets to the original 

purchaser. This information is required by the USoA for use in recording utility plant 

asset purchases. According to the USoA, all amounts included in the accounts for gas 

plant acquired as an operating unit or system “shall be stated at the cost incurred by the 

person who first devoted the property to utility service. All other gas plant shall be 

included in the accounts at the cost incurred by the ~t i l i ty . ”~ 

Citipower’s acquisition of McCreary’s assets should have been accounted for in 

accordance with the USoA. The amounts included in the gas plant accounts of 

McCreary should have been recorded on Citipower’s books at the cost to the original 

purchaser. If that amount is not known, it should be estimated. Pursuant to the USoA, 

the following journal entries should be made to effect the purchase of another utility’s 

assets: 

a. To record the purchase of assets: 

Acct 102 - Gas Plant Purchased or Sold xxxx 

Acct 130 - Cash xxxx 

b. To record original cost of plant, estimated if not known: 

Acct 101 - Gas Plant in Service xxxx 

Including entries to accounts # to # 

Acct 104 - Gas Plant Leased to Others xxxx 

Acct 105 - Plant Held for Future Use xxxx 

I 
i 18 CFR, Chapter 1 I Part 201 I at Gas Plant Instructions, Section 2(A). 
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Acct 105.1 - Production Properties Held 

for Future Use xxxx 

XXXX Acct 107 - Construction Work in Progress 

Acct I02 - Gas Plant Purchased or Sold XXXX 

To record accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization c. 

incurred up to the time of transfer: 

Acct 102 - Gas Plant Purchased or Sold xxxx 

Acct 1 10 - Accumulated Provision for 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization 

of Gas Utility Plant 

d. Any amount remaining in Account 102, Gas Plant Purchased or 

Sold, should be closed to Account 114, Gas Plant Acquisition Adjustments (“GPAA”): 

Acct 102 - Gas Plant Purchased or Sold 

Acct 114 - Gas Plant Acquisition 

Adjustment 

xxxx 

OR: 

Acct 114 - Gas Plant Acquisition Adjustment XXXX 

Acct 102-Gas Plant Purchased or Sold 

Sold xxxx 

Pursuant to the USoA, amortization of the GPAA may be recorded in account 

425, Miscellaneous Amortization. The amortization period cannot exceed “the 

XXXX 

xxxx 

remaining useful life of the properties to which such amounts  elate."^ The Commission 

I 18 Code of Regulations, Chapter 1, Part 201, Section 114. 
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must approve any exceptions to the amortization period. Citipower made no request for 

approval of a GPAA. 

The USoA provides that if the original cost of the assets is not known, the cost 

should be estimated. This process would require taking an inventory of the assets 

purchased in the original transaction with McCreary and determining the estimated cost 

to construct those assets using acceptable indices and appropriate cost valuation 

techniques to arrive at the estimate. Staff believes that Citipower should determine 

whether it could undertake this study with its own personnel or whether it should use a 

professional consultant to conduct the original cost study. The study should be 

conducted prior to Citipower’s next rate adjustment request. If the study is not 

completed, Citipower may be subject to having the total investment excluded for 

ratemaking purposes. 

Staff Recommended Accountinq and Rate-Making Adiustments 

Citipower presented its test-year operating statement based on its annual report 

to the Commission for the calendar year 1998. Citipower proposed numerous 

adjustments to its test-year operations. Based on the review of the proposed 

adjustments, Staff recommends that none of the requested adjustments be accepted for 

ratemaking purposes. The adjustments proposed by Citipower were not quantified 

based on appropriate utility ratemaking methodology, and do not meet the “known and 

measurable standard.” Citipower gave general descriptions of adjustments without 

explanations any supporting documentation or explanation that is necessary to evaluate 

the reasonableness of the  proposal^.^ 

~~ 

Citipower’s response to Item 3.d. of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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Although not accepting any of the adjustments proposed by Citipower, Staff has 

made adjustments where sufficient information is available from the field review and the 

public record to make the appropriate adjustment. The Staffs evaluation of the 

adjustments is discussed below. Schedule I contains a proforma income statement with 

the allowable adjustments. 

Normalized Revenues 

Citipower proposed normalized jurisdictional revenues of $1 32,465 in its 

application. This amount, reported in Schedule E of the application, consisted of 

$128,817 in gas sales revenue, $3,160 in minimum bill revenue and $488 in late 

payment fees. The sales revenue was based on Citipower‘s retail rates in effect during 

1998 and its actual sales volumes for calendar year 1998. 

Citipower has been operating as a Local Distribution Company (“LDC”) under the 

Commission’s jurisdiction for a limited period of time and it only had two years of 

financial information on file with the Commission at the time it filed its application. 

Based on a review of that information, for calendar years 1997 and 1998, as well as 

Staffs review of additional information for part of 1999, two conclusions can be made. 

First, Citipower’s average Mcf sales per residential customer were less during the 1998 

test year than during either 1997 or 1999. Second, Citipower has experienced 

substantial customer growth, both during 1998 and 1999. Staffs field review found that 

Citipower had 363 total customers at the end of 1999, an increase of 72% over the 21 1 

customers it had at the end of 1998. Because of the lower per-customer sales during 

the test year and in recognition of the growth Citipower is experiencing, Staff 

recommends two adjustments to Citipower‘s proposed normalized revenues. 
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The first adjustment is a sales volume normalization adjustment. For calendar 

year 1998, especially for the residential class, sales volumes did not appear 

representative of normal on-going levels. The 1998 per customer usage was lower than 

in both 1997 and in the first five months of 1999 for which monthly usage data was 

available. To provide a more representative level of sales, Staff felt it was appropriate 

to develop weighted average sales volumes based on the information available for 

1997, 1998, and the first five months of 1999. This approach produced mixed results; 

the residential and industrial monthly weighted averages were higher than the 1998 

sales while the commercial and institutional monthly weighted averages were lower than 

the 1998 sales. Given the rather limited amount of historical information available and 

the fact that residential usage is more temperature sensitive than usage of other 

customer classes, Staff believes this averaging approach is appropriate. Staff 

calculated normalized test year revenue of $124,120 from this information. 

The second adjustment is a customer growth adjustment to recognize additional 

revenue that would have been generated if Citipower had served the 1998 year-end 

customer level for the entire test period. Using the same weighted average monthly 

usage per customer as used in the previous adjustment, Staff calculated the revenue 

that would have been generated based on the 1998 year-end number of customers. 

This year-end customer adjustment, which is shown in Schedule II, is a standard 

adjustment made by the Commission in rate cases, produces normalized test year 

revenues of $1 74,796. 
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Non-Jurisdictional Revenue and Purchased Gas Expense 

During 1998 Citipower sold gas purchased from its affiliated company, Forexco, 

Inc., to Citizens Gas Utility District (“Citizens Gas”), a natural gas utility district serving 

Scott and Morgan Counties, Tennessee. These sales for resale totaled $54,276 for the 

calendar year 1998. These sales are not subject to the authority of the Kentucky PSC. 

The only revenue included in Account 483, Sales for Resale, is revenue derived 

from Tennessee. Therefore, Staff recommends an adjustment decreasing sales for 

resale by the entire amount of $54,276. 

The purchased gas expense of $49,709 related to sales to Citizens Gas on 

Citipower’s application is consistent with the amount reported on the annual report to 

the Commission. However, since this cost relates to non-jurisdictional (Tennessee) 

sales the expense should be removed from Citipower’s projected revenues and 

expenses. Accordingly, Staff recommends an adjustment decreasing purchased gas 

expense by the entire amount of $49,709. 

Purchased Gas Expense 
I 

Citipower proposed normalized jurisdictional purchased gas expense of $54,669 

based on the 26,788 Mcf purchased in 1998 at an average cost of $2.0408. Information 

I 

provided by Citipower during the field review indicates that the test year average cost of 

I 
I $2.0408 is lower than that expected in the future. However, due to the potential for gas 

I cost fluctuations and the fact that such fluctuations are recoverable through the GCA 

~ 

mechanism, the test year average cost was accepted by Staff. 

Staff adjusted the normalized purchased gas expense to reflect the average 

The adjusted annual usage volumes used to calculate the normalized revenues. 
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volume is 28,397 Mcf, which includes a 5% allowance for line loss. Using this approach 

produces a normalized purchased gas expense of $57,953. 

Miscellaneous Service Revenues 

Citipower included two sub-accounts in its test year-end balance for 

miscellaneous service revenues: sub-account 488.2, Late Charges Collected, with a 

balance of $488; and sub-account 488.3, Hook Up Fees Collected, with a balance of 

$25,977. Based upon Staffs review of these accounts, certain charges to customers 

were erroneously included as revenue. 

The Commission approved a change in Citipower's tariff on September 23, 1998. 

After that tariff change, Citipower could no longer charge a tap fee of $100 per customer 

or a refundable customer deposit in the amount of $200. The previously mentioned 

account balances were a significant portion of the Hook-Up Fees Collected account. 

Charges for tap fees should be recorded as contra-assets to the plant accounts being 

constructed. Refundable customer deposits should be recorded in account 235, 

Customer Deposits. Charges for service line installation and the extra service line fees 

should be included in USoA Account 415, Revenues from Merchandising, Jobbing, and 

Contract Work. If Citipower continues to install service lines to its customers, it should 

isolate and identify costs associated with those installations and record the costs in 

account 416, Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing and Contract Work. 

Citipower should also be aware that when the 'customer pays for distribution line 

extensions of more than 100 feet, the payment by the customer should be recorded in 

account 252, Customer Advances for Construction, and refunded according to 807 KAR 

5022, Section 9. 
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Following is a list of the items and the amounts that Citipower included in 

Account 488 for the test year 1998: 

Account 488-Miscellaneous Service Revenues: 

Account 488.2-Late Charges Collected 

Account 488.3-Hook up Fees Collected 

A. Additional Audit Adjustment 
-Unearned Well Hook-Up Fees 
B. Customer Deposits 

Before 9/23/98 
After 9/23/98 
Returned Security Deposit 

C. Service Line Charges 
D. Extra service line fees 
E. Non-tariffed Tap Fees 

F. Non-Recurring Tap Fees 

G. Non-Recurring Miscellaneous Charges 
Total Account 488.3 
To adjust for unexplained difference 
between annual report and general 
ledger 
Total Account 488 

After 9/23/98 

Before 9/23/98 

$488 

$1 0,000 

2,400 
800 

6,500 
1,097 

(250) 

1,200 

300 
3,442 

$25,689 

200 
$26.177 

Items A, B, C, and D from the above schedule, totaling $20,747, should be 

removed from account 488 because they were initially posted to the wrong account. 

Item A should be included in Account 238, Other Current and Accrued Liabilities, Item B 

should be included in Account 235, Customer Deposits, and Items C and D, totaling 

$7,597 should be included in Account 41 5, Revenues from Merchandising, Jobbing, and 

Contract Work. The $1,200 in Item E consists of non-tariffed items that were 

erroneously collected after the September 23, 1998 filing of the new tariff. The new 

tariff did not include these charges; therefore, they are not allowable. The charges in 
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Item F of $300 were excluded because they are non-recurring. The revenues in Item G 

totaling $3,442 were not sufficiently explained in the general ledger and Staff was 

unable to determine the nature of these charges. Consequently, Staff has not included 

these revenues for ratemaking purposes. Therefore, Staff recommends an adjustment 

decreasing miscellaneous service revenue by $25,689 to exclude the above amounts. 

The only charge identified in Citipower‘s records that should be included in 

miscellaneous service revenues is a late payment fee, which is 10 percent of a 

customer’s bill. In 1998, late fees totaling $488 were charged to account 488.3 in 

Citipower’s general ledger. This fee is included in Citipower’s tariff. Therefore, 

Citipower’s miscellaneous service revenues should be $488. 

Citipower included in Schedule A to its application, in Item II, a $19,275 increase 

to other revenue. The notation for the adjustment was “taking into account 70 new 

customers added.” Considering the amounts that Citipower has historically posted to 

these accounts, the potential customer charges according to the current tariff and 

Citipower’s explanation, Staff finds no basis for including the proposed adjustment. 

Salaries, Waqes and Other Compensation 

Citipower proposed six adjustments to salaries, wages and other compensation. 

First, it proposed an adjustment to increase administrative and general salaries by 

$100,000 for 1/3 of the management and office salaries paid by an affiliated company, 

Forexco, Inc. (“Forexco”), for services performed on behalf of Citipower at Forexco’s 

office in Greensboro, North Carolina. These proposed salaries were for work performed 
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in Greensboro by Forexco employees Daniel Forsberg, H.V. McCue and J.B. Lawson, 

CPA.‘ 

The salary allocated to Citipower for Daniel Forsberg represented “duties 

customary of PresidenVCEO” in the amount of $73,600. H.V. McCue’s salary allocation 

to Citipower in the amount of $8,250 was for “accounting . . . and administrative/clerical” 

work. J.B. Lawson, CPA’s work on behalf of Citipower was for “oversee[ing] . . . 

accounting; . . . prepar[ing] internal financial statements . . . and provid[ing] financial 

information for management decision-making” in the amount of $1 8,150. Staff finds the 

allocations for Ms. McCue and Ms. Lawson reasonable. These Forexco employees’ 
I 

I 

I 

salary allocations to Citipower are 50 percent to customer accounting and collecting and 

50 percent to administrative and general salaries and wages. However, due to other 

forms of compensation to Mr. Forsberg and the lack of a better description of the 

services he performed, the allocation of pay by Forexco is not considered reasonable 

and has been excluded by Staff for ratemaking purposes. Citipower’s response to Item 

4.A. of the July 16, 1999 AG data request said the adjustment for Mr. Forsberg’s salary 

allocation was in error.’ Staff agrees that the explanation of work he performed is 

insufficient support to allocate affiliated company expenses for recovery of his services 

from Citipower’s ratepayers. 

~ 

I 

Citipower’s response to Item 4 of the Attorney General’s (“AG”) July 16, 1999 
data request. 

’ The proposed adjustment allocating part of Mr. Forsberg’s Forexco salary to 
Citipower was eliminated in Citipower’s response to Item 3.d. of the Commission’s 
August 3, 1999 Order. 

-1 6- 



During the test year, Citipower reported total officers compensation and 

consulting expense of $251,840. Citipower proposed adjustments to wages and 

salaries to decrease officer‘s compensation and consulting expense by $50,000, and to 

reduce commissions by $1 0,000. Citipower’s only explanation for the adjustments was 

“based on investments sold.” These accounts included only non-cash compensation 

that was offered to officers in exchange for raising equity capital from investors in 

Citipower. In regard to the non-cash officer‘s compensation and consulting expense, 

Citipower stated its “management does not . . . believe it is appropriate to include such 

items in Citipower’s rate base.’18 However, Citipower made no adjustment to exclude 

the proposed officer’s compensation and consulting expense in its revenue requirement 

calculation. Staff agrees that the non-cash compensation for raising equity capital 

should not be included in operating expenses recoverable from ratepayers. Staff 

recommends a decrease to administrative and general salaries for the entire officer’s 

compensation and consulting expense in the amount of $251,840. For the same 

reason, Staff recommends that the non-cash commissions of $25,774 that were 

included in administrative and general salaries be excluded from operating expenses. 

Total salaries and wages paid, according to Citipower’s general ledger in the 

amount of $176,761 during the 1998 test year, were included in administrative and 

general salaries, account 920. According to payroll records maintained by a 

computerized payroll service for Citipower, the total salaries and wages paid by 

Citipower during the test period totaled $1 75,569. Accordingly, Staff recommends a 

Citipower’s response to Item 7 of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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decrease to administrative and general salaries of $1 ,I 92 to balance with subsidiary 

payroll records. 

Citipower proposed a $20,005 adjustment to decrease by one-third the salaries 

and wages of the operations manager and the office managedbookkeeper in Whitley 

City, Kentucky for services that they provided to Forexco, an affiliate of Citipower with 

gas production operations in Kentucky. Staff recomputed this adjustment to be a 

$26,805 decrease in administrative and general salarie~.~ The difference is $6,800. 

According to its response to Item 12 of the Commission’s October 27, 1999 

Order, Citipower provided laborers to perform well hook-up and reclamation work. The 

estimated total cost of this work during the test year was $5,240. There is no evidence 

that this work relates to the Kentucky PSC jurisdictional operations of Citipower. Any 

cost of this nature that is related to the production of gas to sell in the interstate market 

should not be included in the revenue requirements of Citipower. Therefore, Staff 

recommends that this amount be excluded from administrative and general salaries for 

ratemaking purposes. 

After its pipeline and distribution system expansion was completed in June 1999, 

Citipower reduced its workforce. The employees remaining are the operations 

manager, office manager, a part-time office assistant, and two laborers. Staff 

normalized the salaries of the operations manager, office manager, and office assistant 

based on 1998 hours worked and rates effective at the time of the field review. The two 

~ ~~~~ ~ 

According to its response to Item 12 of the Commission’s October 27, 1999 
Order, Citipower’s “allocations for James Curd and Janice Ross . . . [are] one-third 
allocation of each employee’s salary based on an estimate of hours spent providing 
services for Forexco, Inc.” 
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remaining laborers’ wages were normalized using a 2,080-hour work year and actual 

hours of overtime as worked in 1998. The salaries and wages of the other laborers 

employed during 1998 were considered to be allocated to construction during the test 

year. Thus, Staff has decreased operating expenses by $56,934 for non-recurring 

expenses related to construction labor. 

After allocating one-third of the operations manager’s and office manager’s 

salaries to Forexco, the remainder of their salaries was allocated between distribution 

supervision, customer accounting and collecting, and administrative and general 

salaries. The office assistant’s wages were allocated 100 percent to customer 

accounting and collecting. 

Citipower’s laborers’ normalized salaries are allocated 75 percent to Account 

761 , Distribution Mains and Services Labor, and 25 percent to Account 901 , Customer 

Meter Reading Labor. In normalizing these laborers’ wages, Staff increased 

administrative and general wages (Citipower’s direct wages) and operating expenses by 

$1 1,227. Schedule V contains an allocation of normalized salaries which explains how 

these salaries are allocated to the various expense accounts. 

Additionally, in its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower included 

amounts in the salaries and wages Account 761, Distribution Mains and Services Labor 

in the amount of $8,063, and Account 902, Customer Accounting and Collecting Labor 

in the amount of $14,713. Staff found no support for these amounts in Citipower’s 

records and accordingly, operating expenses are being adjusted to decrease these 

account balances in the amounts of $8,063 and $14,713, respectively. 
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Citipower proposed two additional adjustments to wages and salaries. One was 

to increase contract labor by $10,400 to hire an individual to perform easement work. 

Because Citipower is recording the costs of obtaining easements as capital 

expenditures, Staff does not find support for including these expenses as operating 

expenses subject to rate recovery. Also, Citipower proposed an additional cost 

increase for marketing salaries, “to promote new customer hook-ups.’l10 Citipower did 

not demonstrate by its explanation that this new position is required to provide gas 

service to the customers of Citipower. Therefore, Staff has not included this proposed 

Acct. No. Total Acct. 920, 
& Title / Salaries & Admin. & 

Narrative Wages General 
Per 1998 

Report 
Forexco 
Work for 26,400 13,200 
Citipower 
Non-cas h 
Salaries & (277,614) (277,614) 
Comp. 
Subsidiary 

Difference 
Citipower 
Admin. & (26,805) (26,805) 
Labor for (5,240) (5,240) 
Forexco 
Non- 
Recurring (56,934) (56,934) 
Labor 

Annual $477,151 $454,375 

Record (1 ,192) (1 1192) 

adjustment as a recoverable operating expense from Citipower’s ratepayers. 

Acct. 760, Acct. 761, Acct. 901, Acct. 902, 
Distr. Distr. ’ Meter Acctg. & 
Supr. Labor Reading Collecting 

$ -0- $8,063 $ -0- $14,713 

13,200 

A summary of the salary and wages adjustments made by Staff is as follows: 

lo Citipower’s response to Item 3.d. of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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Normalize 
Laborers’ 11,227 1 1,227 
Wages 
Eliminate 
Amounts (22,776) (8,063) 
Not 
Supported 
Reclassify 
to Various - -0- /71,007) 20,773 27.485 
Accounts 
Staff 
Adjusted $124.217 $40,010 $20.773 $27.485 
Balances 

Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 

(14,713) 

9,161 13,588 

$9,161 $26,788 

Taxes other than income taxes should include employer payroll taxes, the PSC 

assessment fee, licenses (representing other taxes) and property taxes. Staff 

recomputed employer payroll taxes based on normalized employees and salaries and 

wages as follows: 

Total Adjusted Test Year Salaries and Wages 
FICA and OASDI tax rate 
FICA and OASDI taxes - employer portion computed 

$124,217 
7.65% 

State Unemployment (“SUI”) wages subject to tax 

SUI tax computed on applicable employee wage limit 

$ 32,000 
SUI tax rate 3.00% 

Federal Unemployment (“FUTA) wages subject to tax$ 28,000 
FUTA tax rate 0.80% 
FUTA tax computed on applicable employee wage limit 

SUBTOTAL 

Amount reported on annual report to the Commission 

Retail Sales Revenues (as normalized) subject 
to PSC assessment fee 
Rate of 1.667 per $1,000 revenue 

PSC assessment fee computed 
Amount reported on annual report to the Commission 

$1 74,796 
(X) 1.667 
/+) 1,000 

$ 9,503 

$ 960 

$ 224 
$ 10,687 

$ (14,376) 

$ 292 
$ ( 216) 
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Licenses included in sub-account 928.2 per 
general ledger 51 3 

Property taxes reported on annual report to the Commission 
Property taxes substantiated on Citipower’s general ledger $ -0- 

$ (  1,152) 

Staff adjustment to test year balance, taxes other than 
income tax $ (4.252) 
Test year balance reported on the annual report $ 15,744 

Staff Adjusted Test Year Balance $ 11.492 

lniuries and Damaaes 

Citpower’s injuries and damages account balance of $1 6,350 included employee 

health, dental and life insurance premiums totaling $11,556 that should have been 

posted to Account 926, Employees’ Pension and Benefits. The $16,350 balance also 

included $207 that Staff was unable to trace to Citipower’s general ledger. 

Citipower proposed a $1,481 increase to injuries and damages for workers 

compensation. This was based on a December 1998 workers compensation audit by 

Kentucky Employers’ Mutual Insurance. Staff has not accepted this adjustment as 

proposed due to the reduction of the salaries and wages accounts addressed in the 

salaries and wages section of this report. A computation of Citipower‘s workers 

compensation premium based on normalized wages is provided below. The calculation 

is based on the workers Compensation rates on Citipower’s January 1, 2000 invoice 

from Kentucky Employers’ Mutual Insurance. Staffs calculation assumes Kentucky 

workers compensation rates for Citipower’s employees located in Kentucky. In 

allocating wages to Forexco, Staff has not calculated the difference in wages caused by 

the differing workers compensation rates in Kentucky and North Carolina because the 

result would be inconsequential. 



Adjusted Total Citipower Salaries and Wages $1 24,217 

Base Premium Calculation: 
Total office employees’ class salaries $ 25,660 
Rate per $100 of compensation $0.38 x .0038 
Base Premium on office employees’ class $ 98 

Total employees’ class salaries for natural gas 
Local distributing, drivers, etc. $ 98,557 
Rate per $100 of compensation $4.1 1 x .0411 
Base Premium on employees’ class for natural 

Gas local distributing, drivers, etc. 
Premium portion 
Base Premium calculated 
Rate Adjustment Factor 
Expense Constant 

Kentucky Special Fund Assessment of 9% 
Staff computed workers compensation policy premium 

Subtotal 

$ 4,051 
$ 118 
$ 4,267 
$ (640) 
$ 140 
$ 3,767 
$ 339 
$ 4,106 

Less: Account no. 925 balance per annual report $ 16.350 
Staff recommended adjustment to injuries and damages $ (12,244) 

Employee Pensions and Benefits 

Citipower included $3,795 in Account 926, Employee Pensions and Benefits in its 

1998 annual report. Citipower has a simplified employee pension plan (“SEP”) for its 

employees. For each employee participating in the plan, Citipower matches up to three 

percent of an employee’s salaries or wages when the employee contributes three 

percent or more of hidher salary or wages. Staff has calculated the adjusted cost for 

Citipower’s SEP, taking into account the number of employees at the time of the field 

review, their normalized salaries, and each individual level of participation. 

As previously discussed, Citipower did not include employee insurance benefits 

in the Employee Pensions and Benefits account. Instead, Citipower erroneously 

included these expenses in Account 925, Injuries and Damages. As shown below, Staff 



has computed the adjusted employee insurance benefit expenses based on the present 

level of personnel and the current policy premium costs reflected on recent invoices. 

SEP Pension Expense: 
Employees contributions for the test year . . . $ 98,720 
Employer matching rate 3.00% 
Citipower SEP pension expense computed $ 2,961 

Employee Health, Dental and Life Insurance: 
Monthly health ins. premium per employee $ 106 
Monthly dental ins. premium per employee !$ 19 
Total monthly premiums $ 125 

4 
Total health & dental premiums $ 500 

Annualized health & dental ins. expense $ 6,000 

Citipower employee benefit expense computed $ 6,547 
Staff computed adjusted balance $ 9,508 

Staff adjustment to employees pensions & benefits $ 5,713 

Total Citipower employees at time of review 

Times the number of months in a year x 12 

Life insurance provided operations manager $ 547 

Less: 1998-account no. 926 balance per annual report $ 3,795 

Customer Installation Expenses, Maintenance of Meters, and Other Plant 

In its annual report to the Commission, Accounts 764, 768 and 769 contained 

expenses described on Citipower’s general ledger as materials, labor and “new 

customer hook-ups and customer repairs and maintenance.” 

The annual report balance for Account 769, Maintenance of Other Plant, included 

one unsubstantiated audit adjustment from the general ledger that increased the 

account by $32,883. The description was “to correct PPE [property, plant and 

equipment].” Citipower was asked to provide its auditor’s workpapers, but only provided 

a trial balance and adjustments, without any other supporting documentation. 

Consequently, there is no explanation available for the $32,883 adjustment. Another 

transaction included in this account was to “B.K.R. Well Service Company” in the 

amount of $1,540. This transaction was a portion of a split invoice with additions to gas 
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plant and equipment, with no allocations noted on the invoice and no explanation of 

what the $1,540 represented. Staff has excluded these items for ratemaking purposes. 

Citipower’s sub-category of customer hook-up expense appeared to be included 

in Account 764, Customer Installation Expense on the annual report in the amount of 

$14,998. Many of the vendors listed on the general ledger are the same as those 

providing construction services. Several of Citipower’s invoices do not provide an 

allocation by account number of items purchased. Notation of the accounts to which 

invoices are charged should be provided on the invoice and/or the check voucher in 

order to distinguish expense items from capital items. Citipower did not provide any 

form of transaction journal or any other ledgers that would show the accounts to which 

the costs were posted in the general ledger. Based on the above explanations, Staff 

recommends that the $14,998 in Account 764, Customer Installation Expenses, be 

removed from operating expenses and added to the gas plant and equipment account 

381 as a depreciable asset. Staff could not locate any support on Citipower’s general 

ledger for the $1,950 included on its annual report to the Commission included in 

Account 768, Maintenance of Other Meters. Since no support could be found for the 

$1,950 Citipower included on the annual report in the Account 768, Maintenance of 

Meters, Staff recommends this amount be disallowed from operating expenses for 

ratemaking purposes. 

Staff recommends that the entire balance of $34,693 in Account 769, 

Maintenance of Other Plant, be removed from operating expenses and reclassified as 

gas plant and equipment. Lacking better documentation, this reclassification to gas 

plant and equipment should be allocated between Kentucky jurisdictional assets and 
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non-jurisdictional assets placed in service during 1998. These adjustments bring Staffs 

recommendation for total reductions to operating expenses from these accounts to 

$51,641. Depreciation for the cost reclassifications will be addressed later in this Staff 

Report. 

U ncollecti ble Accounts 

Staff has computed an adjustment to Account 904, Uncollectible Accounts, 

based on Citipower’s 1998 uncollectible rate of $72 divided by $131,288, or 0.0548 

percent. Normally, Staff requires three or five years of data for an adjustment of this 

nature. However, because Citipower has not been subject to Commission regulation 

that long, the 1998 data is reasonable. 

Retail Sales Revenues (as normalized) subject 
Applied to uncollectible experience rate 
Rate of 0.05% IX) .0548% 
U ncol lecti ble accounts com pu ted $ 96 

$1 74,796 

Amount reported on annual report to the Commission u 
Staff recommended adjustment u 

Outside Services Emploved 

Citipower reported $77,673 in Account 923, Outside Services Employed. 

Citipower proposed to reduce its account to reflect a $5,000 decrease in engineering 

costs and a $1 5,000 decrease in legal costs. 

Invoices for legal expenses incurred with the Law Offices of Robert L. Brown, 111 

during 1998, as well as the response (Schedule A) to Item 1 of the AG’s July 16, 1999 

data request showed charges for direct work on utility business research, assistance 

with interpreting Kentucky employment statutes, the preparation of an employee 

handbook of company employment policies, communication with Commission Staff, 

research on statutory and regulatory requirements, preparation of responses to 

-26- 



Commission Orders, revisions to tariffs submitted in Citipower's initial tariff filing case, 

and communications regarding future service to the planned federal prison. These 

readily identifiable legal expenses have been included for ratemaking purposes. Many 

of the invoice descriptions included discussions with politicians, discussions about state 

legislative bills, discussions with localities where Citipower has no franchise to serve the 

public (Le., Monticello), extensive work on leases, easements, wells and well 

operations, and the conduct of business in Tennessee. These kinds of charges are not 

included for ratemaking purposes by Staff because they are either unrelated to 

Citipower utility business operations or are unrelated to jurisdictional operations. A 

significant portion of these bills appears to be related to legal work for Forexco (e.g., 

discussions with localities where Citipower has no franchise to do business, work on 

leases, easements, wells and well operations). In instances where professional 

services are performed for affiliated companies, the services should be billed directly to 

the company for which the service is performed. 

In regard to the remaining legal services, a legal claim of settlement in the 

amount of $7,405 was unexplained." Also, $20,000 of charges by Peter D.W. 

Heberling were for services in connection with Citipower raising equity capital.I2 Both of 

these are non-recurring charges. Additionally, Heberling's service is a cost of equity 

funding, not an operating expense. As such, both costs are disallowed for ratemaking 

purposes. 

Citipower's response to Item 1 of the Attorney General's (,,GI,) July 16, 1999 
data request. 
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The accounting, tax and payroll services that are allowed for rate-making 

purposes according to the table below are amounts that are supported in Citipower’s 

general ledger. Invoices in support of engineering services were not provided for Staff 

review and are not supported in Citipower’s general ledger; thus the expense has not 

been included for ratemaking purposes. 

Following is a table of the outside services employed expenses that have been 

included and excluded for ratemaking purposes. 
r 

Allowed for Rate Disallowed for Rate 
Su b-categories Totals Recovery Recovery 

Acctg., tax & 

Legal - Brown Law 
Offices $30,878 $ 10,412 $20,465 
Legal - Akin, 

Legal - Peter D.W. 

payroll services $ 5,118 $ 4,008 $ 1,110 

Gump, Strauss $ 2,389 $ 2,389 $ -0- 

Heberling $20,000 $ -0- $20,000 

Propertv Insurance 

On its 1998 annual report to the Commission in Account 924, Property 

Insurance, Citipower reported a balance of $7,642. According to Citipower’s most 

recent invoices, it has annual premiums for general liability and umbrella policies 

totaling $8,354. Therefore, Staff recommends an adjustment to increase operating 

expenses for the property insurance adjusted balance in the amount of $712. 
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Rents 

Citipower reported no Account 931, Rents, on its 1998 annual report to the 

Commission. Citipower included in Account 930.1 , Miscellaneous General Expense, a 

total of $6,000 for storage rental. Because the majority of the pipeline and distribution 

system construction ceased in June 1999, management is no longer renting the storage 

space. A smaller unit was rented at $1 50 per month or $1,800 annually for supplies and 

equipment storage. Staff has included the $1,800 annual rental expense in Account 

931, Rents. 

As part of its purchase of McCreary Gas, Citipower bought a log ofice building in 

downtown Whitley City and recorded it on both the general ledger and depreciation 

schedule at a cost of $125,000. Citipower was not able to provide a copy of the deed to 

this building as documentation of the purchase price. The building appears to exceed 

the size that would be needed to operate daily activities for a utility of Citipower's size. 

Furthermore, because the building was acquired from a previous owner, the cost 

recorded on Citipower's books for depreciation should have been the cost to the first 

user of the property, or an estimate thereof. Citipower provided no substantiation to 

Staff for either the original cost of the property or an estimate of that cost. In the portion 

of this report dealing with depreciation expense, Staff has disallowed the depreciation 

on the building in the amount of $5,000 for ratemaking purposes. In the portion of this 

report entitled Insurance Expense, Staff disallowed the cost of property insurance on 

the office building for ratemaking purposes. Furthermore, no property tax expenses 

were substantiated in its general ledger, although $1,152 was included on Citipower's 

1998 annual report to the Commission. Therefore, Staff is disallowing costs directly 
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associated with operating expenses for the office building for rate-making purposes. In 

lieu of depreciation, taxes, and insurance on the office building, Staff has included a 

monthly rent expense of $400 for a total annual expense of $4,800. Staff believes this 

amount is reasonable based on experience with other small utilities. 

Amortization Expense 

In its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower erroneously reported 

$14,670 in Account 406, Amortization of Gas Plant Acquisition Adjustments. In its 

response to the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order, Citipower stated that the 

amortization expense resulted from organizational costs, not a gas plant acquisition 

adjustment. Citipower’s general ledger shows total amortization expense of $1 5,132 in 

contrast to the amount in the annual report of $14,670. 

Citipower’s 1998 annual report to the Commission contains organizational costs 

recorded during the test year in the amount of $73,350. This was identified in the 

supporting schedule of the report on page 5, line 1 as “allocation of original purchase.” 

Citipower’s general ledger shows “Intangible Plant - Goodwill - Other” in the amount of 

$75,648. Citipower provided no supporting workpapers or any explanation of this item. 

Due to the lack of supporting documentation for this item, Staff has excluded recovery 

of amortization expense in the amount of $14,670 for ratemaking purposes. 

Office Supplies and Expense 

In its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower included $10,978 in 

Account 921 , Office Supplies and Expenses. Citipower proposed an adjustment to 

decrease office supplies and expenses by $2,500. However, it did not provide an 
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explanation of its proposed adjustment.13 From Citipower’s general ledger, Staff found 

the following sub-accounts in support of the office supplies and expense account 

balance: 

Sub-Account No. Account Title Account Balance 

921 .I Office Supplies $4,851 

92 I Office Supplies/Exp. - Other 1,352 

$7,148 

921.2 Office Cleaning 945 

Total Account Balance per Citipower’s General Ledger, 1998 

Staff found two items in these accounts that do not belong in operating expenses 

for rate-making purposes. First, check number 1092 was made to Kinko’s on April 4, 

1998 in the amount of $969 for printing “offering memoranda.” This is a cost of securing 

equity capital, not an operating expense. Also, on January 15,1998 a payment was 

made to Merry’s Flower Shop in the amount of $40. While this expense may represent 

a business gift, it is not an operating expense for ratemaking purposes. 

As described in the Miscellaneous General Expense section, costs for 

communications expenses of $14,867, bank charges of $699, and postage and FedEx 

expenses of $2,665 should be reclassified to the Office Supplies and Expenses, 

Account 921. The total amount reclassified is $18,231. Of this total amount 

reclassified, Staff has determined that $8,881 should not be included for ratemaking 

purposes. The portion not included is comprised of $748 from postage and FedEx 

expenses and $8,133 from communications expenses. The disallowed portion of the 

postage and FedEx expense is for a payment to UPS of December 10, 1998 for 

l3 Citipower’s response to Item 3.d. of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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shipping of Christmas gifts. The $8,133 of communications expenses included 

telephone, cellular, and paging services. Because Staff considered the total 

communications expenses extremely high for a utility of Citipower’s size, Staff 

requested support for the amount. Citipower‘s response was that significant costs were 

incurred during the test period for frequent communications with the numerous suppliers 

of components for the distribution system development and the pipeline construction. 

Citipower lacks contemporaneous records for call purposes and the individuals 

responsible for cellular and long-distance calling. A printout of charges for the same 

account for the first nine months of 1999 revealed a significant decline in expenses of 

this nature. Normally, changes for costs reductions outside the test year would not be 

accepted when a historical test period is used and it would be a voluminous task for 

Citipower to reconstruct a detailed analysis of all of the costs. Staff finds that an 

allocation of the 1998 costs based on an annualized proration of the costs for the first 

nine months of 1999 communications expenses provides a reasonable basis for 

estimating an allowable amount of communications expense. The 1999 

communications costs were $7,576 for the first nine months. By annualizing this 

amount, Staff derived a result of $10,101 for 1999. Because Citipower’s operations 

manager and office manager work one-third of their time for Forexco, Staff has 

allocated 66.67 percent of the communications expense to Citipower. Thus, the 

allowable communications expense is $6,734 ($10,101 x .6667 = $6,734). Of the 

amounts reclassified from Miscellaneous Expense to Office Supplies and Expense, 

Staff recommends allowing $9,350. This amount is comprised of $699 from bank 
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charges, $6,734 from communications expense and $1,917 from postage and FedEx 

Sub-Accounts Gen. Ledger Bal. Amount Allowed 

Bank Charges $ 699 $ 699 

Computer Repairs $ 600 $ 600 

Dues/Subscriptions $ 1,029 $ 1,029 

Employee Testing $ 475 $ 475 

Supplies & Repairs $ 114 $ 114 

Postage & FedEx $ 2,665 $ 1,917 

Communication Exp. $14,867 $6,734 

Mea WEntertainment $ 278 $ 240 

expense. 

Disallowed Amt. 

$ -0- 

$ -0- 

$ -0- 

$ -0- 

$ 748 

$ -0- 

$ 8,133 

$ 38 

Accordingly, Staff has increased Account 921 , Office Supplies and Expenses, to 

an adjusted balance of $1 5,489.14 

Miscellaneous General Expense 

In its 1998 annual report Citipower included $31,785 in Account 930.2, 

Miscellaneous General Expenses. Citipower proposed an adjustment to decrease 

Miscellaneous General Expenses by $1 0,000, Citipower‘s explanation of the proposed 

decrease was “Travel, Utilities, Postage, Computer Repairs.” An explanation such as 

this is insufficient for ratemaking purposes. A description or calculation showing the 

derivation of a proposed adjustment, as well as, any external factors having an impact 

on the calculation of an adjustment should be disclosed. 

Following is a table of the adjustments explained above to Citipower’s 

l4 General Ledger Balance of $7,148 - $969 - $40 + 9,350 = $15.489. 
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Travel $( 2,302) $( 2,302) 

Utilities $ 2,080 $ 2,080 

Pest Control $ 497 $ 497 

“Prior Period Adjust.” $1 3,944 $ -0- 

Sub to ta I $34,946 $1 2,083 

Less: 
Reclassifications 
Communication Exp. $14,867 $6,734 

Bank Charges $ 699 $ 699 

Postage & FedEx $ 2.665 $ 1.917 

Total 
Reclassifications $18,231 $ 9,350 

$ -0- 

$ -0- 

$ -0- 

$1 3,944 

$22,863 

$ 8,133 

$ -0- 

$ 748 

$ 8.881 

The above table of sub-accounts within the miscellaneous general expenses, as 

Total Miscellaneous 

reported on Citipower’s general ledger, includes the sub-accounts communications 

expense, bank charges, and postage and FedEx, which should be correctly recorded 

under Account 921 , Office Supplies and Expenses. Staff has reclassified these items to 

office supplies and expenses. A discussion of the amounts in these sub-accounts 

allowable for rate-making purposes was discussed in that section of this report. 

Of the $16,715 remaining in miscellaneous general expenses after the above- 

mentioned reclassification, two sub-accounts include expenses that are not allowable 

for ratemaking purposes. First, Citipower has a sub-account entitled “prior period 

adjustment” in the amount of $13,944. Staff was not provided with any explanation of 

this amount and even so, as an expense related to a prior period, the amount cannot 

pertain to current normalized operations. Therefore, Staff has disallowed the entire sub- 

account balance in the amount of $1 3,944. Additionally, Citipower has a sub-account 
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for meals and entertainment. While, entertainment is a below-the-line expense (not an 

expense in determining net operating income) and not subject to rate recovery, meals 

that apply to operations should be recorded in the appropriate account according to 

FERC account definitions and appropriately identified. Contemporaneous 

documentation of business purpose and place, among the other record-keeping 

requirements, should also be maintained. Investor-related meals identified in this 

account totaling $38 should be recorded in Account 426.5, Other Deductions. The $38 

was not included by Staff in the allowable operating expenses for ratemaking purposes. 

The total miscellaneous general expenses disallowed by Staff and excluded from 

operating expenses after making the reclassification to office supplies and expense is 

$13,982. 

General Advertisinq Expenses 

In its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower included $1,463 in 

Account 930.1 , General Advertising Expenses. Citipower proposed an adjustment to 

decrease general advertising expenses by $500 without an e~p1anation.l~ Upon review 

of Citipower’s general ledger, Staff only found a balance of $259 supporting the general 

advertising expense account. Accordingly, Staff has reduced Account 930. I , General 

Advertising Expenses, by $1,204 due to lack of supporting documentation. 

Transportation Expenses 

In its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower included $18,284 in 

Account 933, Transportation Expenses. Citipower proposed an adjustment to decrease 

l5 - Id. 
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transportation expenses by $3,000; however Citipower did not provide a thorough 

explanation of why the proposed adjustment should be made.16 Citipower’s only 

explanation of the proposed account balance decrease was “Auto Expense, Repair, 

Maintenance, and Gas.” An explanation such as this is insufficient support for 

ratemaking purposes. 

During the test period Citipower operated, maintained, fueled, and kept in repair 

four trucks. As discussed in the section on salaries, wages and other compensation, 

Citipower has been operating with two laborers and an operations manager since the 

completion of the distribution system expansion and pipeline construction in June of 

1999. Since only three personnel remain for normal operations that work in the field, 

Citipower should not be entitled to charge its ratepayers for a fourth vehicle. The 

associated expenses for fuel, maintenance, repairs, taxes, insurance, and other should 

likewise not be included. Staff was not provided any contemporaneous records of 

individual vehicle use and costs. The truck was operated during the test year due to 

extensive construction activities. Therefore, Staff has excluded one-fourth of the 

expense. 

The operations manager provides services for Forexco that requires 

transportation. The services for the affiliated company occupies one-third of his time. 

As previously stated, since Citipower did not provide contemporaneous records of 

vehicle use and costs, Citipower should not be allowed to recover one-third of the 

transportation expenses on the truck used by the operations manager. Following is a 
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computation of the transportation expenses (based on Citipower’s general ledger 

balances) that are being disallowed for rate recovery. 

Su b-Account - Title 
933.1 Automobile Expenses 
933.3 Auto Taxes 
933.4 Repairs & Maintenance 
933.5 I nsurance/Titles/Fees 
933 Other 

Total per general ledger 

Less: One-fourth of total for extra truck expenses 

Subtotal 

Less: One-third of cost related to operations 
manager’s truck 

Allowable transportation expenses 

Staff recommended decrease to expense 
Amount included in test period 

Amount 
$ 2,007 

332 
4,888 
4,039 
5.972 

$ 17,238 

4,309 

$ 12,929 

1.437 

$ 11,492 
$(18,284) 
$( 6.792) 

Maintenance of General Plant 

In its 1998 annual report, Citipower included $16,247 in Account 935, 

Maintenance of General Plant. Citipower proposed an adjustment to decrease 

maintenance of general plant by $3,000 based on cost reductions related to 

maintenance and storage of equipment. As previously mentioned in the section on 

Account 931, Rents, Citipower misposted storage rental expense in the amount of 

$6,000. This $6,000 rental expense was reclassified to Account 931, Rents, then 

reduced as previously discussed. Therefore, this account should be reduced by $6,000 

to an adjusted test year balance of $1 0,247. 
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Depreciation Expense 

Citipower reported total depreciable assets of $3,250,855 at the end of the test 

period. The depreciation schedules provided by Citipower that were prepared by the 

external auditors reflected total depreciable assets of $3,2223 68. Of this amount, 

$1,673,416 was added to plant during the test period. The total depreciation expense 

reported by Citipower for the test period was $117,566. Upon a review of the 

depreciation schedules, staff determined that Citipower was using incorrect service lives 

for many of the plant in service items. Using the appropriate depreciation rates results 

in total annualized depreciation expense of $99,251. Depreciation expense has been 

reduced by $18,315 to reflect annualized depreciation expense based on the proper 

depreciation rates. Schedule 111 hereto, contains an analysis of the depreciation rates 

used by staff to calculate the normalized depreciation expense. Citipower should adjust 

its depreciation records to agree with the depreciable lives included in Schedule 111. 

Information provided in the record and obtained in the field review indicates that 

$1,121,057 of the plant on Citipower’s books consists of a compressor site and steel 

pipeline located in the State of Tennessee and used to provide wholesale gas to 

Citizens. Consequently, these assets are not within the regulatory jurisdiction of the 

Commission and should not be included in the Kentucky jurisdictional rate base for 

Citipower. Staff has removed the $28,952 of annual depreciation expense associated 

with these assets. 

When Citipower purchased the assets of McCreary in 1996, the 1995 balance 

sheet of McCreary reflected total assets at a gross book value of $175,772 that included 

the farm-tap gathering and distribution lines. The McCreary balance sheet was the only 
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source of information on the value of the assets purchased from McCreary. The 

purchase price of all of the assets acquired by Citipower and added to the depreciation 

records in 1996 was $746,268. The purchase contract reflects that a substantial portion 

of the purchase price was for assets other than the assets of McCreary, and for the 

premium paid for the assets above the net book value. However, due to the failure of 

Citipower to supply adequate supporting documentation of the purchase, we can not 

determine the precise amount that Citipower paid for the Kentucky jurisdictional assets. 

Because Citipower has not substantiated the portion of the purchase price to be applied 

to the McCreary assets, Staff has no alternative but to exclude the total amount, or 

include only the portion that was included on McCreary’s balance sheet. Based on 

Staff‘s discussions with Citipower personnel, the assets purchased from McCreary are 

in good working order and are currently being used to supply LDC service to Citipower’s 

customers. Staff, therefore, has included depreciation expense on the gross book value 

of the assets purchased from McCreary. 

Due to the failure of Citipower to record the original cost of the purchased assets 

appropriately, Staff has reduced depreciation expense by $14,262. This amount 

represents the depreciation expense on the difference between the $175,772 of assets 

on the books of McCreary and the $746,268 of assets recorded on the books of 

Citipower during 1996. As stated earlier in this report, Citipower should research the 

purchase price of the McCreary assets and record the purchase in accordance with the 

USoA so that the appropriate level of depreciation and amortization expense can be 

included for ratemaking purposes in future cases. 
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The office building that Citipower and Forexco currently use was purchased in 

1996 from the owners of McCreary. For the same reasons listed above, as well as the 

fact that the property is jointly used by Citipower and its affiliate, Staff does not believe it 

is appropriate to include the recorded value of this property for ratemaking purposes. 

Consequently, Staff has reduced depreciation expense by $3,125. Staff has included 

rent expense in another section of this report to compensate Citipower for the office 

space it uses. 

At the end of the test period, Citipower included four trucks as depreciable 

assets. Based on the reduction of employees discussed elsewhere in this report, and 

the fact that Citipower has reduced the level of new construction since 1998, Staff 

believes it is appropriate to exclude one of these vehicles for ratemaking purposes. The 

oldest of the four vehicles is a 1995 Dodge Truck with a gross depreciable value of 

$17,884 and a useful life of 5 years. Staff has deducted $3,577 from depreciation 

expense to exclude this vehicle. Also, a poition of the vehicle that is used by the 

operations manager should be allocated to Forexco since it is used for both companies’ 

operations. Staff is excluding 1/3 of the depreciation based on the allocation of salary of 

this employee. This adjustment results in a reduction of $1,367 to depreciation 

expense. 

In another section of this order, Staff removed $14,998 of customer hook-up and 

meter installation expenses from expense accounts that should have been capitalized. 

Applying a 30-year depreciable life to these assets will result in an increase to 

depreciation expense of $500. 
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Finally, Staff reclassified some expenses in other sections of this report that 

result in additional depreciation expense. Staff reclassified $36,643 of other plant and 

equipment that had erroneously been charged to expense accounts. This adjustment 

results in $916 of additional annual depreciation expense based on a 40-year useful life. 

Staff reclassified $67,154 of salaries, and wage related expenses that should have been 

capitalized during the test year. The annual depreciation expense associated with 

these reclassified assets, based on a 40-year useful life, is $1,679. These costs are 

related to both the jurisdictional and non-jurisdictional operations of Citipower and 

should be allocated between the two. Because the salaries and wages that are being 

capitalized relate to construction performed during the test year, the basis for allocation 

should be the jurisdictional and non-jurisdictional plant additions for the test year. 

Based on the total plant additions during the test year of $1,673,416 and the portion that 

was constructed during the test year for the Tennessee operations in the amount of 

$1 , 1 10,008, staff has determined that 33.668% of the depreciation expense related to 

these two items is for Kentucky jurisdictional operations. Therefore Staff has included 

$874 (($1,679 + $916) x .33668 = $874)) in additional depreciation for these reclassified 

items. 

The net effect of all of the above adjustments on depreciation expense, is a 

reduction of the test period depreciation expense of $68,224. 

Other Deductions 

Donations. Citipower had $535 in Donations on its 1998 general ledger. These 

amounts were erroneously included as part of Account 930.2, Miscellaneous General 

Expense on Citipower’s annual report to the Commission. These donations were not 

-41- 



addressed in Staffs discussion of Miscellaneous General Expense. -The donations do 

not have an effect on operating expenses since these costs are below-the-line 

expenses. Staff is adjusting the Statement of Revenues and Expenses to include 

donations of $535 appropriately in Account 426.1 , under Other Income (Deductions). 

As stated, donations do not impact Total Gas Operating Expenses or Citipower’s 

revenue requirement determination. 

Other Interest Expense. In its application, Citipower proposed an adjustment to 

increase interest expense by $42,500. Citipower explained that this was an annual 

estimate of the interest to be charged Citipower by the Bank of McCreary on short-term 

financing totaling $500,000.17 The interest was estimated at eight and one-half percent, 

or three-quarters of a percent over the “New York Prime Rate” at the time of the 

application. 

Generally, the Commission does not approve the financing of long-lived plant 

and equipment, or operating expenses with short-term financing. Staff inquired whether 

any studies had “been performed to evaluate the cost effectiveness of short-term loans 

to finance long-lived assets1’.18 Citipower responded that profitability must be achieved 

before the short-term indebtedness could be converted to long-term debt. It also 

reported that no studies or analyses had been performed to evaluate the financing 

method used. As is explained in the revenue requirements section of this report, 

Citipower’s lack of rate base support for equity capital precludes a rate of return on 

l7 Citipower‘s response to Item 5 of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 

l 8  Citipower’s response to Item 2 of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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investment in the revenue requirement determination. The 88 percent operating ratio 

provides sufficient earnings to repay the reported interest. Therefore, Staff does not 

approve the recovery of this proposed request of short-term interest expense and has 

reduced Other Interest Expense by $5,434, leaving only the interest on customer 

deposits in the amount of $1 14. Additionally, Staff reclassifies the Interest on Long-term 

Debt for the automobile loans of $5,851 to Account 427, since it was misposted to 

Account 431. 

Other Adiustments Requested bv Citipower 

“Transmission Expenses: USoA # 751. 752, 754. 756, $72.000.”19 In its 

application and explanation of adjustments, Citipower requested an increase to 

Accounts 751, 752, 754 and 756 for additional natural gas transmission expenses to 

operate the new compressor station for gas delivery to Citizens Gas. As discussed in 

previous sections of this report, revenue and expenses for sales of gas to Citizens Gas 

are outside the jurisdiction of the Commission. Since the requested adjustment for 

transmission expenses is associated with non-jurisdictional revenue, the expenses are 

considered non-jurisdictional, and as such, are not recoverable from Kentucky 

ratepayers. Accordingly, Staff has not included any of the proposed adjustments to 

increase operating expenses. 

Revenue Requirements 

Citipower did not propose a rate of return on rate base approach or the operating 

ratio method to determine its total revenue requirements in this case. The operating 

l9 Citipower’s response to Item 3.d. of the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order. 
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ratio method is used primarily when there is no sound basis for a rate of return 

determination using the required return on capital and rate base method. In order for 

the rate of return on equity to be conceptually valid, capitalization must be closely 

supported by rate base. 

In its 1998 annual report to the Commission, Citipower reported net utility plant of 

$3,007,973 and equity capital, net of accumulated losses, equal to $2,253,688. As 

previously mentioned, Staff noted significant discrepancies in Citpower’s historical 

calculations of depreciation. Also, Staff noted significant unsubstantiated amounts 

Citipower recorded as utility assets from the purchase of McCreary’s assets, that Staff 

cannot accept without more thorough documentation by Citipower. Staff requested 

explanations needed in regard to Citipower’s asset cost allocation from the McCreary 

acquisition, but no adequate supporting information was provided. 

Citipower’s members’ equity consists of limited liability units acquired with cash, 

and equity has been issued to certain owners for services provided (non-cash 

issuances). Citipower was asked prior to the Staff review to provide a schedule of 

members’ equity, a reconciliation of total investments (both cash and non-cash), the 

allocations of losses, and support for the valuation of the services rendered for LLC 

units. No response was provided by Citipower. 

Without answers to these issues, Staff does not have the information necessary 

to provide the Commission with an informed decision as to the appropriateness of using 

a required return on capital and rate base. Therefore, Staff believes that the operating 

ratio method is the only appropriate method that can be used to determine revenue 

requirements in this case. 
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The Commission generally uses an 88 percent operating ratio to determine a 

reasonable level of earnings for small utilities. Applying the operating ratio to the Staff 

adjusted operating expenses results in a total revenue requirement of $365,914. This 

revenue requirement is before adjustments for the additional PSC assessment fees 

($27) and uncollectible accounts ($9). The total revenue requirement after 

consideration of these items is $365,950. Staff computed normalized revenues based 

on the adjusted test period sales and current rates of $175,284. This includes revenue 

from sales and revenue from late payment fees. The revenue produced by the 

proposed rates including the revenues from late payment fees is $215,750. (See 

Schedule IV.) Therefore, Staff recommends an increase in operating revenue of 

$40,466. Although the proposed rates will not produce sufficient revenues to meet the 

total revenue requirement, due to the uncertainties that exist with the appropriate costs, 

Staff recommends no additional increase. 

Following is a calculation of the revenue requirement: 
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* 
Total Gas Operating Expenses 

Less: Purchased Gas Expense 

Subtotal 

Operating Ratio 

Subtotal 

Add: Purchased Gas Expense 
Interest Expense on Customer Deposits 

Less: Miscellaneous Service Revenues 

Revenue Requirement From Rates 

Uncollectible Accounts 0.054800% 

PSC Assessment Fee ($1.667 per $1,000 of Revenue) 0.166700% 

Total Revenue Requirement 

Normalized Revenues 

Increase Required 

329,288 

57,953 

271,335 

88% 

308.335 

57,953 
114 

488 

365,914 

9 

27 

$ 365,950 

174,796 

$ 191,154 

Staff Recommendations 

Included in this report are several items of concern to Staff that.will require 

Citipower to take corrective action in order to be in compliance with the Commission’s 

rules and regulations and Kentucky Statutes. Citipower should take the appropriate 

steps to become familiar with the Kentucky Revised Statutes and the Commission’s 

Administrative Regulations in order to comply with same. 
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I O .  Financial Reporting - In order to monitor the progress of compliance with 

the recommendations in this report, Citipower should file quarterly financial reports to 

the Commission. The reports should include, at a minimum, a comparative balance 

sheet and detailed income statement. Staff will work with Citipower to develop any 

additional schedules deemed necessary. 

11. GCA Filings - Citipower should develop a procedure to track gas costs 

and submit quarterly GCA filings in accordance with their tariff. 

12. Unauthorized Rates - Citipower should immediately discontinue charging 

any rate for regulated utility services that has not been approved by the Commission. 

13. 1999 Financial Statements - The adjustments and concepts contained in 

the corrections to the 1998 financial statements contained in this report should be 

considered and included in the preparation of financial statements for 1999. 

14. Plan For Compliance With Recommendations -Within 30 days of the final 

Order in this case, Citipower should file a plan to comply with the recommendations in 

this report. 

Sinnatures: 
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Schedule 1 
Pro Forma Income Statement 

Test Year End 

Acd. Balances Per Staff Staff Recommended 

No. Account Title Annual Report Adjustments Test Year Balances 

Operating Revenues: 
481, 482 Retail Sales $ 131,288 $ 43,508 $ 174,796 

483 
489 

730 
76 1 
762 
764 
768 
769 
901 
902 
903 
904 
907 
908 
920 
92 1 
923 
924 
925 
926 
928 

930.1 
930.2 
931 
933 
935 

403 
404 

408.1 

415 
416 
419 
42 1 

426.1 
427 
431 

Sales for Resale 
Miscellaneous Service Revenues 
Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Natural Gas Purchases 
Distribution Supervision 
Distribution Mains 8 Svcs. Labor 
Customer Installation Expenses 
Maintenance of Meters & Regulators 
Maintenance of Other Plant 
Meter Reading Labor 
Accounting 8 Collecting Labor 
Supplies and Expenses 
Uncollectible Accounts 
Customer Svc. 8, Informational Expenses 
Customer Assistance Expenses 
Administrative 8 General Expenses 
Office Supplies and Expenses 
Outside Services Employed 
Property Insurance 
Injuries and Damages 
Employee Pensions & Benefits 
Regulatory Commission Expenses 
General Advertising Expenses 

Rents 
Transportation Expenses 
Maintenance of General Plant 
Total Operating 8 Maintenance Expenses 
Depreciation Expense 
Amortization Expense 
Taxes Other Than lncome Taxes 
Total Gas Operating Expenses 
Net Operating Income 

Miscellaneous General Expenses . .  

Other Income (Deductions): 
Jobbing Revenue 
Jobbing Expenses 
Interest Income 
Miscellaneous Nonoperating Income 
Donations 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 
Other Interest Expense 
Total Other Income (Deductions) 

NET INCOME 

54,276 
26,177 

21 1.741 

104.378 

8,063 
14,998 
1,950 

34,693 

14,713 
676 
72 

454,375 
10,978 
77,673 
7,642 

16,350 
3,795 

1,463 
31,785 

18,284 
16.247 

818,135 
117,566 
14,670 
15,744 

$ 966.1 15 
(754,374) 

5,103 
6 

(11,399) 
(6,290) 

$ (760,664) 

(54,276) 
(25,689) 
(36,457) 

(46,425) 
20,773 
19,422 

(14,998) 
(1,950) 

(34,693) 
9.161 

12,075 
(85) 
24 

(414,365) 
4,511 

(60,864) 
71 2 

(12,244) 
5,713 

(1,204) 
(29,052) 

6,600 
(6,792) 
(6,000) 

(549,681) 
(68,224) 
(14,670) 

488 
175.284 

57,953 
20,773 
27,485 

9,161 
26,788 

591 
96 

40,010 
15,489 
16,809 
8,354 
4,106 
9,508 

259 
2,733 
6,600 

11,492 
10,247 

268,454 
49,342 

. . ,  
600,370 

7,597 

11,285 
18,882 

$ 619,252 

11,492 
$ 329,288 

(154,004) 

7,597 

5,103 
6 

(114) 
12,592 

(141,412) $ 
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SCHEDULE 111 
Depreciation Schedule 

Office Building 
Office Furniture & Equip. 
Trucks (4) 
Compressor Site - TN rev.('98 add'n) 
Equip. Ditchwitch, Other 
Meters 
Reg. Odorant Station 
Pipeline, 1" & 2" 
Pipeline, 3" 
Pipeline, 4" 
Pipeline, 6" 
Steel Pipeline to TN 
Annualized Staff Total 

ADJUSTMENTS 
A. Compressor Site 

Steel Pipeline 
Total in Tennessee 

B. McCreary Purchase 
Citipower's Assets-l996= 
Gross Book Value= 
Difference (Non-allowable) 

C. Office Building 
D. 1995 Dodge Truck 
E. Reclassified Customer Hook-up and 

Meter Installation Expenses 
F. Reclassified from Maintenance 

Accounts 768 and 769 
G. Reclassified Salaries and Wage 

Related Expenses 
H. Nonjurisdictional Reclassifications 
I. 33.3% Allocation for Forexco Use 

of 1995 Toyota Forerunner 

Per Auditor 
Staff Staff Prepared Staff 

Estimated Depreciation Schedule Computed 
Useful Rate TOTAL Annual 
Lives Used COST Deweciation 

40 years 
5-1 5 years 

5 years 
30 years 
30 years 
30 years 
30 years 
40 years 
40 years 
40 years 
40 years 
40 years 

0.025 
.2-.066 

0.2 
0.033 
0.033 
0.033 
0.033 
0.025 
0.025 
0.025 
0.025 
0.025 

125,000 
9,177 

87,311 
1 11,094 
49,970 

195,853 
7,321 

307,695 
246,154 
583,664 
488,966 

1,009,963 
3,222,168 

3,125 
612 

17,462 
3,703 
1,666 
6,528 

244 
7,692 
6,154 

14,592 
12,224 
25,249 
99,251 

(111,094) (3,703) 
(1,009,963) (25,249) 
(1,121,057) (28,952) 

40 years 
$746,268 
$175,772 

(570,496) 
40 years (125,000) 
5 years (17,884) 
30 years 14,998 

40 years 36,643 

40 years 67,154 

(1 4,262) 
(3,125) 
(3,577) 

500 

916 

1,679 

(1,721) 
(1,367) 

Total Plant in Service in Kentucky and Total Depreciation 1,506,526 49,342 



SCHEDULE IV 

Revenue under Proposed Rates 
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Schedule V 
Allocation of Normalized Salaries and Wages 

1998 

Reg. Hrs. OT Hrs. 

2,200.50 21 .OO Office Manager 
1,084.50 - Office Assistant 
2,166.80 138.00 Laborer 1, "normalized" 

819.00 142.50 Laborer 2, "normalized" 

Salaried Operations Manager 

1998 Normalized Citipower Citipower 

Total Pay Total Pay Alloc. % Alloc. $ 
~~ 

$ 62,316 62,316 66.67% 41,546 
$ 18,108 18.108 66.67% 12,073 
$ 7.552 7,552 100% 7,552 
$ 26,566 18,296 100% 18,296 
$ 7,929 18,350 100% 18,350 

Allocated from Forexco (McCue 8 Lawson) 

$ 97,817 
$ 26,400 

Adjusted And Normalized Citipower Wages $ 124.217 

Note that the 1998 Salaries and Wages of the operations manager, office 
manager and office assistant are accepted by Staff as a normal annual 
representation. 

Normalized 760, Distr. 761, 901, CA, 902, CA 920, CA 

Reg. Hrs. OT Hrs. Total Pay Supervision Labor Mtr. Reading Acct./Coll. AdminJGenl. 
Salaried Operations Manager 62,316 $ 20,773 $ 20,773 
2,200.50 21.00 Office Manager 18,108 $ 6,036 $ 6,037 
1,084.50 - Office Assistant 7,552 $ 7,552 

2,080.00 138.00 Laborer 1, "normalized 18,296 $ 13,722 $ 4,574 . .  

2,080.00 142.50 Laborer 2. "normalized" 18.350 $ 13,763 $ 4,587 

$ 97,817 $ 20,773 $ 27,485 $ 9,161 $ 13,588 $ 26,810 

Allocated from Forexco (McCue 8 Lawson) $ 26,400 $ 13,200 $ 13,200 

Adjusted And Normalized Citipower Wages $ 124,217 $ 20,773 $ 27,485 $ 9,161 $ 26,788 $ 40,010 

Normalized Total Pay at 

Reg. Hrs. OT Hrs. $8 / Per Hour 

2,080.00 138.00 Laborer 1, "normalized" $ 18,296 

2,080.00 142.50 Laborer 2, "normalized" $ 18,350 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 
FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 

(502) 564-3940 

November 17, 1999 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 99-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

A 

Secretary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



. 
‘David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 . 

Corbin, KY 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Honorable Teresa J. Hill 
Counsel for Citipower, LLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin, KY 40701 



. .  

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 1 CASE NO. 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE RATE ) 99-225 
FILING PROCEDURE FOR SMALL UTILITIES ) 

O R D E R  

On November 5, 1999, Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) filed a Motion for an 

Extension of Time to Respond to the Request for Information. Citipower requested an 

additional extension of time of 20 days after November IO, 1999 or until November 30, 

1999 in which to file its response to the Commission’s Order of October 27, 1999. This 

is the second request for an extension of time filed in this case by Citipower. The 

Commission will not look favorably upon any further requests for extensions of time. 

The Commission being otherwise sufficiently advised, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the motion is granted and the responses to the 

Order of October 27, 1999 are due on or before November 30, 1999. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 17th day of November, 1999. 

By the Commission 

ATTFST: F (-y5+- p .*- 
xecuti e Director 



I . s 

1 3 1  II 
I brJ 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE . I * I,,- .~ 

; I 7 KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, 1 

PURSUANT TO: 807 KAR 5:076 1 
ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING ) CASE NO. 99-225 

~ L. L. C. FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT ) 

MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME 
TO RESPOND TO PSC'S REOUlEST FOR INFORMAT ION 

Comes now, Citipower, LLC, the Applicant in the above-styled matter, and 

respectfully requests an extension of an additional 20 days to respond to the Request 

for Information propounded by the Kentucky Public Service Commission on 

October 27, 1999, and due November 10, 1999. Citipower, LLC, would request an 

additional 20 days so that said Response will be due on or before November 30,1999. 

In support of said Motion, Citipower, LLC, would state that the extension 

would allow Citipower, LLC, adequate time to respond. Also, a hearing date in this 

matter has not yet been set, therefore, an extension of time would not cause undue 

prejudice to any of the parties nor the PSC. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

Attorney for  Applicant, Citipower, LLC 
(606) 528-3073 

Cli en t/Ci t i powe r/Res ponse . to .At ty . Gen . Rate 1 



CERTIFICATE 
trr 

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing was on the 5 day of November, 
1999, served by mailing the original and true and exact copies of same, all postage 
prepaid, addressed for delivery to: 

Ms. Helen C. Helton 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P.O. Box615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

Hon. Elizabeth E. Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 2 
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 
FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 

(502) 564-3940 

October 27, 1999 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 99-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, I 

Secketary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



'David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, ICY 40702 I 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 

~ Whitley City, KY 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Honorable Teresa J. Hill 
Counsel for Citipower, LLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin. KY 40701 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 1 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASE NO. 99-225 
RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR ) 
SMALL UTILITIES 1 

O R D E R  

IT IS ORDERED that Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) shall file within 14 days of the 

date of this Order an original and 10 copies of the following information with the 

Commission, with a copy to all parties of record. Each copy of the data requested 

should be placed in a bound volume with each item tabbed. When a number of sheets 

are required for an item, each sheet should be appropriately indexed, for example, Item 

l (a) ,  Sheet 2 of 3. Include with each response the name of the witness who will be 

responsible for responding to questions relating to the information provided. Careful 

attention should be given to copied material to ensure that it is legible. Where 

information requested herein has been provided along with the original application, in 

the format requested herein, reference may be made to the specific location of said 

information in responding to this information request. 

1. Provide a copy of Citipower’s 1998 audited financial statements, complete 

with the independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements. 



2. Provide a copy of Forexco, Inc.’s (“Forexco”) 1998 audited financial 

statements, complete with the independent auditor’s report and notes to financial 

statements. 

i 

3. Provide a copy of Citipower’s internally prepared monthly and/or quarterly 

financial statements for any periods available in 1999. If readily available, provide 

internal financial statements for the twelve months ended September 30, 1999. 

~ 

i 

4. Provide a copy of Citipower’s limited liability company (“LLC”) articles of 

organization and the “organizational documenW (if different), referred to in Citipower‘s 

response to Item 7 of the Commission’s Order of August 3, 1999. 

5. Provide a copy of all sale/purchase agreement(@ or contract(s) for the 

purchase of McCreary County Gas’s assets, whether the agreement(s) or contract(s) is 

with Citipower and/or Forexco. 

6. Explain the original transaction for the purchase of McCreary County 

Gas’s assets. 

a. Provide a copy of the journal entries to record the acquisition of 

McCreary County Gas’s assets, whether posted to Citipower’s or Forexco’s books and 

records, or both. 

b. Provide copies of any agreements, entered subsequent to the 

original purchase of McCreary County Gas’s assets, for transfer of any “former” 

McCreary County Gas assets from Forexco to Citipower or vice versa. 

c. Provide a copy of McCreary County Gas’s depreciation schedule 

used to record the original cost to the first user of the assets. 
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d. Provide the depreciation schedule, which contains the amount of 

accumulated depreciation that was posted to Citipower’s or Forexco’s books at the time 

of the acquisition. 

7. Provide a copy of Citipower’s depreciation schedules, detailed by 

individual asset description, date of purchase, original cost, useful life, method of 

depreciation, depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation for the years ended 

December 31 , 1997 and December 31 , 1998. 

8. Provide a copy of Citipower‘s projected depreciation schedule in the same 

detail as set out in Item 7 above for the 1999 calendar year. 

9. Provide a copy of Citipower‘s initial balance sheet after recording the 

acquisition of McCreary County Gas and the initial capitalization of the company. 

I O .  Provide a copy of Citipower‘s chart of accounts, year-to-date general 

ledger and supporting ledger of original entry for posting revenues and expenses for the 

test period, calendar year 1998. 

a. If Citipower records expenses on its general ledger from an 

accounts payable ledger, provide a copy of that ledger(s) for the test period, calendar 

year 1998. 

b. If Citipower records expenses on its general ledger from a cash 

disbursements journal, provide a copy of that journal(s) for the test period, calendar 

year 1998. 

11. Provide a summary of salaries and wages for Citipower during the test 

period, calendar year 1998. Include details of salaries and wages as follows: 
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a. For each employee provide the total hours worked, the regular I 

hours and the overtime hours. 

b. 

c. Total pay during 1998. 

d. 

e. 

Pay rates during 1998 (regular and overtime). 

Provide a list of accounts charged. 

Provide the date and amounts of pay rate changes for each 

employee during 1998 and 1999. 

f. For each employee hired or terminated during 1998, provide the 

hire date and the termination date if applicable. 

g. Provide any significant changes in personnel from 1998 to 1999. If 

a change was to create a new position, describe the reason the new job was needed. 

h. Provide any significant changes in personnel time requirements 

from 1998 to 1999 and describe the reason for the need of the new time requirements. 

12. Provide a summary of any salaries and wages paid to Citipower 

employees for work performed for Forexco during the test period, calendar year 1998. 

Include details of salaries and wages as follows: 

a. For each employee provide the hours worked, specifying how many 

are at regular rates and how many are at overtime rates. 

b. 

c. Total pay during 1998. 

Pay rates during 1998 (regular and overtime). 

d. A description of the work performed, including why this work could 

not be performed by a Forexco employee. 
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I .  

e. Explain whether or not this work will be required of Citipower 

employees in future years. 

13. Provide a summary of any salaries and wages paid to Forexco employees 

for work performed for Citipower during the test period, calendar year 1998. Include 

details of salaries and wages as follows: 

a. For each employee provide the hours worked, specifying how many 

are at regular rates and how many are at overtime rates. Also, provide the total hours 

this employee worked for Forexco during the year. 

b. 

c. 

Pay rates during 1998 (regular and overtime). 

Total pay during 1998 (amount allocated to Citipower and total for 

both companies). 

d. A description of the work performed, including why this work could 

not be performed by a Forexco employee. 

e. Explain whether or not this work will be required of Forexco 

employees in future years, as ongoing utility service. 

14. Refer to Citipower’s response to Item 3 of the Commission’s Order of 

August 3,1999, Exhibit B, Schedule A-I. Provide a schedule cross-referencing and 

reconciling salaries and wages from 1998 on Citipower‘s books as adjusted and 

reported on the annual report to the Commission for 1998 (labor accounts 761 , 902 and 

920) with the summary of responses Items 12,13 and 14 above. 

15. Refer to Citipower’s response to question 4 of the Attorney General’s data 

request of July 16, 1999, which states that Citipower purchases all of its natural gas 

from Forexco at fair market prices. 
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Citipower. 

suppliers. 

16. 

e e 
a. 

b. 

Explain how the affiliated purchase price is derived. 

Provide a copy of the gas purchase contract between Forexco and 

c. Provide copies of any other contracts between Citipower and gas 

Refer to Citipower’s responses to Items 1 O(c) and 19 of the Commission’s 

Order of August 3, 1999. 

a. Are the customer hook-ups mentioned in the responses, extensions 

of 100 feet or less of service lines from the company’s existing distribution mains to the 

customer? 

b. If yes, is the company aware of Kentucky regulation 807 KAR 5022 

Section 9(16)(a), which prohibits a gas utility from charging customers for service line 

extensions of 100 feet or less if the customer applies for and contracts to use service for 

one year or more? 

c. 

On October 1, 1999, page one of the “City & Region” section of The 

Lexinqton Herald-Leader contained an article entitled “McCreary prison project to start 

by April 2000.” In that article, James B. Jones, deputy assistant director of the Federal 

Bureau of Prisons, states that construction should be finished by the summer of 2002. 

In Citipower’s response to Item 14 of the Commission’s Order of August 3, 1999, a 

forecast of total gas sales is provided. 

If no, explain the nature of the hook-up. 

17. 

I 1 
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a. Explain any assumptions in the forecast of gas sales for the level of 

gas expected to be sold to the prison as a public customer. Include a discussion of the 

likelihood that the prison will become a customer of Citipower. 

. b. If the assumptions are not consistent with the announcement of the 

expected completion of the prison construction, provide a revised forecast of gas sales. 

c. Provide a forecast of gas sales for the same period without the 

projected usage and sales from the prison. 

d. Provide a detailed schedule and explanation of additional capital 

costs and annual operating expenses that would be incurred to provide natural gas 

service to the prison. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 27th day of October, 1999. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 

t 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40602 
www.psc.state.ky.us 

(502) 564-3940 

August 30, 1999 

Lee Hill 
Brown & Hill, PLLC 
1005 S. Main Street, S-101 
Corbin KY 40701 

RE: Citipower, LLC 
Case No. 99-225 
Petition for Confidential Protection 

Dear Mr. Hill, 

On August 9, 1999 the Commission received the petition filed on behalf of 
Citipower, LLC to protect as confidential information filed in response to the 
Attorney General's data requests. A review of the information has determined 
that it is entitled to the protection requested on the grounds relied upon in the 
petition and it shall be withheld from public inspection. 

If the information becomes publicly available or no longer warrants confidential 
treatment, you are required by 807 KAR 5:001, Section 7(9)(a) to inform the 
Commission so that the information may be placed in the public record. 

Helen C. Helton 
Executive Director 

cc: All parties of record 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 615 
FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 

(502) 564-3940 

August 30, 1999 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 99-2.25 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission’s Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Bell 
Secretary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 
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President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY 40702 

*,David K. Brock 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. BOX 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Counsel, Citipower LLC 
Brown & Hill, PLLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin, KY 40701 

e 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASE NO. 99-225 
RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR 
SMALL UTI LIT1 ES 

1 

O R D E R  

Citipower, LLC having moved for an extension of time until September 7, 1999 in 

which to respond to the Commission’s August 3, 1999 Order and the Commission finding 

good cause, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the motion is granted. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 30th day of August, 1999. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 



BROWN & HILL, PLLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1005 S .  MAIN STREET, SUITE 10 1 
CORBIN, KENTUCKY 40701 

ROBERT L. BROWN I11 
TERESA J. HILL 

VIA CERTIFIED M A I L  

August 25,1999 

Ms. Susan Hutcherson 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P. 0. Box 615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

RE: Application of Citipower, LLC. for Rate Adjustment; Case No. 99-225 
Motion for Extension of Time 

Dear Ms. Hutcherson: 

Pursuant to our conversation on today’s date, enclosed please find an original 
Motion for the case file. It is my understanding that the PSC will rule on the copy of 
the motion which was faxed to your attention today. 

I appreciate your assistance in this matter, and should you have any questions 
or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, , 

Enclosure 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE 

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, ) 
L. L. C. FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT ) 
PURSUANT TO: 807 KAR 5:076 ) 
ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING ) CASE NO. 99-225 

MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME 
TO RESPOND TO PSC'S REOUEST FOR INFORMATION 

Comes now, Citipower, LLC, the Applicant in the above-styled matter, and 

respectfully requests an extension of an additional 20 days to respond to the Request 

for Information propounded by the Kentucky Public Service Commission on 

August 3, 1999, and due August 17, 1999. Citipower, LLC, would request an 

additional 20 days so that said Response will be due on or before September 7,1999. 

In support of said Motion, Citipower, LLC, would state that the extension 

would allow Citipower, LLC, adequate time to respond. Also, a hearing date in this 

matter has not yet been set, therefore, an extension of time would not cause undue 

prejudice to any of the parties nor the PSC. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

Attorney for Applicant, Citipower, LLC 
(606) 528-3073 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 1 



CERTIFICATE 
13- 

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing was on the & day of August, 
1999, served by mailing the original and true and exact copies of same, all postage 
prepaid, addressed for delivery to: 

Ms. Helen C. Helton 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P.O. Box615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

Hon. Elizabeth E. Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

I futher certify that this motion was re-mailed to the above on this the 25th 
day of August, 1999. 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 2 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE 

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, ) 
L. L. C. FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT ) 
PURSUANT TO: 807 KAR 5:076 ) 
ALTERNATIVE RATE FILING ) CASE NO. 99-225 

MOT ION TO PROT ECT MAT ERIAL AS CONFID ENTIAL, 
TO ATTORNEY GENERAL'S 

REQU ESTS FO R INFORMATION 

Comes now, Citipower, LLC, the Applicant in the above-styled matter, 

pursuant to 807 KAR 5.001 Section 7, and moves the Kentucky Public Service 

Commission to classify as confidential certain information provided to the Public 

Service Commission in response to the Attorney General's Request for Information 

filed July 16,1999. 

Applicant would state that certain information sought by the Attorney 

General (specifically identified in the attached and highlighted copy of the response), 

requires disclosure of information presently unknown to the public and competitors 

and represents financial records and documents which if disclosed to competitors, 

could cause irreparable harm to Citipower, LLC. Kentucky Revised Statute 61.878 (c) 

(1) provides that certain records can be kept confidential including those "[rlecords 

confidentially disclosed to an agency, generally recognized as confidential or 

proprietary, which if openly disclosed would permit an unfair commercial 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen .Rate 1 



advantage to competitors of the entity that disclosed the records and which are 

compiled and maintained: b. In conjunction with the regulation of a commercial 

,I enterprise . . . . 

In the response to requests for information, Citipower, LLC, on page 1 of 17, 

has provided additional information in the form of an introduction, explaining the 

relationship between Forexco, Inc., and Citipower, LLC, and the services that 

Forexco, Inc., provides to Citipower, LLC, free of compensation. As this information 

was provided voluntarily, in an effort to aid the Public Service Commission better 
- e. 

understand the relationship between Forexco and Citipower, LLC, and because the 

compensation and the role of Forexco’s employees is not public knowledge, 

Citipower requests that said information be kept confidential. 

On page 2 of 17, Citipower has disclosed the information relating to the 

compensation of Daniel Forsberg and Guy Strevey. 

On page 3 of 17, Box 4, reveals a percentage amount of allocations of salaries 

for Forexco employees providing services to Citipower. 

On page 4 of 17, Box 4A-C, reveals the annual compensation of Forexco 

employees. 

On page 5 of 17, Box 5 and Box 5D-E, reveals salaries of Citipower employees. 

On page 6 of 17, Box 7 reveals compensation of Citipower employees. 

On page 9 of 17, Box A reveals compensation paid for legal services. 

Citipower, LLC would ask that the Public Service Commission classify as 

confidential the above referenced information as it relates to salaries and 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 2 



compensation in actual amounts paid to Citipower employees and /or Forexco 

employees. Both Citipower and Forexco are privately owned, for-profit corporations 

which hire and pay personnel in a competitive marketplace. Citipower, LLC, is 

located in a market in which it is difficult to find trained personnel, and revealing 

salaries allows competitors to compare their salary rates and gives competitors an 

unfair advantage in determining what to pay their own personnel or in attempts to 

hire away key personnel of Citipower, LLC. 
. r  

In the case of Marin a Management Service s. Inc.. e t a1 v. Cab inet for Tourism 

JIeDartment of Parks, Ky., 906 S.W.2d 318, 319 (1995), the Kentucky Supreme Court 

recognized and upheld the confidentiality of financial records of private 

corporations (the marinas) which were submitted pursuant to a license agreement 

with the State. The financial records of the marinas were in the possession of the 

Tourism Cabinet and were requested by the Legislative Program Review and 

Investigation Committee (LPRIC). The circuit court allowed the LPRIC not only to 

receive the documents but also disclose them to the public. The appellate court 

upheld the circuit court's decision, but the Kentucky Supreme Court overturned the 

decision, finding the documents were excluded as being open to the public under 

KRS 61.878(1) (c) (1). 

The Court wrote: "These are records of privately owned marina operators, 

disclosure of which would unfairly advantage competing operators. The most 

obvious disadvantage may be the ability to ascertain the economic status of the 

entities without the hurdles systematically associated with the acquisition of such 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 3 



information about privately owned organizations.” 

Likewise, the information disclosed by Citipower, LLC, and Forexco, Inc., to 

the PSC relating to salaries and compensation of its key personnel would allow 

competitors to ascertain the status of the entities. In the Marina M- 

Services, Inc., case, suprG the Court further recognized that the LPRIC could use the 

information obtained without disclosing the information to the general public. 

“The legislature recognizes that the purposes of the Committee can still be achieved 

without requiring disclosure of documents deemed confidential, not only by the 
-. ,. 

company whose financial data is in question, but also by the public agency in 

possession of those documents.” Id. 

In the case at bar, all of the information disclosed can by used and evaluated 

by the Public Service Commission for its purposes, without any need of 

dissemination to the general public, which would include competitors of Citipower, 

LLC. 

As it relates to the legal services provided and the sums received, Citipower, 

LLC, requests that the type of legal services sought by Citipower, LLC and said 

amounts paid be kept confidential under the privilege of attorney-client 

information. As set out in the Marina case, $upra, such information, if disseminated 

to the general public and competitors, shows the issues that the private corporation 

faces, and allows others the unfair advantage of determining the type of legal issues 

and the amount to be paid in this market for those issues in this type of business 

through looking at Citipower’s private records and information. Said information 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 4 



can be used by the PSC for its purposes, but should be exempted under KRS 61.878(1) 

(4 (1). 

For all the foregoing reasons, Citipower, LLC, respectfully requests that all 

financial information relating to the compensation and salaries of Citipower, LLC 

and/or Forexco, Inc.’s employees, as specified in the Responses above, be deemed 

confidential and exempt under KRS 61.878(1) (c) (1) and not open for disclosure to 

the public. 
_ -  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

Attorney for  Applicant, Citipower, LLC 
(606) 528-3073 

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing was on the day of August, 
1999, served by mailing the original and 10 true and exact copies of same, all postage 
prepaid, addressed for delivery to: 

Ms. Helen C. Helton 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P.O. Box615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

and 1 copy, all postage prepaid to: 

Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 5 



Hon. Elizabeth E. Blackford 
~ 0 Assistant Attorney General 

1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

B R O W N ~ ~ L L ,  PLLC 

I Client/Citipower/Response.to.Atty.Gen.Rate 6 



COMMONWEALTH O F  KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 

FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 
(502) 564-3940 

August 3, 1999 

To: All parties of record 

RE: Case No. 99-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Bell 
Secretary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



, David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
' Assistant Attorney General 
1 1024 Capital Center Drive 
1 Frankfort, KY 40601 

Honorable Robert L. Brown 
Counsel, Citipower LLC 
Brown & Hill, PLLC 
1005 S. Main Street, Suite 101 
Corbin, KY 40701 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 1 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASENO. 
RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR ) 
SMALL UTILITIES ) 

O R D E R  

9-225 

IT IS ORDERED that Citipower, LLC ("Citipower") shall file within 14 days from 

the date of this order an original and 10 copies of the following information with the 

Commission, with a copy to all parties of record. Each copy should be in a bound 

volume with each item tabbed. When a number of sheets are required for an item, each 

sheet should be indexed, for example, Item 3(a), Sheet 2 of 6. Include with each 

response the name of the witness responsible for responding to questions relating to 

the information provided. Careful attention should be given to copied material to ensure 

that it is legible. If information requested herein has been provided in the original 

application, in the format requested herein, reference may be made to that information 

in responding to this request. 

, 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Citipower shall also file its response to the July 

16, 1999 information request of the Attorney General of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

by no later than 14 days from the date of this order. 



1. Provide an affidavit from the president or other corporate officer attesting 

that Citipower‘s books and records are maintained separately from any other commonly 

owned enterprise. 

2. Have any studies been performed to evaluate the cost effectiveness of 

short-term financing used by Citipower to finance long-lived assets? If yes, provide 

such studies. If no, explain why such studies have not been performed. 

3. Refer to Attachment A to Section 111 of the application. 

a. Provide the exhibit of increased cost information using the Uniform 

System of Accounts (“USoA), which is the system of accounts reflected in the annual 

report filed with the Commission. 

b. Provide total revenues, including wholesale gas sales, according to 

the USoA. 

c. Provide total gas purchases, including purchases for wholesale 

Show any adjustments in the sales, as well as gas purchases for retail sales. 

determination of natural gas purchases for retail or wholesale sales with a footnote 

referencing a schedule or workpaper where the adjustment is calculated. 

d. Provide all increased cost information classified according to the 

USoA along with a brief explanation for the increases, together with any supporting 

documentation. 

e. Provide projected revenues and requested expenses adjusted for 

increased cost adjustments classified according to the USoA. 

-2- I 
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4. Provide an exhibit setting forth Citipower‘s determination of its revenue 

requirement, as well as an explanation of the methodology used, i.e., operating ratio, 

return on rate base, etc. 

5. Refer to Attachment A. Provide a computation determining the estimated 

interest expense for the adjusted test period. 

6. Refer to Attachment A. 

a. Provide the depreciation expense (Account 403) broken out 

separately from the amortization expense (Accounts 404407) according to the M O A  

accounts. 

b. Explain whether any amortization expense results from either a 

plant acquisition adjustment or organizational costs. 

c. If any amortization expense results from a plant acquisition 

adjustment, provide the supporting adjusting journal entry recording the plant acquisition 

adjustment on Citipower‘s books. 

7. Refer to Attachment A. Why is “Officers Comp/Consulting” considered a 

noncash expense in the exhibit? 

8. Explain the differences in classes of “Members’ Capital Contributions,’’ as 

reported in the 1998 Annual Report to the Commission. 

9. Has a cost-of-service study assessing the appropriateness of a flat rate 

billing structure compared to alternative billing structures been prepared in association 

with this application? If yes, provide the study. If no, provide an explanation for why no 

study was performed. 

! -3- 
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10. Refer to Section Ill, Attachment A, of the application, the first line headed 

“Gas Sales - Citipower Customers” and the third line headed “Other Revenues.” Both 

have a short narrative statement that refers to the addition of 70 customers. 

a. Provide a more thorough explanation of the additional 70 

customers. Over what period of time were they added? How do they break down by 

customer classification (residential, commercial, or industrial)? 

b. The application was filed June 3, 1999. As of June 1, 1999, 

provide the total number of Citipower customers, broken down by customer I 

I 
classification. 

c. The increase amount of $175,638 for “Gas Sales - Citipower 

Customers” does not agree with the $28,010 revenue increase calculated in Section 111, 

Attachment E. Provide a thorough explanation for the amount of increase shown on 

Attachment A along with a description of the “Other Revenues” of $26,177, and a more 

detailed explanation for the projected $1 9,275 increase to those revenues. 

d. Refer to the Expenses portion of Attachment A - the first line 

headed ‘Cost of Goods Sold - Citipower Customers.” Provide a thorough explanation 

of the derivation of the actual amount of $54,669 and the calculation of the projected 

increase of $33,771. 

11. Refer to Section Ill, Attachment E. Explain why the Revenue Analysis - 
Proposed Rate Structure does not include the Mcfs currently billed under the minimum 

bill in its calculation of the Total Revenue generated under the proposed rates. 



12. Refer to Section 111, Attachment B. In what manner were the pipelines 

constructed? Provide copies of the feasibility studies, bid documents, and construction 

specifications. 

13. Provide topographic maps showing the route of the steel pipelines, the 

location of the compressor station and the Citipower distribution system. 

14. Provide the forecast of total gas production and total gas sales for 1999- 

2004. 

15. Explain how the gas compressor is used in the operation of the Citipower 

system. Do any customers in Kentucky receive gas downstream from the compressor'? 

Explain whether the compressor is mainly used to transport gas for Citizens Gas. 

16. 

pipeline? Explain. 

17. 

Are there any customers in Kentucky tapped into the 6-inch or 4-inch steel 

Refer to Section 111, Attachment B. Provide the construction contract and 

maps for the 1998 and 1999 projects. 

18. Refer to Section IV, Tab A. Explain whether the $1,500 per month 

represents the total lease and operation costs for the compressor? If yes, explain why, 

on Attachment A, the adjusted increased cost information for compressor maintenance 

is $72,000 annually. If no, provide supporting documentation and a thorough 

explanation of the additional costs and expenses. 

19. Refer to Section IV, Tab B. 

a. Is $350 the average cost of a customer's service connection? 

b. Are the costs of customer service lines reimbursed by the 

customers? 

-5- 



c. Why did two customers pay $250 and nine customers receive free 
I 

hoo k-ups? 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 3rd day of A q V t ,  1999. 

By the Commission 

J 

ATTEST: 

I r 

. .- 



ROBERT L. BROWN 111 
TERESA J. HILL 

BROWN & HILL, PLLC 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1005 S. MAIN STREET, SUITE 101 
CORBIN, KENTUCKY 4070 1 

(606) 528-3073 
FAX (606) 528-3289 

Helen C. Helton, Executive Director 
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

RE: ATTORNEY GENERAL REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
Application of Citipower, LLC for Rate Adjustment Pursuant 
to: 807 KAR 5:076 - Alternative Rate Filing 
Case No. 99-225 

Dear Ms. Helton: 

Please allow this letter to serve as a formal request for the firm of Brown and 
Hill, PLLC to be placed upon the service list for the above-mentioned matter. 

Your cooperation in this is greatly appreciated, and should you have any 
questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 
n 

{*flw R bert L. Brown I11 

RLB/ca 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE 

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

JUL 1 6  1999 
PUBLIC SERVICE 

COhAMlSSlON In the Matter of: 

Application of Citipower, LLC for Rate 
Adjustment Pursuant to: 807 KAR 5:076 ) Case No. 99-225 

) 

Alternative Rate Filing ) 

ATTORNEY GENERAL REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

Comes now the intervenor, the Attorney General of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, by and 

through his Office of Rate Intervention, and submits these Requests for Information to Citipower 

LLC: 

(1) In each case where a request seeks data provided in response to a staff request, 

reference to the appropriate request item will be deemed a satisfactory response. 

(2) Please identify the company witness who will be prepared to answer questions 

concerning each request. 

(3) These requests shall be deemed continuing so as to require further and supplemental 

responses if the company receives or generates additional information within the scope of these 

requests between the time of the response and the time of any hearing conducted hereon. 

(4) If any request appears confusing, please request clarification directly from the Office 

of the Attorney General. 

(5) To the extent that the specific document, workpaper or information as requested does 

not exist, but a similar document, workpaper or information does exist, provide the similar 



document, workpaper, or information. 

(6) To the extent that any request may be answered by way of a computer printout, please 

identify each variable contained in the printout which would not be self evident to a person not 

familiar with the printout. 

(7) If the company has objections to any request on the grounds that the requested 

information is proprietary in nature, or for any other reason, please noti@ the Office of the Attorney 

General as soon as possible. 

(8) For any document withheld on the basis of privilege, state the following: date; 

author; addressee; indicated or blind copies; all persons to whom distributed, shown, or explained; 

and, the nature and legal basis for the privilege asserted. 

(9) In the event any document called for has been destroyed or transferred beyond the 

control of the company state: the identity of the person by whom it was destroyed or transferred, and 

the person authorizing the destruction or transfer; the time, place, and method of destruction or 

transfer; and, the reason@) for its destruction or transfer. If destroyed or disposed of by operation 

of a retention policy, state the retention policy. 

Respectfbllx Submitted, 

Elizabeth E. Blac ford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

f 

(502) 696-5458 

2 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE AND OF FILING 

I hereby certifl that this l@ day of July, 1999, I have filed the original and ten true copies 

of the foregoing with the Public Service Commission at 730 Schenkel Lane, Frankfort, Kentucky, 

40601 and that I have served the parties by mailing a true copy of same, postage prepaid to the 

following: 

DAVID K BROCK 
PRESIDENT IBEXCO 
P 0 BOX 523 
CORBIN KY 40702 

JAMES CURD 
MANAGER CITIPOWER LLC 
P 0 BOX 1309 
12 COURTHOUSE SQUARE 

3 



a 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

1. With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, please provide a full explanation of the legal 
services provided to Citipower, LLC in the test year and those expected to be provided on a going 
.forward basis. 

2. 
to be provided to Citipower, LLC by the Marketing Employee. 

With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, please provide a full explanation of the services 

3. With reference to Section 111,‘ Subsection A, please; 

A. Provide an explanation detailing who is to be compensated under the line ‘‘Officers 
Comp/Consulting” and the services that are to be provided by each. 

B. Explain the use of “Based on total investments-less new investments projected for 1999” 
as the basis for this expense. 

C. Is the expense referenced in subsection B. or the services to be provided giving rise to 
that expense expected to change after 1999? If so, please explain the changes expected and the basis 
upon which the expected changes are anticipated. 

3. 
What investments have been sold to generate those commissions? 

With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, to whom or what have commissions been paid? 

4. With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, please explain the allocation of 1/3 of the 
“Salaries paid by Forexco to Citipower” for Forsberg, McCue and Lawson. Include an explanation 
of what Forexco is, what it does, who owns it, and whether there is any ownership in common with 
those who own Citipower LLC as well as explaining the basis for the salary allocation between the 
two companies. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

In what capacity is Forsberg employed by Citipower and what is the total amount of 
hisher annual compensation therefore? In what capacity is Forsberg employed by 
Forexco and what is the total amount of hisher annual compensation therefor? Does 
Forsberg own any portion of either company, and if so, what portion? 

In what capacity is McCue employed by Citipower and what is the total amount of 
hisher annual compensation therefor? In what capacity is McCue empolyed by 
Forexco and what is the total amount of hisher annual compensation therefore?Does 
McCue own any portion of either company, and if so, what portion? 

In what capacity is Lawson employed by Citipower and what is the total amount of 
hisher annual compensation therefore? In what capacity is Lawson employed by 

4 



Forexco and what is the total amount of hisher compensation therefore? Does 
Lawson own any portion of either company, and if so, what portion? 

5.  
“Salaries paid by Citipower to Forexco” for Curd and Ross. 

With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, please explain the allocation of 1/3 of the 

D. In what capacity is Curd employed by Citipower and what is the total amount of his 
annual compensation therefore? In what capacity is Curd employed by Forexco and 
what is the total amount of his annual compensation therefore? Does Curd own any 
portion of either company, and if so, what portion? 

E. In what capacity is Ross employed by Citipower and what is the total amount of 
hisher annual compensation therefore? In what capacity is Ross employed by 
Forexco and what is the total amount of hisher annual compensation therefore? Does 
Ross own any portion of either company, and if so, what portion? 

6. Are there any other employees of Citipower who work for both Forexco and Citipower? If 
so, please identifj each such employee, the nature of the employment witWfor each company, the 
amount of time spent performing duties for each company and the basis for any allocation of salary 
between the two companies. 

7. 
is the total annual compensation paid to them? 

Are there any other employees of Citipower LLC only? If so, what are their jobs, and what 

8. Are facilities (such as office space) or materials, furnishings or equipment (such as furniture, 
computers, phone systems and vehicles) shared by Forexco and Citipower? If so, please identifj all 
facilities, furnishings, equipment and materials which are shared by the two and the basis on which 
the expense of each item is allocated between the two companies. 

9. With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, please provide a full explanation of “Other 
expenses - reduction due to cutback and learning curve”. Explain what cutback has impacted 
expenses, how it has done so, and how long that impact is expected to continue. Also explain what 
learning curve is referenced, how that learning curve has impacted expenses and state whether that 
learning curve is expected to further reduce expenses in the future. 

10. With reference to Section 111, Subsection A, do the sales to Citizens Gas utilize the gas supply 
resources, distribution or transmission facilities, or any other asset, including personnel or labor, 
of Citipower LLC? If so, explain what is used and the extent of its use. 

1 1. 
“Office F & F”. 

With reference to Section 111, Subsection D, please provide a full explanation of the line item 

12. With reference to Section 111, Subsection D please provide a full explanation of the line item 
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“Autos” including a description each vehicle included, the employee to whom that vehicle is 
assigned and the function that vehicle performs. 

13. With reference to Section 111, Subsection G, Attachment G- 1,  were any surveys or studies 
done to compare the cost of natural gas to alternative energy costs of electric and propane service 
in McCreary County? If so, please provide copies of those studies or surveys. Further, please provide 
all facts, materials, reports and information upon which the statement “It is not uncommon for 
Citipower customers to report savings of 50% over propane or electricity.” is based or which 
supports that statement. 

14. Has Citipower LLC performed or caused any studies or surveys to be preformed comparing 
the costs of alternative electric or propane service in McCreary County to that of natural gas if the 
rate increase requested in this filing is granted? If so, please provide copies of those reports or 
surveys. If not, please explain the basis for the statement in Section 111, Section G, Attachment G-1 
which says, “Even with a rate increase, natural gas will continue to be significantly more affordable 
than alternative energy costs.” Provide copies of all information relied upon in making that 
statement. 

15. With reference to Section IV, Subsection B, concerning the extension of pipeline from Poplar 
Grove Road to Bob Musgrove Road, why werehe nine of eleven customers permitted free hook 
ups, while two paidwill pay the cost of hook up? On what basis is that differentiation made? 

16. Please provide copies of all contracts or agreements upon which costs are allocated between 
Citipower LLC and any other company with reference to labor, personnel, facilities, equipment and 
materials. 

6 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 
FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 

(502) 564-3940 

July 16, 1999 

David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY. 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY. 42653 

Elizabeth Blackford 
Assistant Attorney General 
1024 Capital Center Drive 
Frankfort, KY. 40601 

RE: Case No. 99-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

Stephani =+a* Bell 
Secretary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



0 e 
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
) 

RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR ) 
SMALL UTILITIES ) 

FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASE NO. 99-225 

O R D E R  

This matter arising upon the motion of the Attorney General of the Commonwealth 

of Kentucky, by and through his Office of Rate Intervention ("Attorney General"), filed July 

9, 1999, pursuant to KRS 367.150(8), for full intervention, such intervention being 

authorized by statute, and this Commission being otherwise sufficiently advised, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the motion is granted and the Attorney General is 

hereby made a party to these proceedings. 

Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 16th day of July, 1999. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 



’ COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 
BEFORE THE 

KENTUCKY PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION A$, 
6 4) 
(\\ /- 

4 q c$ 
%*I\ Up$?& +t& 

% %&2 ’ In the Matter of: %& 
Application of Citipower, LLC for Rate 

) 6+& Adjustment Pursuant to: 807 KAR 5:076 ) Case No. 99-225 
Alternative Rate Filing 1 

MOTION TO INTERVENE 

Comes the Attorney General, A. B. Chandler, 111, pursuant to KRS 367.150 (8) which 

grants him the right and obligation to appear before regulatory bodies of the Commonwealth of Kentucky 

to represent the consumers’ interests, and moves the Public Service Commission to grant him full intervener 

status in this action pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001(8). 

1024 CAPITAL CENTER DRIVE 
FRANKFORT KY 4060 1 
(502) 696-5453 
FAX: (502) 573-4814 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE AND OF FILING 

I hereby Certify that this the 9th day of July, 1999, I have filed the Original and ten copies of the 

foregoing Motion with the Public Service Commission at 730 Schenkel Lane, Frankfort, KY, 40601, and that 

I have served the parties of record by mailing a true copy of same postage prepaid to: 

DAVID K BROCK JAMES CURD 
PRESIDENT IBEXCO 
P 0 BOX 523 
CORBIN, KY 40702 

MANAGER CITIPOWER LLC 
P 0 BOX 1309 
12 COURTHOUSE SQUARE 
WHITLEY CITY KY 42653 
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COMMONWEALTH O F  KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 
FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 

(502) 564-3940 

June 17, 1999 

David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY. 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L. L. C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square 
Whitley City, KY. 42653 

RE: Case No. 99-225 

We enclose one attested copy of the Commission's Order in 

the above case. 

Sincerely, 

Stephanie Bell 
Secretary of the Commission 

SB/hv 
Enclosure 



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

APPLICATION OF CITIPOWER, LLC ) 
FOR AN ADJUSTMENT OF RATES 1 
PURSUANT TO THE ALTERNATIVE ) CASE NO. 99-225 
RATE FILING PROCEDURE FOR ) 
SMALL UTILITIES ) 

O R D E R  

On June 3, 1999, Citipower, LLC (“Citipower”) applied to the Commission for an 

adjustment of rates pursuant to Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 5076, the alternative 

rate filing procedure for small utilities. In its filing, Citipower requested permission to 

deviate from the requirements of 807 KAR 5076, Section 1. 

Administrative Regulation 807 KAR 5076, Section 1 , requires the applicant to 

have on file with the Commission fully completed annual reports for the immediate past 

year and for at least the two prior years when the applicant has been in existence that long. 

Since Citipower did not come under the Commission’s jurisdiction until November 1997 

and its 1997 and 1998 Annual Reports are on file, the Commission finds that good cause 

exists to grant the deviation. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Citipower’s request for permission to deviate 

from the requirements of 807 KAR 5076, Section 1 , is hereby granted. 



a e 
Done at Frankfort, Kentucky, this 17th day of June, 1999. 

By the Commission 

ATTEST: 



C O M M O N W E A L T H  O F  KENTUCKY 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

730 SCHENKEL LANE 
POST OFFICE BOX 61 5 

FRANKFORT, KY. 40602 
(502) 564-3940 

June 3, 1999 

David K. Brock 
President 
Ibexco 
P. 0. Box 523 
Corbin, KY. 40702 

James Curd 
Manager 
CitiPower, L.L.C. 
P. 0. Box 1309 
12 Courthouse Square - 
Whitley City, KY. 42653 

RE: Case No. 99-225 
CITIPOWER, L.L.C. 
(Rates - ARF) 

This letter is to acknowledge receipt of initial application 
in the above case. The application was date-stamped received 
June 3, 1999 and has been assigned Case No. 99-225. In all 
future correspondence or filings in connection with this case, 
please reference the above case number. 

If you need further assistance, please contact my staff at 
502/564-3940. 

Sincerely, 

Secretary of the Commission 

SB/j c 





Citipower, LLC JUN 0 3 1999 

Application for Rate Adjustment 

807 KAR to76  
Alternative Rate Filing 
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0 . . 
Reply to: 
IGexco 

P.O. Box 523 
Corbin, KY 40702 

I6exco 
June 2,1999 

Ms. Helen C. Helton 
Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P.O. Box 615 
Frankfort, KY 40602 

RE: Alternative Rate Filing for Small Utilities 

RECEIVED 
JUN 0 3 1999 

PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION 

Dear Ms. Helton: 

On behalf of Citipower, LLC, I respectfully submit the following application for rate adjustment 
pursuant to 807 KAR 5:076. 

In respect to the Basic Information Section, Question 3 of the application (Has the utility filed an 
annual report with this Commission for the past year and the two previous years?), Citipower has 
filed an Annual Report for the years 1997 and 1998. Citipower, LLC acquired McCreary Natural Gas 
as a farm tap program in September 1996 and operated as such until mid-1997. For this reason, 1 
respecthlly request written approval fiom the Commission to consider the Annual Reports filed for 
1997 and 1998 as satisfaction of this specific requirement of the application. 

Additionally, Citipower, LLC utilizes a flat rate designed billing structure. For this reason, I 
respectfully request the Commission to accept Attachment E as satisfaction of the requirement for a 
Billing/Revenue Analysis. 

Pursuant to publication of the Public Notice, Attachment G was published in the McCreary County 
Record (a newspaper of general circulation within the county) on Tuesday, June 1, 1999 and is 
scheduled for publication once a week for three consecutive weeks. 

Thank you for your time in consideration of this application, should you have any questions or if I 
may be of assistance in any way please contact me at (606) 526-1 177. 

Sincerely, 

David K. Brock 
President 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Serving Tomorrow’s Future Today 
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APPLICATION FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT 
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF KENTUCKY 

For Small Utilities 
Pursuant to 807 KAR 5 : 0 7 6  
(Alternative Rate Filing) 

. Citipower, LLC 
Name of Utility 

12 Courthouse Square 

Whitley City, KY 42653 
Business Mailing Address 

(606) 3 76-83 73 
/ Telephone Number 

Area Code Number 

I. Basic Information 

NAME, TITLE, ADDRESS and telephone number of the person to whom 
correspondence or communications concerning this application should 

directed : 

NAME : David K. Brock - Independent Consultant 

Address : P.0. Box 523 

Corbin. KY 40702 
(606) 526-1 177 Telephone Number: 

Do you have 500 customers or fewer? @ No 

No 
Do you have $300,000 in Gross 
Annual Revenue ox less? 

Has the utility filed an annual report with 
this Commission for the past year and the 

Are the utility's records kept separate from 
any other commonly-owned enterprise? 

@ 
two previous years? Yes @ 

No 

NOTICE: To be eligible for consideration of a rate adjustment 
under this regulation, you must have answered to either 
question 1 or 2 and ye8 to both questions 3 and 4 above. If you 
answer no to questions 3 or 4 ,  you must obtain written approval 
from the Commission prior to filing this Application. If these 
requirements are not met, you must file under the Commission's 
procedural rules, 807 RAR 5:OOl. 



JI. In creased Cost Information 

(1) The most recent Annual Report will be used as the basic test 
period data in order to determine the reasonableness of the 
proposed rates. The Annual Report used as the  basis for this 
rate revision is the one filed,with the Commission for the 12 
months ending December 31, 1 9 s .  

a. If you have reason t o  believe some of the  items of 
revenue and expense listed in the Annual Report will 
increase or decrease, please list each item, the expected 
increase or decrease and the  adjusted amount. 

Item Per Amount Per 
Annual Report Annual ReDOrt 

Revenue $ 

Tota l  Revenue $ 

Increase Ad j ust ed 
(Decr'ease) Amount 

$ $ 

$ $ 

ExDense 

See: 
111. ATTACHMENTS 

A. Attachment A 

Total Expense $ 

Revenue L e s s  
Expense 

-2 - 



b. Please describe each item that you adjusted on page 2 and 
how you know it will change. (Please attach invoices, 
letters, contracts or receipts which w i l l  help in proving 
t he  change in cost). 

See notes on Attachment A and also: 

IV. EXHIBITS 

A. Exhibits to Attachment A 

c. Please list your present and proposed rates for each 
class (i.e., residential, commercial, etc.) of customer 
and the percentage of increase proposed for each class: 

Percent 
Customer Class Present Rates Proposed Rates Increase 

Residential $7.00 $8.50 21% 

Commercial $7.00 $8.50 21% 

Public $6.00 $7.50 25% 

Industrial $6.00 $7.50 25% 

- 3 -  



111. Other Inform atiw ' 

a. Please complete the following questions: 

1) Please describe any events or occurrences which may have 
an effect on this rate review that should be brought to 
the Commission's attention (e.g., excessive line losses, 
major repairs, planned construction). 

See: 
111. ATTACHMENTS 

B. Attachment B 
See also: 

IV. EXHIBITS 

B. Exhibits to Attachment B 

227 2) Total number of customers 
as of the date of filing: 

3 ) Total amount of increased revenue requested: $30,481.38 

4 )  Please circle Yes or No: 
Proposed Rate Structure $159,298.31 minus $128,816.93 Current Rate Structure per Attachment E 

a) Does the utility have outstanding 
indebtedness? @ No 

If yes,  attach a copy of any See: 
documents such as promissory notes, ATTACHMENTS 111. 

bond resolutions, mortgage 
agreements, etc. C. Attachment C 

See Also: 
EXHIBITS IV. 

b) Were all revenues and expenses 
listed in the Annual Report for C. Exhibits to Attachment C 
19% incurred and collected from 
January 1 to December 31 of 
that year? @ No 

If no, list total revenue and 
total expense incurred prior to 
or subsequent to this period and 
attach invoices or other analysis 
which show how amounts were calculated. 

- 4  - 



5) Attach a copy of the utility's depreciation schedule of 
utility plant in service. Reconcile any differences 
between total depreciation shown on the Annual Report for 
19 - 98 and t he  amount shown on this schedule-See :  

1f.utility is a sewer utility: 

a) Attach a copy of the latest State and Federal 

111. ATTACHMENTS 

D. Attachment D 6) 

Income Tax Returns. N/A 

b) How much of the utility plant was recovered through 
the sale of lots or other contributions 
$ or %? ( I f  unknown, state the r eason . )  

N/A 

b. Please state the reason or reasons why a rate adjus tment  is 
requested. (Attach additional pages if necessary). 

A) Projections for 1999 and 2000 excluding capital expenditures reflect 
net operating losses. 

B) To cover costs for expanding services including new pipeline to 
customers throughout McCreary County. 

C) Cover prior year capital expenditures for new and backup pipeline. 

D) Cover current year capital expenditures for actual and projected 
expansion. 

E) To cover added costs associated with maintenance of compressor 
station. 

-5- 



I V .  Billinu An alvs i s 

The billing analysis is the  chart reflecting the usage by the 
cuatomers as well as the revenue generated by a specific level of 
rates. A billing analysis of both the current and proposed rates 
is mandatory f o r  analysis of this rate filing. The following is a 
step-by-step description which may be used to complete the billing 
analysis. A completed sample of a billing analysis is also 
included. Although the sample reflects water usage, it is equally 
applicable for gas companies using a declining block rate design. 
This billing analysis is not intended for companies using a f l a t  
rate design. 

For Revenue and Billing Analvsis 

See: 
111. ATTACHMENTS 

E. Attachment E 

- 6 -  



V .  General InformatiQzl/Cust omer Notice 

1) Filing Requirements: 

If the applicant is a corporation, a certified copy of 
its articles of incorporation must be attached to this application. 
If the articles and any amendments thereto have already been filed 
with the Commission in a prior proceeding, it will be sufficient to 
state that fact in the application apd -fer to the style and case 

An original and 10 copies of the completed application 

a. 

ATTACHMENTS 
F. Attachment F 

number of the prior proceeding. See: 111. 

b. 
should be sent to: 

Executive Director 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
730 Schenkel Lane 
P. 0. Box 615 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602 

Telephone: 502/564-3940 

one copy of the completed applsation shou c. 
at the same time to: 

d also be sent  

Public Service Litigation Branch 
Office of the Attorney General 
P o s t  Office Sox 2000 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40602-2000 

2 )  A copy of the' customer notice must be filed with this 
application. Proper notice muet comply with Section 4 of t h i s  

Copies of t h i s  form and the regulation may be obtained from 
t h e  Commission's Office of Executive Director; or by calling 

tion, and to the best of 
ined in this application 

regulation. See: ATTACHMENTS 
G. Attachment G 

3 )  

502/564 -3940. 

4 )  I have read and c 
my knowledge all 
is true and coir 

signed 

Tit le 

Date 
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state of Delaware 
PAGE 1 

I, EDWARD J. FREEL, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY OF 

"CITIPOWER, L.L.C.", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE THIRTIETH DAY 

OF MAY, A.D. 1996, AT 10 O'CLOCK A.M. 

2628643 8100 

991190873 

9747880 
AUTHENTICATION 

05-17-99 
DATE: 



S T A T E  OF DELAWARE 
SECRETARY OF S T A T E  

D I V I S I O N  OF C O R P O R A T I O N S  
FILED 1O:OO AA 05/30/1996 

960156284 - 2628643 

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION 

OF 

CITIPOWER, L.L.C. 

1. The name o f the  limited liability company is Citipower, L.L.C. (the “Company”). 

2. The address of the registered of ice  of the Company in the state of Delaware is 
Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange St.,Wilmington 19801, County o f N e w  Castle; 
and the name of the registered agent for service of process of the Company in the State of 
Delaware at such address is The Corporation Trust Company. 

3 .  The date of dissolution of the Company shall be April 30, 2046. 

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized person whose name is set forth below has 
executed this Certificate of Formation this 28th day of May, 1996. 

FORSBERG OIL CO., INC. 

Daniel R.Forsberg 



ATTACHMENT G 

PUBLIC' NOTICE OF PROPOSED RATE CYUNGE 

Pursuant to public notification provisions relating to an application for rate adjustment 
with the Kentucky Public Service Commission, Citipower, LLC proposes the following 
amended rate structure. 

Customer Class Current Rste Prooosed Rate Amount of Increase Persent Increase 

Residential $7.OO/mcf $8.50/mcf $1.50/mcf 21% 

Commercial $7.00/mcf $8.5O/mcf $1 .5O/mcf 21% 

Public $6.OO/mcf $7.5O/mcf $1.50/mcf 25% 

Industrial $dOO/mcf $7.5O/mcf $lSO/mcf 25% 

The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Citipower, LLC. However, 
the Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged that are higher or lower 
than the rates proposed in this notice. Any corporation, association, body politic or 
person may request leave to intervene by motion within thirty (30) days after notice of 
the proposed rate changes is given. A motion to intervene shall be in writing, shall be 
submitted to the Executive Director, Public Service Commission, 730 Schenkel Lane, 
P.O. Box 615, Frankfort, Kentucky 40602, and shall set forth the grounds for the motion, 
including the status and interest of the movant. 

Copies of the application may be obtained at no charge &om Citipower, LLC at 12 
Courthouse Square, Whitley City, Kentucky 42653. 

Upon request from an intervenor, the applicant shall furnish to the intervenor a copy of 
the application and supporting documents. 



ATTACHMENT G-1 

Published in McCreary County Record on May 25, 1999 
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. . .  . . .  . . . .  t : ;  , . '  . . . .  
. .  iveronwrpromises. ' ' -. ' . ' 

. -. . . . .  - .......... . . . . .  : _,...., . . . . . . . . .  
Signifi&nt expansion of McCreary County's natural.gas infraskture began'in eGly.1997 wid 
tk construction of 16.5 miles of pipeline Linking Pine Knot, S t e m s  and Whitley City to the nat 
ural gas supply. Upon cornpleeon of :the pipeline.in May 1998, Citipower had not only brough 
affordable natural gas to IocaLresidents, but.had become a catalyst for economic development a: 
well. . .  

In order to guarantee.an xihintekpted supply of .natural gas to McC- County, Citipowe 
invested an additional $1.2"milliqn jn 1998 to build a compressor station and lay an 11.5-mil( 
pipeline fromStnmk.to,-~ inGtate, g e ' l i e  in Oneida, Tennessee. Construction was completec 

. . . . . .  . . .  

&M!y, 1998; 1.  ............ ; . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  
. . . . .  . . . . . . . .  : 

. .  
IdveSting over $2 million&dlv,.w@n't the end4 is just the'beginning. , . .  . . .  . . , . .  _ .  

With every passing day more residences and businesses of McCreary County a& benefiting fron 
the affordability of,natural gas. How affodable? It is not uncommon for Citipower customers tc 
re.port savings of 50% over propane or electricity. These savings are consistent with national SUI 
veys conducted by the Department of Energy. 

Tu insure that Citipower continues to provide the high-quality, cost-saving service its customer 
have come to enjoy and enable the company to service new customers in the fuhue, we are seek 
ing approval for a modest rate increase from the Kentucky,Public Service Commission. Approval 
if granted, will not occur for several months, but it is important to us that our customers and th 
community wt  serve are aware of our plans. The following relevant pointsshould be noted: 

There has not been a,ra&e increase in.siX'yearS. ' ' 

Our current rates are .the lowest of all surrounding counties. Our proposed rates will be about rh 

Even with grate increase; natural,gas.will continue to be signific;mtly more affordable than &I 

Io order 'to continue expision of services in the county our rates must reflect the rising lab01 

.... As " p'amtem ... ̂_. . . .  in - prhperity we,wiU ~ c o ~ t i n u e ~ o  do 04,pa-t ahd iook for your, support. If you hav 
any questions about the affordability of natural gas; our 'ongoing comdment to McCreary Count 
oi ways we can better serve the community, please stop by the Citipower offices at 12 Courthous 
Sauare.WhitievCity. . . . . . .  

. . .  

Sanie ai those charged in neighboring communities. ' 

nativeenergycosts. ' '. . 

.material and construction costs &at we must bear to build infrastructure in the county. 

. . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  

, . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  

. .  

CitiPower, L.L.C. . . .  

Gas Distqibution Company 
. .  ... . ..: . . . . . .  .: ..Jam& E. Curd, Vice President . . .  

. . .  l2.Couahouse Sauare. P.O. Box 1309 . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  '?Whitley Chy,:KY 42653 .: ' ' ' 

. Office 606-376-8373. ~ F G  69i-376-8830 - Pager:. 423-569:7462 

.... . . .  

- -  

I -' 

Sincerely, e . u  %- 
Jimmy Curd, Vice President, Operations I 
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Kentucky Employers' Mutual Insurance 
RECEIVED FEB 0 z iggg 

FINAL AUDIT SUMMARY/INVOICE 
Date: 01/28/1999 
Page: 1 

The Insured: Policy Number: 225270 
CITIPOWER LLC & FOREXCO INC 
2 122 ENTERPRISE RD 
GREENSBORO NC 27408 

Inception Date: 01/08/1998 
Cancellation Date: 0 1/08/1999 

Days In Force: 365 

Due Date: 02/27/1999 

CODE CLASS DESCRIPTION: . NUMBER: REMUNERATION: RATE/$IOO: PREMIUM: 

88 10 R CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES NOC $25,408.00 $.44 31 11.80 

62 16 R GAS OR OIL LEASE WORK NOC - NATURAL $0.00 $13.66 $0.00 
GAS - BY CONTRACTOR - & DRIVE 

7502 R GAS COMPANY: NATURAL GAS - LOCAL $147,4 17.00 
DISTRUBUTING - & DRIVERS 

Basc Prcmium: 

Exp. Mod. Rate: 01/08/1998 - 01/08/1999 

Rate Adjust Factor: 

Increased Limits: 
Short Rate Factor: 

Premium Discount: 
Expense Constant: 

Total Premium: 
Late and/or Reinstatemcnt Cliarges: 

Taxes & Asscssmcnts: 

Grand Total: 

Amt. Paid by Insured: 
Over/Short Writeoff Amount: 

AdditionaVRcturn Prcniiuni: 

$4.33 $6,383. I 6 

$6,494.96 

1 .oo $.OO 

1 .oo $0.00 

$129.90 
6 $0.90 
$82.87 

$ 140.00 

$6,68 1.99 
$0.00 

9% $60 1.38 

$7,283.37 

-$2,878.02 

$0.00 

$4,405.35 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS. 

... 

. .  
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60637wn 11/03/1998 11: 52 7c) CITIPOWER, L.L 

UNIVERSAL coMpREssPoIv, INC. 

RENTAL CONTR4CT 

No.: ,982780 172 
UCI Unit # 201703 

P%GE 02 

October 28, 1998 
Page 3 

MONTHLY RENTAL A4NI) TERMS 

The monthly rental for the equipment quoted herein shall he as follows:' 

:;: Two thousand, nine hundred dollars ($2,900.00). 

The rental shall be: payable monthly in advance at  ,UCX's Houston office, for a minimum t m  of twelve 
.:. . (12)months, conlmencing rTom the dare of shipment*- Upon expiration of the minimum term, such rental shall 

continue from month to month. Either p w  may terminate ths agreement at the expiration of the minimum 
: term upon thirty (30) days,wrinen notice prior to such expiration or upon thirty (30) days prior w h e n  notice 
: thereafter. . Rentals shall cease at rhe expiration of such thiny (39) days, provided Customer hns retumed the 
:' equipment to UCI's designated terminal. 

i ' +Lease payments begin one (1)  week after arrival on location. 

. .  

MONITILY EQUPblEhT .4ViULABlLITY , .  

: . I .  

. 2.  
, .  

. .  

3. 
I 4. 

: 5. 

6. 
:. ' 7. 

. .  

CCI will cndeivor KO provide a [nonrhly availability of thc !2quiprncnr furnished in this pioposal of E ('Proposcd Monthly Avaihbilily") wbjcct 10 rhc 
provi piom be low.. 
Any month when ihc OCKud iionthly availsbility i s  less :tu, h e  prOp05Cd monthly availability. the rcnml T 1 W  shall be idjusied by an wailability iector in 
accordance with the following: 
(a) To dctcrmino aciual mtithly availability, the ~ollowing fwmula 

shall be used: 

'Ib & m i n e  Ihe availability fhctor.' the following formula shalt k used: 
wl monthly wailnh ilia 
Proposed nmnthly nvailnbility = 

hionrhly Rcnral Rarc x .Availability Fdctnr = Adjusred Rcnllll ktc 

Hours Eauiorncnt nvuilnhlc duriritl nunth 
2a x number ofdnyi in month K I M =  % 

@) 

(c) The rental nta ~lioll bx otljosrcd m accordrncc with [he Ibllowing: 

Thee  shall !IC no rcdrrction ir i  the rcnral rate if the compression cquipmcnc wu not available die to the fpult of CUSTOMER or CUSTOMEJCS upention. 
Paragraph 1 and 2 above shnll i ICt ,be  effecrive during che tint days 8 t h  commmccmcni of tho tcmi ab stared. i l l  . Q t l C k  1 of thc Proposed Leve 
T e r n  or during h a  lint jhiriy 301 days after 4 i c h  UCI replac- or substitutes equipment 
In the wen: of hrrakdnwn nr iicm-wailnbiliry of cquiprnenr for any muse. Urns liabibir, to CUSTOMER shnll he limited to a rcducrion of the rental rate as 
provided above and In no event s h d  UCI be liable [o CUSTOMER for any conrcqueniial lass, danlage or expense as a rcsulr.Kherco1: 
Downtime hgiru whon UCI is notified thu unit is down. 
Rquest for downtimc,credit must be received by UCI, HousNn, Trw; in writing thirry (30) days from W end of the manlh.in which h e  Oowirimc occurred. 

Eight (8) hours per manrh allowed for scheduled pmvcntivc mainonnnce. (only applicable if UCI provides minrensnce) 

;. . This Contract is siibjeci to the attached terms and conditions on page 4. 

I... Accepted this 3- day OS '"3 d , 1938 Ad? 

Submitted By: , h4+: /& 
TirnNicely- . 6-. 
District Manager ' 

Return original to: 

P.O. Box 40009 

Telephone: (713) 466-4103 or (800) 231-4650 

CITIPOWER LLC Universal Compression, Inc 

. '  BY: -.- Houston, 'TX 77240 

ITS ; 

Federal. Scare. and Local sales and/or use taxes. 

. .  
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This Contract for the purchase of natural gas is made on 

the ~r of D e c t h h  , 1998 at Helenwood, Tennessee, by 

and between CitiPower, L.L.C. of 12 Courthouse Square, P.O. Box 

1309, Whitley City, Kentucky 42653, hereinafter referred to as 

"Seller, and CITIZENS GAS UTILITY DISTRICT, with its principal 

office at Highway 27, P. 0 .  Box 320, Helenwood, Tennessee, 37755, 

it being a natural gas utility district serving Scott and Morgan 

Counties, Tennessee, hereinafter referred to as ttPurchaser.tl 

- W L  2 B E S  S E X Y :  

WHEREAS, the Seller owns or has contracts to purchase gas 

from certain gas wells located in McCreary and Whitley Counties, 

Kentucky. Seller is willing to sell natural gas that it has under 

contract to Purchaser; and 

WHEREAS, the Purchaser is willing to purchase the natural 

gas from the Seller; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of 

Ten ($10.00) Dollars and other good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 

parties to this Contract agree to the following: 

1. Seller has built or will build a natural gas pipeline 

to connect with Purchaser's natural gas pipeline at the 

1 



Stephens/Pine Hill station, or has contracted for the use of a 

pipeline owned by third parties that connect with Purchaser's line, 

therefore, the Purchaser hereby agrees to purchase the gas 

delivered from the Seller's pipeline at the Stephens/Pine Hill 

station for the term set forth below. 

2. The price the Purchaser will pay the Seller for the 

gas will be measured by each thousand cubic feet (mcf) of gas at 

the sales meter located at the Stephens/Pine Hill station, less 4% 

per mmbtu for compressor fuel, and is as follows: Purchaser will 

pay the Seller on an mmbtu basis for volumes equal to or greater 

than 1,000 rranbtu per day at any one delivery point, the index price 

established and published in the publication entitled IIInside 

F.E.R.C.Is Gas Market Report" as set forth in the Table entitled 

IIPrices of Spot Gas Delivered to Pipelinesf1 under the Listing 

IITennessee Gas Pipeline Co., Louisiana & Offshore (zone 1). 

Purchaser will pay the Seller on an mmbtu basis for volumes equal 

to or greater than 500 mmbtu per day, but less than 1,000 mmbtu per 

day, at any one delivery point, the index price established and 

published in the publication entitled I'Inside F.E.R.C.Is Gas Market 

Report" as set forth in the Table entitled "Prices of Spot Gas 

Delivered to Pipelinesll under the Listing 'ITennessee Gas Pipeline 

Co., Louisiana & Offshore (zone l), less Fifteen ($0.15) cents per 

2 
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mmbtu. Purchaser will pay the Seller on an mmbtu basis for volumes 

less than 500 mmbtu per day at any one delivery point, the index 

price established and published in the publication entitled IIInside 

F.E.R.C.Is Gas Market Reportii as set forth in the Table entitled 

IIPrices of Spot Gas Delivered to Pipelinesii under the Listing 

"Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. , Louisiana & Offshore (zone 1) , less 

Thirty ($0.30) cents per mmbtu. The month of publication for 

"Inside F.E.R.C.Is Gas Market Reportii shall determine the price to 

be paid for deliveries made to Purchaser for the same month as the 

publication issue. 

3 .  The term of this Agreement shall be for thirty (30) 

days from the date hereof, and continuing thereafter under the 

covenants, terms, and conditions set forth herein unless the party 

desiring to terminate this Contract shall give thirty (30) days 

written notice sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to 

the other party of ,its intention to so terminate; provided, 

however, that Purchaser is hereby given the right to terminate this 

Agreement at any time it is required to do so by any federal, 

state, or local governmental agency, or at any time that the Board 

of Trustees of Purchaser determines, by majority vote, that it is 

not in the best interest of the customers of Citizens Gas Utility 

District to continue the same. 

3 
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4 .  Seller grants and guarantees to Purchaser, so far as 

Seller has the right so to do, a meter location and a compressor 

location with full right of ingress and egress to and from said 

Stephens/Pine Hill station, and the further right to do thereon 

acts necessary or convenient for the carrying out of the terms of 

this Contract. All pipelines and equipment placed, or caused to be 

placed, on such sites by Purchaser shall be and remain Purchaserls 

property and may be removed by Purchaser at any time. This 

paragraph shall not be construed as creating an obligation on the 

part of the Purchaser to install compression or to locate its meter 

station at any particular location other than where Purchaser deems 

necessary in its sole and absolute discretion. 

5.  Seller agrees that the gas delivered hereunder will, 

upon delivery: 

A. Have a total heating value of not less than one 

thousand(1,OOO) btu's? per cubic foot; however, should the total 

heating value of the gas fall below one thousand (1,000) btu's per 

cubic foot during any month, Purchaser, at Purchaser's sole 

discretion, shall have the right to refuse to accept delivery 

thereof; 

B. Not have been processed, stripped, refrigerated, or 

in any way treated to lower the btu content below one thousand 

4 



(1,000) btu's per cubic foot; 

C. Be commercially free from dust, hydrocarbon liquids, 

water and any other substance that might become separated from the 

gas in Purchaser's or Purchaser's designee's facilities, and Seller 

at its sole expense shall furnish, install, maintain and operate 

such drips, separators, heaters and other mechanical devices as may 

be necessary to effect compliance with such requirements; 

D. Not contain more than twenty (20) grains of total 

sulfur, nor more than one (1) grain of hydrogen sulfide per one 

hundred (100) cubic feet; 

E. Not contain more than five parts per million (PPM) 

by volume of oxygen, and Seller shall make every reasonable effort 

to keep the gas free of oxygen; 

F. Not contain more than four percent (4%) by volume of 

a combined total of carbon dioxide and nitrogen components; 

provided, however, that the total carbon dioxide content shall not 

exceed three percent ( 3 % )  by volume; 

G. Have a temperature of not more than one hundred 

degrees (100%) Fahrenheit; 

H. Have been dehydrated by Seller for removal of 

entrained water present therein in a vapor state, and in no event 

contain more than seven (7) pounds of entrained water per million 

5 



cubic feet, at a pressure base of fourteen and seventy three 

hundredths (14.73) pounds per square inch and a temperature of 

sixty (60) degrees Fahrenheit as determined by dew-point apparatus 

approved by the Bureau of Mines or such other apparatus as may be 

mutually agreed upon; 

I. Shall not be of a pulsation level which, in the 

opinion of Purchaser or Purchaser's designee, hinders accurate 

measurement. 

6 .  As to gas which cannot meet the specifications set 

out above, Purchaser shall have the option to: 

A. Refuse to accept delivery of such gas and in the 

event Seller cannot correct such deficiency despite its best 

efforts within a reasonable period of time, this Agreement will 

terminate as to such gas; or 

B. Upon notice to Seller, accept such gas at a reduced 

price, to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. However, in the 

event Purchaser accepts nonconforming gas, such acceptance shall 

not be construed as a waiver of Purchaser's right to demand strict 

compliance by Seller in the future. 

7. The Seller will pay for all gas lines needed to 

connect the Seller's pipeline to the delivery point at the 

Stephens/Pine Hill station, which is defined as the point where the 

G 
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gas is measured and enters the Purchaser's pipeline system. Each 

party has the responsibility for the gas in its own pipeline. 

Deliveries of gas pursuant to this contract are expected to be made 

at pressures ranging from 250 psi to 400 psi. Therefore, all 

equipment and fittings installed by Seller must be rated to 

withstand operating pressures in excess of 400 psi and must be 

maintained in a safe and operational manner. A purchase meter 

will be installed at the delivery point. The meter will be a high 

pressure type meter as determined by American Gas Association 

Standards, which for volumes equal to or greater than 500 &tu per 

day, shall be an orifice meter with a seven ( 7 )  day chart, and for 

volumes less than 500 mmbtu per day, shall be an orifice meter with 

a thirty-one (31) day chart, which shall be purchased and installed 

at the Seller's expense. The Seller will install the meter, all 

regulators, valves, safety relief valves, and check valves as 

Purchaser deems necessary to comply with the utility regulations. 

Purchaser will have the sole and exclusive right to control any and 

all regulators, valves, safety relief valves, and check valves at 

the point of delivery. Seller will take all steps necessary to 

insure a safe delivery pressure. 

8. The Seller will maintain its pipeline and 

connections at the delivery point in a safe and suitable condition 

7 
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at all times and shall comply with all State and Federal rules and 

regulations. The Seller is required to obtain and maintain all 

easements, rights of way, leases, and meter station agreements. 

The Purchaser and Seller will each own the equipment and materials 

that they contributed to comply with this Contract. This Contract 

is not a partnership nor joint venture, and each party will own the 

equipment it has supplied. 

9. The purchase meter will be tested and calibrated at 

regular intervals, the cost of which shall be divided equally 

between Seller and Purchaser, by a qualified testing firm selected 

by Purchaser. The meter and instrument will be tested separately. 

The Seller will pay for all necessary replacement parts to maintain 

the accuracy of the meter and instrument. Either party at any time 

it questions the accuracy of the meter or instrument may order a 

test to be conducted by a qualified testing firm, provided it 

observes the same procedures as the tests performed on regular 

intervals. In the event the test establishes that the meter is 

measuring gas with a two percent (2%) margin of error or less, the 

expense of the test shall be paid by the party requesting the test 

and no adjustments to gas volumes shall be made; it being expressly 

agreed that a two percent (2%) margin of error or less is an 

acceptable tolerance for both parties. In the event the test 

8 
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establishes that the meter measurement has a margin of error 

greater than two percent (2%), so that the meter is measuring less 

gas than is actually being delivered, and such slow measurement is 

a result of the Seller's noncompliance with the quality provisions 

contained herein, Purchaser shall not be held liable for gas 

delivered to Purchaser and not properly measured, so that Seller 

will only be paid for the meter reading amount. In the event the 

test establishes a greater than -two percent (2%) margin of error so 

that the meter is measuring more gas than is actually being 

delivered, Purchaser shall be entitled to a credit b.ecause of the 

meter error. In the event the test establishes a greater than two 

percent (2%) margin of error so that the meter is not measuring all 

of the gas delivered to Purchaser, and Seller is in compliance with 

the quality provisions for the gas set forth herein, Seller shall 

be entitled to a credit for the amount of gas not accurately 

measured by the meter. The credit to which either Seller or 

Purchaser may be entitled shall be established by multiplying the 

difference between the actual percentage margin of error and two 

percent (2%) by the llAdjustment" (as calculated below), so that the 

formula to be utilized to establish a credit is as follows: 

Credit = (x% -2%)Adjustment 

x% = actual margin of error established by 

9 
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the meter calibration 

All adjustments made either on behalf of the Seller or Purchaser 

shall be made by taking the total volume of gas delivered to 

Purchaser from the time of the last meter calibration to the most 

recent meter calibration, divided by the number of days between the 

last meter calibration and the most recent meter calibration, 

multiplied by thirty (30) days so that the adjustment shall be made 

on an average month, multiplied by the average price per mmbtu 

during the period established by the number of days between the 

last meter calibration and the most recent meter calibration. In 

other words, the Adjustment shall be determined by using the 

following formula: 

El(30)P = Adjustment 
d 

TV = total volume of gas delivered to 
purchaser from the time of the last 
meter calibration to the most recent 
meter calibration. 

d = the number of days between the last 
meter calibration the most recent 
meter calibration. 

P = the average price per mmbtu during 
the period established by the n i e r  
of days between the last meter 
calibration and the most recent 
meter calibration. 

10 
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If the most recent meter calibration test establishes a greater 

than two percent (2%) margin of error so that the meter is 

measuring more gas than is actually being delivered, Seller shall 

pay to Purchaser the Credit defined herein. 

10. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto 

. that this Gas Purchase Contract shall be included as collateral 

pledged to various financial institutions, to secure outstanding 

loans to the Purchaser by various financial institutions, and this 

Agreement will inure to the benefit of the successors, assigns, and 

beneficiaries of Purchaser, including but not limited to, the said 

financial institutions. 

11. Seller agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 

Purchaser for any and all claims, loss, damage, or costs, including 

reasonable attorney's fees, which might result from the purchase of 

gas by Purchaser, including, but not limited to, any liability 

arising from the production of gas in violation of the statutes, 

rules, and regulations of the State of Tennessee, the Commonwealth 

of Kentucky, or of the United States of America, or any agency 

thereof, and any injuries occasioned by third parties as a result 

of being at the Stephens/Pine Hill station, if said violation or 

injury was not caused by Purchaser, its employees or agents. 

Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Seller for any and 

11 
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, .. 

all claims, loss ,  damage, or costs, including reasonable attorney's 

fees, because of injuries occasioned by third parties as a result 

of being at the Stephens/Pine Hill station, if such injuries were 

not caused by Seller, its employees or agents. 

12. This is a fully integrated document and can only be 

modified in writing. 

13. This Producer Gas Purchase Contract shall be 

construed and interpreted according to the laws of the State of 

Tennessee, and venue for the same shall be Scott County, Tennessee. 

14. Seller agrees to maintain all of its pipelines, 

compressors, metering. stations, and/or points of delivery free from 

hydrocarbon leakage or spills of any kind, whether such 

hydrocarbons are refined or not, free from trash and debris, and in 

full compliance with all applicable environmental laws, rules, 

and/or regulations of every kind and nature. 

15. Seller; at its own expense and liability, has the 

right to install a check meter at the delivery point located at the 

Stephens/Pine Hill station as long as said check meter is located 

upstream of the sales meter and is located a sufficient distance 

from the sales meter to allow for accurate measurement of the gas 

at the sales meter. 

16. This Producer Gas Purchase Contract shall be binding 

12 

. .  . .  



upon the heirs, executors, administrators, 

assigns of the parties hereto. 

successors, and/or 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have affixed their 

signatures the day and year first above written. 

SELLER: 

CitiPower, L.L.C. 

AU'lXIr ZED REPRESENTATIVE 

PURCHASER: \ 

CITIZENS GAS UTILITY DISTRICT 

BY: 

13 
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LOAN AGREEMENT 
I 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 16th day of December, 1998, 

by and between CITIPOWER, L.L.C., P.O. Box 1309, Whitley City, Kentucky 42653, 

PARTY OF THE FIRST PART, (hereinafter referred to sometimes as ‘73orrower” or 

‘Erst Party”), and BANK OF McCREARY COUNTY, P.O. Box 160, Whitley City, 

Kentucky 42653, PARTY OF THE SECOND PART, (hereinafter referred to as “Bank” 

or “Second Party”). 

WITNESSETH: WHEREAS, Borrower desires to obtain a loan from Bank in 

the amount of Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($500,000.00) for the purpose 

of paying construction costs for completion of gas pipeline from McCreary County to 

Scott County and connected to Citizens Gas, and 

WHEREAS, Bank is willing to make such a loan upon the terms and conditions 

herein set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. AMOUNT. The Bank hereby agrees to loan to Borrower, jointly and 

severally, the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($500,000.00). 

2. NOTE. The indebtedness shall be evidenced by a Promissory Note payable to 

the order of the Bank. The note shall become due on December 16, 1999. The Bank may 

however demand payment in full before the maturity date upon adverse re-evaluation of 

Borrower’s creditworthiness, upon failure of Borrower to comply with any terms of this 

agreement, or upon Borrower being in default of the Promissory note. 

3. PAYMENTS. Payments shall be made as follows: quarterly interest 

payments beginning March 16, 1999 and principal due at maturity. All payments will be 

applied first to retire interest due, and the remainder to the unpaid principal balance. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  . . .  . . . . . . .  . .  ........ . . . . .  L . .  . ;, . .  : .  . , 
. .  I 

. . .  . . .  
I 

1 ’..: . .  



4. INTEREST. The note executed pursuant hereto by Borrower shall bear 

interest at a rate of 8.50%. This rate shall be in effect until March 16, 1999. Interest shall 

be computed upon a 365 day year basis and shall be payable according to the terms of the 

note. The note shall bear interest at a rate equal to three-fourths percent (0.75%) in 

excess of the 'Wew York Prime Rate", subject to change quarterly. 

5. BALANCE. The principal amount of the loan is Five Hundred Thousand and 

no/100 Dollars ($500,000.00). Principal payments shall be made in accordance with the 

terms of the note. 

EXPENSES 

The Borrower agrees to pay all taxes and assessments, all recording fees, attorney 

fees, appraisal fees, and all other expenses associated with the loan as applicable. 

SECURITY/COLLATERAL 

This loan is subject to the Borrower providing to Bank security and collateral 

securing the repayment of any and all amounts loaned. The form and substance of said 

security and liens perfected on said collateral is to be in a form acceptable to Bank in its 

own discretion. 

The Borrower shall grant to the Bank a pledge and perfected security interest in 

the following: all assets tangible and intangible now owned or hereafter acquired including 

accounts receivable, inventby, pipeline, machinery and equipment. The security interest 

shall be evidenced by the execution and delivery of security agreements, assignments, 

and/or pledges in a form acceptable to the Bank. 

WARRANTLES 

The Borrower convenants and warrants to the Bank on the date of the execution 

hereof each of the following matters: 

1. AUTHORIZATION. Borrower represents that there is no known legal 

impediment which in any way restricts or prevents the execution or carrying out of this 
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agreement in any respect, and that this agreement and executed Note and Security 

Documents are valid and binding obligations of the Borrower. 

2. FINANCIAL CONDITION. Borrower agrees to fbrnish to the Bank true 

and correct balance sheets, income statements, and tax returns which fairly reflect the 

Borrower's financial condition, and furthermore to continue to furnish these items on an 

semi-annual basis. 

3. TAXES. Borrower has paid all taxes, other ;hzn those which miqht be duc but 

not payable. Borrower is not in default in the' pzynient of any tax nor is any assessment 

threatened in respect thereof. 

4. TITLE TO PROPERTY. The Borrower has zood and marketable title to its 

respective assets as disclosed on the financial statement supp!ied to the Eank hereunder. 

5.  ACTIONS PENDING. There are no actions, suits, investigations, or 

proceedings pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened against the 

Borrower by any Court, arbitrator, administrative, or governmental body, either singularly 

or in the aggregate, which might result in a material adverse change in the business, 

condition, and operations of the borrower. 

CONDITIONS PFUXEDENT 

The obligation of the Bank to disbursc the loan shall be subject to the satisfaction 

of each of the following coriditions precedent: 

1. EXECUTION OF PROR.IISSORY NOTE (NOTES). The Note or Notes in 

the form acceptable to Bank shall have been executed for the principal amount of the loan 

and delivered by the Borrower to the Bank. 

2. CORPORATE AUTHORIZATION. The Bank shall have received in a form 
a 

acceptable to the Bank all corporate documents authorizing the encumbrance of corporate 



~ ~ ~ t : l ~ , ~ ~ u l l l u l l ~ l l l ~  Lllt: ext::cuLIuII 0 1  LlllY ay1 elz111lz11t a11u ally UOC;UlllellLb c;uIILelllpldt~u 

herein, and ratifying the same. 



3. OTHER DOCUMENTS. The Bank shall have received upon request from 

the Borrower any other reasonable documents relatine, to this Agreement or contemplated 

by this loan transaction in a form acceptable to Bank. 

DEFAULT 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default by the 

Borrower under this Agreement and thereupon any Note or Notes issued hereunder, at the 

option of the Bank, will immediately become due and payable upon written notice; each of 

the following shall constitute an event of default hereunder. 

1 .  NON-PAYMENT OR LATE PAYMENTS. Non-payment when payment is 

due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or interest of any Note, 

whether short term or long term. Any installment of principal or accrued interest on any 

Note not paid in full, punctually when due and payable as provided in any Note. 

2. BREACH OF ,COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS. The Borrower shall 

fail or omit to perform or observe any covenant, agreement, condition or other provision 

contained or referred to in this Agreement, or in any Security Agreeniznt, Note, or any 

other instrument securing any portion of the indcbtedness or Notc owed or in any other 

instrument which constitutes security for the repayment of the indebtedness or Note or is 

related hereto, and such failure or omission shall not have been f i l ly  corrected to the 

satisfaction of the Bank within thirty (30) days after the giving of written notice by the 

Bank to the Borrower thereof. 

3. MISREPRESENTATION AND ACCURACY OF STATEMENTS. Any 

representation or warranty or other statement of facts made by the Borrower herein in any 

writing, certificate, report, or statement at any time furnished to the Bank pursuant to or in 

connection with this Loan Agreement or otherwise shall prove to be false and misleading 

in any material respect when made or shall fail to state a material fact necessary in order to 

make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading. If any representation or 
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warranty made by the Borrower in any written statement or certificate now or later 

hrnished by or for the Borrower in connection herewith, shall prove untrue in any 

material respect as of the date upon which it was made. 

I 

0 
4. INSOLVENCY. (a) The Borrower shall make an assignment for the benefit 

of creditors, file a petition in Bankruptcy, Petition or apply to any tribunal for the 

appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustee for any one of them, or a substantial 

part of their assets, or shall commence any proceeding under any bankruptcy, 

reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or liquidation law or 

statute of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect; or if there shall have been 

filed any such petition or application or any such proceeding shall have been commenced 

against any of them, in which an order for relief is entered or which remains undismissed 

for a period of thirty (30) days or more; or the Borrower by any act or omission shall 

indicate their consent to , approval of or acquiescence in any such petition, application or 

proceeding or order for relief or the appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustees 

for any of them or any substantial part of any of their property, or shall suffer any such 

custodianship, receivership or trusteeship to continue undischarged for a pcnod of thirty 

(30) days or more; or (b) The Borrower shall generally not pay their debts as such debts 

become due; or (c) The Borrower shall have concealed, removed or permitted to be 

concealed or removed, any part of their property, with intent to hinder, delay or defraud 

their creditors, or any of them, or made or suffered a transfer of any of their property 

which may be fraudulent under any Bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance or similar law, or 

shall have made any transfer of their property to or for the benefit of a creditor at a time 

when other creditors similarly situated have not been paid; or shall have suffered or 

permitted, while insolvent, any creditor to obtain a lien upon any of their property through 

legal proceedings or distraint which is not vacated within thirty (30) days from the date 

hereof. 



MISCELLANEOUS 

1. WAIVERS. No delay or omission of the Bank to exercise any right upon the 

happening of any event of default shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein. No waiver of any default herein 

shall effect any later default or impair any right of Bank. No single, partial or full exercise 

of any right of Bank shall preclude other or further exercise thereof 

e 

2. GOVERNING LAWS. This Agreement, the Note and all documents securing 

same shall each be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

3. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the Bank and the Borrower in accordance with its terms. This 

Agreement, including the Note and other instruments and documents executed to secure 

and collateralize said loan in the forms acceptable to Bank, including any correspondence 

fi-om the Bank to Borrower, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 

hereto and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements with respect 

to matters contained or referred to herein between the parties or any of thc interested 

parties or any third parties. This Agreement may not be modified, amended or terminated 

except by written agreement signed by the parties hereto. The headings of the several 

sections of this Agreement are for the convenience of reference only and shall not effect 

the meaning hereof. 

4. SINGLE AGREEMENT. This Agreement tnay be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all of which together shall constitute a single instrument. The Counterpart 

of this Agreement retained by the Bank for its permanent file shall be deemed to be the 

original for purposes of comparison of provisions. 

5 .  FEES AND EXPENSES. The Borrower shall pay all out-of-pocket expenses 

incurred by the Bank in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder, 
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including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of the Bank's counsel incurred in 

connection with this Agreement, the Note, and other documents related to or referred to 

as collateral or documents securing said Loan. 

I 

6. NOTICES. All notices referrcd to or permitted to be given hereunder shall be 

given in writing or personally delivered or scnt by mail, addressed as follows: 

If to the Bank: 

If to the Borrower: 

Mr. David Ross 
President 
Bank of McCreary County 
P.O. Box 160 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

Mr. James E. Curd 
Vice President 
Citipower, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 1309 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

Any party may change their address for the purpose of this Agreement by sending 

written notice thereof to the other parties. 

7. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid 

under any applicable laws, such invalidity shall not effect any other provision of this 

Agreement that can be given effect without the invalid provision, and, to this end, the 

provisions hereof are severable. 

8. BINDING EFFECT, ASSIGNMENT, AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement and all documents executed in associatio'n herewith shall inure to the 

benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the respective parties hereto, including their 

successors, heirs, personal representatives, legatees, devisees, assigns, and permitted 

assigns. The Borrowers have no right to assign any of their rights or obligations 

hereunder without the prior written consent of the Bank. 
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9. BANK NOT A JOINT VENTURE. The Bank by entering into this 

Agreement or by any action taken pursuant to this Agreement or any loan document, will 

not be deemed a partner or joint venturer with the Borrower, and the Borrower will 

indemnifjt and hold the Bank harmless from any and all damages resulting from such a 

construction of the parties and their relationship. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day 

and year first above written. 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

CITIPOWER, L.L.C. 

By: 

ITS: Vice President 

BANE; OF MCCREARY COUNTY - 
DAVID ROSS 

ITS: President 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by Citipower, L.L.C., by James E. Curd, its Vice President of 
Whitley City, Kentucky, to be his Free act and deed and the free act and deed of 
Citipower, L.L.C.. 

Witness my hand, this @day of &'@ , 1998. A 

My commission expires: 9 *Ib -0 2- 



STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

I, the undersigned Notary Publi in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby cedi@ that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced, acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by David Ross, President, Bank of McCreary County, to be his 
free act and deed and the free act and deed of Bank of McCreary County, Whitley City, 
Kentucky. \Ih 1998. Witness my hand, this &- day of &A, 

MY commission expires: 9 .\lo .O v 

. .  
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r-7 L.L.c. (61-13052661 
P.Q. Box 1309 

cI?y, KY 42653 

BORROWER'S NAME AND ADDRESS I -I* inehds. each bDnc.wl shove. Iolnlk and SOVDI~I IV .  

8ANKOFMccREAIlyaXWIY 
P.O. 8Qx 160 
PWITIEY U'IY, ICY 42653 

LENDER'S NAME AND ADDRESS 
'You' meens !he lender. ita succassors end aaslgns. 

1 .I' 

Renewd Of - I 
I 
For velue received. I prom& to pny to you. or your order. a t  your addrass listed above the PRINCIPAL sum Of 
AND -- FD/100+ * * + + * + * + + * * * * * + * * * 
]CiSingle Advance: I wilt receive ail of this principal sum on DE- 16, 
0 Multiple Advancs: The principal sum shown nbove is the maximum amount of principel I can borrow under this nolo. On 

.. . 1 

~ )o11as~500 .000 .00  
1998 . No additional advmces ere contemplated under this note. 

I will recciva the emounl of S md lt~ture principal advances ere contemplated. 

Conditions: Tho conditions for future advances ere 

0 Open End Cradit: You and I sores that I may borrow up to the maximum principal sum more than one lime. This feecura is subject to all other 

0 Clossd End Credit: You nnd I noren that I mny borrow lsuhjoct to ell other conditions1 UP to the maximum principnl sum only one lime. 

conditions nnd expires on 

INTEflESl: I ograa to pny intomst on the outstendino prmcipel belence lrom 

RXVariahle Rata:  This rote mny then chnnge as stated below. 

16, 1998 at the rate of 8. SO0 % 

per yanr untit MARCH 16, 1999 

=Index Rata: The lutura rate will be 0.750% OVER the followitto index rete:= Yc&!K 

0 No Index: The lutura rote well nor be subject to any internal or axternel index. It w. be ontirely in your control. 

~ ~ F r e q u a n c y  and Timing: The rate on this note may change as olten os Y 
A chnnge in the interest rnte will take offect 

0 Limicacion8: Durino the term 01 this loan. the npplicable annual interest rate wil l  not be more thnn 

X .  The rate may not change more then 

E l lec t  of Variable Rata: A change in tha interest rete will have the following effect on the PaymentS: 

a T h e  nmoiint of each schsduled payment wil l  change. 

% or lass then 

% eech 

88 The amount of the final peyment wil l  change. 
, a 

ACCRUAL METHOD: Interest will be calculated on a AcNAL/365 besis. 

POST MATURITY RATE: I aoree to pay interest on the unpea balance of this note owing altar maturity. and until paid m lull. os stated below: 

.=on the snmo l ixnd or vnriable rate basis'in effect bafora meturity fas indicetad above). 

0 nt a rote squat to 

%x LATE CHARGE: If n payment is made more than 10 days after i t  is due, 1 agree to psy a late charge of $10.00 

a ADDITIONAL CHARGES: In nddlrion to interest. I ogres to pny the lollowin0 charges which 0 ere a nre nor included in tho principal omoitnt 

'AYMENTS: I agree to pay this note as lollows: a interest: I aorea IO pay accrued intsrast a "E 16" DAY OF E" 

a Principal: I ngree IO pny the principal D m  16. 

n i m v e : R E a 3 7 D D G  FES OF 518.00. 

16. 1999 

1999 

3 Installments: I agree to pay this note in payments. The first payment will be in the amount of 9 
and wil l  be dua . A  payment of 5 will be due 

thereslter. The final payment of rho entire 
unpaid hnlnnce of principal and interest will be due 

'URPOSE: T h o  pitrpose of this loan is Bus=: OF 11 PIP- !?Rm m y  10 a. . 
IDOITIONAL TERMS: 



I. - - - - . .. . . 
SECURITI'INTEREST: I givo you o socurity mterost in nll 0 1  tho Property doscribod bolow thnl I now own and Ihot I mny own in tho I l l turn linclltd,inq. 

but not limitod to. nll ports. a&xssorics. ropans. improvomonts, and occossions to Iho Proportyl. wl~otovcr tho Proporty is or may bo locotcd. and 

mnven to ry :  All invontory w under controcts 0 1  sorvico. or which or0 

all proccods and DrOdUClS Ira 

raw matoriols. work in PIOCO 9 or materials usod or consumed in my business. 

&quioment: All OqUiDmOnl includinq. but not limitod to, all mrchinery. vehicles. lurnitufo. lixlurns. mnnillnctirrinq couiprnont. larm mncliincrv nlld 
equipment. shop eouhmint. oll ice nnd recordkaeping oquipmmt. ond porls nnd tools. All oquipmont doscribod in n lis1 or 4 i c d u l o  which I uivo 
to yoii wlll olso be incliidod in thn secured prnporty. but such a list is not nacossory for o volid socurity intcrcsl in iny oquipmcnt. 

OFarm Productl: All larm i iroducts including, but no1 limitod to: 
Id nll L)oullry and livestock .and thoir young. along with thew ~ I O ~ U C ~ S ,  produco ond rcplocomonts: 
fbl nll crops. onnunl of psrenninl. nnd all products 01 the crops: and 
IC1 all lood. seed. fertilizer. rnsdicinos, and other supplies used or produced in my l a m i n g  operntions. 

f i e c o u n t . .  In.trument.. Dammmcs. Chmi1.I Papor and Other Rlghl. IO Payment: A l l  rights I hevo now mnd that I mny hovo in tho lutlrro to tho 
Pnyrnonl 01 monny incfudbrg. but no1 limited lo: 
1-11 poymant lor goods ond othor proporty sold or loosod or for ~erv icos  randored. whether or not I hovo anrnod such uoymonl by porlormnnco: 
nnd 
(bl rights to payment orising out 01 all prosont nnd Iuture debt instruments. chatlol pnpcr and loon- ond obligntions rocoivnblo. 
Tho abovo includo airy rights nnd inlorests (including 011 liens and security intaresol  which I may liavo by law or ogrooment ogamst ony occoUI11 
doblor 01 obliqor 01 mine. 

tiaGsn.r.1 Intongiblss: Al l  genernl intongiblos including. but not  limited to, tax rolunils. applications for pntcnts, potonts. copyrights. trodcmarks, 
trade socrots. good will, lrodo nomos, customer lists, permits and lranchisos. ond tho right to us0 my name. 

DGovernmont  Paymsnts and Programs: All pnymonts. accounts. goneral intangibles. or other bonolits lincluding. but not limitod to. pnymonts in 
kind. dclicicncy poymcnls. lotlors 01 ontitlcmont. warohouso receipts. storoge pnymonts. cmnrqcncy assislonco pnymenls. diversion pnymonls. 
end Conscrwtion resorvo poymcntsl in which I now have and in the future may havo m y  rights or interest and which oris0 undcr or ns a 1osuIt 
01 any prooxislinn, ctirrcii l  or luturo Fcdcrnl or stoto govornmontoi program (including, bul not limitcd to. nll pronrnins ndministcrod by tho 
tonirnodilv Crodil Corporol~ori slid tho ASCSI. 

aFMERClAL Bux;. AND Ld. ALL ASSEIS 'E4GIBLE AND IMps.x;IBLJZ Ncw CkNED OR 

hold lor ultimoto sole or Innso, or which has boon or will bo s 
Proporty. e 

=The racurod property includes. but ia not limited by. the following: REAL L m  m m  11-11-97 a 
AQJJIRED INCUIDIPG ~cc~xwrs  RE~IVABLE,  ZMIENIDW, PIP EL^, m a m y  AND mm.  

II this agreomcnt covers timbor to be cut. minerals (including oil end gosl. fixturos or crops growing or 10 be grown. the doscription 01 tho reel ostoto is: 

If checked, lilo this agresmont on the real estate records. Record owner fil no1 me1 

Tho Proporty will bo usod lor a 0 porsonnl a biisinoss a ogrtculturnl (7 purposo. 
ADDITIONAL TERMS OF THE SECURITY AGREEMENT 

GENERALLY .This ngrsement L~CUIOS this noto nnd m y  othor debt I have 
with you. now or lntcr. Howovor. i t  wil l not socure other debts il you foil 
with r c s ~ c c t  to such other dobts. Io mnke any rcquirad disclosuro about 
this socurily nqrnomcnl of il yoti lni l to qivo any roquirod norico 0 1  tho 
right a l  rescission. I1 properly dcscribcd iii this ngraomcnt is locnlcd in 
nnothor stato. this ogrmmont moy nlso. in soma circumsloncos, be 
OovnrnwI Iiy thn h w  of 11," ~ t n t o  iii which tlin Proporty is locntod. 
OWNERSHIP AND DUTIES TOWARD PROPERTY - I roprosont tho1 I own 
nll of the Propcity. or to tho oaloiit this is n purchnso monoy security 
inlcrast I will ncquiro owncrship 01 tho Proporty with tho procceds of the 
loan. I will dolend i t  ogninst ony olhar clnim. Your claim to tho Property is 
nhoml 01 tho claims 01 ony othor crnditor. I ngroo l o  do whetovor you 
rnquirn to protect your socurity intorost nnd to konp your claim in the 
Proporty ahsod 01 the claims 0 1  olhor croditors. I will not do anything to 
hnrm your poiilion. 

I will Loop bonks. rocards miid nccouiits nboul thn Properly end my 
businoss in gcnord. I will In1 you oxomine Ihcso rocords nt any roasonoblo 
limn. I will prepare any rcport or accounting you requost. which deals 
with tho Proportv. 

I will koop the Property in niy posscssion nnd will keop i t  in good 
repnir nnd use it only lor tho purpotnlsl doscribcd on pnga 1 of  this 
agrocment. I will not changa this spacifiod use without your express 
wtittcn permission. I rcprcsenl Ihnl  I am Iho original ownor 0 1  the 
Properly and. if I om not, that I have providod you with a l isl  of prior 
ownors 01 Ihs Propcrty. 

I w d  kcep 1110 Property at my addross listod on pngo 1 of  lhis 
aurecmont, unless wn ogroo I mny koop it nt nnothcr locntion. ll the 
Proporly is lo  bo usod in onothcr stnto, I will givo you n list 01 thoso 
siatos. I will not try to sol1 the Proporty unloss i t  is invontory or I rocoivo 
your wiittcn pormission to do so. ll I soil the Properly I will have the 
poymont modo paynbla to tho ordar 01 you and me. 

You may demond immediate pnymont 01 tho dobtlsl il tho debtor is 
not a natural parson and without your prior writton consent: ( 1 )  o 
bcnolicinl intorest in tho debtor is sold or Ironslorred. or (2) thero is a 
change in oithor the dont i ly  or numbor of mambnrs 01 a portnorship. or 
I31 thore is 8 chnngo in ownership 01 mor0 than 25 porce111 01 the voting 
stock 0 1  n corporation. 

I will pny nll tnros ond chnrges on tho P~OPOI~V ns lhoy bocome due. 
You hovo the right o f  raosonaWn acccss in ordnr to inspcct the Propcrty. I 
will immcdintoly inlorm you of  nny 10s: 01 damngn lo  tho Proporty. 

I1 I lnil to perlorm m y  0 1  my dulios undor this socurity agreomont. or 
nny mortgago. docd 01 trust. lion or othor socurity intorest. you may 
without notico to ma porlnrm tlin dutios or cniiso lhnm to be porlarmod. 
Your iiultt lo pcrlorm lor mo shnll not cion10 nn obliqntion to porlorm ond 
your failuro to porlorm will not procludn yo11 lrom axorcising any of your 
ntltor rights undor tho Inw or this snciirily ngroemonl. 
PURCHASE MONEY SECURITY INTEREST - For the sole purpose 0 1  
dolormining tho nxtont 01 o purchnsa money sscurity intorost arising 
under lhis security nprocmcnl: In1 paymorits on ony iioiipurchoso rnoncy 
lonn also sacurad by this ngroemenl will not bo doomod to npply to the 
Purclinso Monny Loan. and ib) pnyrnonls on tho Purchnse Money Loan 
will be doerned Io npply first lo the nonpurchaso money portion of the 
loan. if ony. and then to the purchaso mnnoy obligations in the ordar 
which tho items of ccllalarol wore acquirod or i f  acquired n l  the samo 
tima. nr tho order sclocted by you. No sncurity intorost will bo torminatod 
by applicolion 01 this lormuln. 'Purchaso Money Loon- means ony loon 
the ~ rocoeds  01 which, in wholo or in port. ara usod to acquire any 
coIIeIornI socuring tho t o m  ond all oxtonsions. ronowols. consolidoliona 
nnd rnfinnncing 01 such loan. 
PAYMENTS BY LENDER . You nre nuthorized to pay, on my bohall. 
charges I am or mny become obligated to pay to p r e s w ~ e  or protect tho 
secured property (such ea property insiirance premiums). You moy treat 
those paymonts os dvnncos  and odd them 10 the unpaid principel under 
the note secured by this ngreomont or you may demand immediate 
payment 01 the nmount odvnnced. 
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INSURANCE . I q r c o  to  buy inswilnco on tho Propmly nynin-1 llre risk* 
and lor !he nmounts you roquire and to lurnish you continuing prool 0 1  
COVWBQO. I will have Ihe insurance compnny nnmo you as loss pnvoo on 
any such policy. You mny roquiro ndded sociirily if yoil  wren llrnl 
insirrnncc ptocoeds mny bo usoel to rcpnir or rcplnco Iho PIODOI~V. I will 
buy insuronco lrom e lirm liccnsnd 10 do businoss in tho stnrn whcra y o u  
nro locntod. Tho lirm will bo ionroimbly nccontnblo to yoii. Tho ir lwinnco 
will last until the Property is rclonsod lrom this ogronmont. I1 I foil to h y  
or maintoin the insuronco lor lo i l  to name you as loss poyool you m a y  
purchnsn i t  yoursoll. 
WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS . If this ngrccmont iiicliiclcs 
occounts. I will not sottlo nny nccotint lor loss than its lull vnlue w i l h o ~ ~ t  
your writton pormission. I will colloct nll nccoiints until yoii tell mn  
otherwiso. I will koop the procnods lrom all tho nCCoUlllR nnd niry 11onll9 
which ore retiirnod to me or which I toko back in trust lor you. I wdl w l  
mix thorn wi th any otlror pr0p01ly 01 mino. I will dolivcr then? to ynii nl  
your requost. If you ask mo to  pay YOU tho lull prico on ony rcturnod 
items or iloms retaken by mysell. I will do so. 

I f  this agrosmcnt covers inventory. I will not disposo 01 i t  axcopt in my 
ordinary course 01 businoss at the lair mnrkot vduo lor tho PIO~OI~V, or at 
a minimum prico estnblisliod belwoon you nnd me. 

II this aqroement covors lorm products I will proviclo you, at your 
request. a written list 0 1  the buvorr. commission morchonls nr selling 
agonls lo or lhrouqh whom I may sell my lorm products. 111 addition to 
those porlios nomod on this writtan list. I niilhorizo you 10 notily nl yotrr 
solo discretion any odditionnl pnrties rogardinu your socuritv i i i torcsl ill 
my fnrm products. I romnin subioct to nII npplicnbln poiinltins Inr snlliii!i 
my l a m  products in violation 01 my ngreomniit with you nral tIm Food 
Security Act. In this pnragrnph the forms l a m  producls, Iwycrs. 
commission morchants ond solling ngonts hnvo tho mooiiiiigs givcn to 
them in Ihn Fcdornl Food Security Act 01 1005. 
REMEDIES . I will be in dolnull on lhis socuiity rgroomcnl il I nnr in 
deloult on any note this ngreemont securos or il I loil to koop ony promiso 
contoined in tho torms 01 this ngreemcnt. I1 I dolnult. yoti hove 011 01 tho 
rights ond romedios provided in tho note and undor the Uiiiform 
Comnicrcinl Coda. You may requiro mo lo mnko tho socurcd proporlv 
avnilnblo to you nt n ploco which is ronaonobly convonieiil. You may tnko 
possession 01 Iha socurod proporty and SOH it as providcd by IAW. Tho 
proceeds wil l bo eppliod l irsl to  your cxpcnscn ond lhon 10 tho dnbt. I 
agroo tho1 10 days written notico son1 10 my Inst known nddrcss by lirat 
closs mail will bo roasonablo notice under tho Unilorm Commcrcinl Coflc. 
My currant addross is on pago 1 .  I ogreo to inform you in writ ing 01 any 
chongo of  my nildross. 
FILING . A carbon. photographic or othor reproduction 0 1  this sncurilv 
ogroomont or tho finnncing stolcmcnt covcring tho Praporty dcscribrcl iii 
this ogroomont mny bo usod os o linnnciny slntomont whoro nllownd Iw 
law. Whcre pcrmittad by law. you may lile o linnncing stotomcnl which 
doos not contain m y  signoturo, covering tho P r o p ~ r t y  sccurcd by this 
ogrccmont. 

Any porson who signs within this box does so to givo you o sccurily 
interest in the Proporty doscribod on this pogo. This porson doos not 
promiso lo pny tho note. -1- os uscd in this sccutily ngrccmonl will 
includo tho borrowor and any porson who signs within l l i is box. 

Signod 

IDW a d JI 

. , i; . : . . .  ., . .  . .  



OEFINIIIGVS . A s  used on pnqes 1 and 2, .[il)- maans the rarms that 
npply to this'loan. -1." *me- or -my' mems each Borrower who signs 
this r 5 t a  and eoch other person or le t i ty (including gumantors. 
cndorsers, and surct?esI who agrees 10 p note (together referrad to 
n s  -us*). -You' or -yotit- manns the !@ or and it¶ s u c c a s s ~ ~ s  and 
nssiqns. 
APPLICABLE LAW . Tho Inw of the steta in which you nra locetad wil l 
noworn this ngrearnant. Any term of this agreamanl which is contrary to 
npplicnhte Inw will not tin affective. unless tha taw permits you and ma  to 
r q r c e  in w c h  n vnrintion. II Any provision of .this agraement cannot ba 
eriforccd nccorrling to its terms. this fact will hot affect the enforeaebility 
o f  I h e  remainder of this ngraemsnt. No modification of this agfaamanr 
mmy he mndo without your srprass written consant. Tima is of the 
cssenco in this ngreement. 
PAYMENTS . Each pnyment I mats on this nota wil l first raduca the 
nmount I own you for chorqes which are neither inlarest nor principal. 
The remninder of onch pnyment will than reduce accrued unpaid intarsst. 
and then unpaid principnl. If you and I agree to a dilferant application of 
payments. we wil l describe our agraemant on this note. I may prepay a 
(iart nf. or tho onlira hntnnce of this loan without penalty, unlass wa 
spcctfy to the contrnry on this note. Any partial prepayment wil l not 
axcusn or reduce nny Inter schedulad paymant unti l this nota is paid in lull 
funloss. when I m a k e  the prepayment. you and I agraa in writ ing to  the 
cnrrrrnryl. 
INTEREST . lnterost nccrues on the principal remaining unpaid from l ima 
to limo, i inti l  pnid in full. I f  I raceiva the principal in mora than one 
nrlvnrica. anch ndvanca wil l stnil  to earn interast only when I raceNa the 
ndvnnco. Tho interest rnta in affect on this note et any given lima will 
noply to ilia antira principnl sum outstanding 01 that time. 
Notwilhsrnnding nnything to the contrnry, I do not agree to pay and you 
do not intend to chnrga nny rnta of intcrast that is higher than tha 
mnximum rnta of intamst you could charge under applicabla l aw  lor tha 
eitcnsion of  credit thnt is ngreed to in this note faithar bafore or after 
mntwity l .  If nny notice of  interest nccrual is sent and is in error, w e  
mutunfly nqroe to coirect it. and if you actually collect mora interest than 
ntlowed by Inw and this ngreement. you agree to rafund i t  to me. 
INDEX RATE . The indax will serve only ns n davica for salting the 
iiitorast rnto on this notn. You do not gtiorantaa by salacting this indax, or 
thc mnrgin. thnl the inlerest rnte on this nota will ba tho sama'rate you 
chnrgc on nny othar lonns or clnss of lonns you make to ma or othar 
bntrowora. 
POST MATURITY RATE . For purposes of deciding when the 'Post 
Maturity Anre" (shown on pnge t I  applies. lha term Ynaturity- means Iha 
dnte 0 1  the last scheduled payment indicated on paga 1 of this nota or 
tho da ta  you nccolernto pnymant on the nola, whichaver is aerlibr. 
SINGLE AOVANCE LOANS . If rhis is n singla advance loan, you and I 
expect !hnt ynu wil l mnte only one advance of principal. However. you 
mny ndd other (lmotmts to  tha principal i f  you mako any payments 
described in the -PAYMENTS BY LENOER' paragraph on paga 2. 
MULTIPLE AOVANCE LOANS . If  lhis is n mullipla advance loan. you nnd 
I expect t l r f l t  you wil l make mora than one advance of principal. I f  this is 
closod end crsdit. rapnyirrg n pnrt of the principel will not entitla ma to 
ndditinnnl credit. 
SET.OFF . I iigraa thnt you may sa1 of f  nny nmount dtra end payable 
wvlnt this t w t o  ngninst any right I heva to receive money from you. 

-flqlit fn rncnivo mnriny from you- manns: 
I t  I any ilcposit account bolnnca I haws with you: 
121 nny mnnay owed to me on an item presented to you or in your 

parsassion for collection or axchange: nnd 
(31 m y  rapiwchnsa arynamcnt or other nondeposit obligetlon. 
-Any nntorrot duo and pnynble under this nota- means the total 

nmnrint of  which you are entitled to demand payment under tha terms of 
tt i i . i  nore nt rho time you set ol f .  This total includes any balance the due 
tfnre In? whirl, ynit properly accclernta under this nota. 

If my  right to  recniwe money from you is nlso ownad by somaone who 
hns not nqroed 10 pny this nore. voiir right of sat-off will apply 10 my 
i n t w e ~ t  it, 11-e ohliqntion ond to nny other nmounts I could withdraw on 
my so10 rcqitest or sndorsamant. Your right of sat-olf does not apply to 
rm account nr other obligation where my rights ma only as a 
represerirntiva. I t  R I S O  dnas not apply to any Individual Retirement 
Accounl or other tax-deferred retirement eccount. 

You will not ha linble for the dishonor of any check when the dishonor 
nccttrs tiacniisa yoti set o l f  this debt ngeinst any of  my accorrnls. I agraa 
to hold you hnrmlnss from any such claims arising as a result of your 
exercise of  your right to  set-olf .  

OEFAULT . I wilt be in default if nny ona or more Of Iha following occur: 
I t 1  I fail to make a payment on time or in tha amount due: 121 I fail to 
keep the Proparty insurad. i f  ra  d: 13) I fail to pay. or keep any 
promise. on any debt or agreeme ve with you: 141 any other creditor 
of mine attempts to collect CI) debt I own him throuph court 
proceedings: (51 I die, am declarad incomparmt. mats an assignmant lor 
the banalit of craditors, or become insolvent lsithar becmsa my  llnbdlties 
exceed my assets or I am unabla to pay my dahls as they become dual: 
16) I m a t s  any written statement or provida any financiel information that 
is untrue or ineccufate at tha time it wes provided: 17) I do or fail Io do 
something which cauoas you to bellava you wil l have dilliculty collacting 
tho amount I owe you: 181 nny collateral securing this nota is used in a 
manner or for e purposa which threatens confiscation by a legal authority: 
191 I change my nema or assuma an additional nema without list 
notifying you bafora making such e change: 1101 I fail to plant. cultNata 
and hervast crops in dua season: I 1  1 )  any loan proceeds are usad for a 
purpose that will contribute to excessive erosion of highly arodibla land or 
to the convarsion of watlnnds to produca an agricultural commodity, as 
further axplainad in 7 C.F.R. Pert 1940. Subpert G ,  Exhibit M. 
REMEDIES . If I am in default on this note you hava, but ara not limited 
to. the followin0 remedies: 

(1)You may demand immadiate paymant of all I owa you under this 
note Iprincipel. accrued unpaid intarest and othar accrued unpaid 
charges). 

121 You may set o f f  this doh! against any right I hnve to tha paymant 
01 money from you, subject to the terms of tha 'SET-OFF' 
paragraph herein. 

(31 You may demand security. additional security. or additional parties 
to be obligated to pny this nota as a condition for not using any 
other ramady. 

(41 You may rafrrse to m a t e  advances IO ma or allow purchasas on 
credit by me. 

15) You may use any remedy you hava under stnte or federal law. 
161 You may make irsa of any ramady given to you in nny agreament 

By salacting any one or mora of these ramsdias you do not Diva up  
your right to use latar any othar remedy. By waiving your right 10 declare 
an awent to ba a default, you dn not waiva your right to consider later the 
event a dafault i f  it continues or happens again. 
COLLECTION COSTS AN0 ATTORNEY'S FEES . I agree to pay all costs 
of collaction, replevin or any other or similar typa of cost i f  I am in 
default. In addition, if you hire an attorney to collect this nota, I elso 
agraa to pay any lea you incur with such nttorney plus court costs 
laxcapt whera prohibited by law). To tha extant permitted by tha United 
Statas Bankruptcy Coda, I nlso agree to pay the raasonnbla nttornay's 
fees and costs you incur to collect this dab1 as awarded by any court 
axarcising jurisdiction under the Bankrupfcy Coda. 
WAIVER . I give up my rights to raqtrira you to do certain things. I will not 
require you to: 

iscur ing this note. 

1 1 I demand payment of amounts due fprasantrnentf: 
(21 obtain officlal certification of nonpayment fprotastl: or 
13)giva notica that amounts dum hava not been paid (notice of 

I waive any defansas I h rva  based on suretyship or impairment of 
collateral. 
OBLIGATIONS INOEPENOENT . I undarsrand that I must pay this nota 
even if somaona a k a  has also agreed to pay i t  [by. for exampla. signing 
this form or a saparnte guarnntae or andorsamantl. You mny stia ma 
alone. or anyone else who is obligated on this note. or any numher of us 
togather, to collact this note. You may without notice reiensa any pnrty 
to this agreemant without releasing any other petty. I1 yott give up any of 
your rights, wi th or without notice, i t  will not affect my  duty to pay this 
note. Any axtansion of new credit to any of us, or ranawn1 of this note by 
011 or less than all of us will not raleese me from my  duty to pay it. 101 
coursa, you ara entitlad to only one paymnnt in futl.1 I agrea that you may 
at your option extend this nota or the debt representad by this nota. or 
m y  portion of tho nota or debt, from lima to tima without limit or notice 
and for any term without affecting my liability for payment of ths note. I 
will not arslgn my obligation under this agraement without yotrr prior 
written approval. 
CREDIT INFORMATION . I agraa and authorize you 10 obtain credit 
information about me from time to l ima 1101 axnmpta. by raquasting a 
credit report) and to raport to others yow cradit exparianca with ma fsuch 
as e credit raporting agency). I agree to provide you. upon requast. any 
financial statamant or information you may deem nacassary. I warrant 
that the financial stetemants and information I provide IO you are or wil l 
be eccurata. correct and complete. 

dishonor). 

SIGNATURES: I AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS NOTE IINCLUOING THOSE ON PAGES 1 AND 2). I have raceivad e copy on today's data. 

- CITIFcWER, L.L.C. (61-1305266) 

1 .  m, VICE PREXDENr 
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For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and to intlucc 

W O F  KU?E?@Y CLDEX, P . 0 .  160. twTLEycTIy . -Ky-A2GA-- .~ - - - -  . 
(herein, with its participants, successors and assigns, called 'Lender'). at its option, at any time or from time to liiiir! 
to make loans or extend other accommodations to or for the account o f m F c w E R .  L.L.C. (61-Li-O@GG).. 

(herein called "Borrower") or to engage in any other transactions with Borrower, the Undersigned hereby absolutdy 
and unconditionally guarantees to Lender the full and prompt payment when due, whether at maturity or earlier by 
reason o f  accelerntion or otherwise, of the debts, liabilitics and obligations described as follows: 

A . I f  this m i s  checked, the Undersigned guarantees to Lender the payment and performance of thc debt. 
liability or obligation of Borrower to Lender evidenced by or arising out of the f o l l o w i n g : m - - m -  .,,. . . 
j.2-16-98 ?B TIE AMxwT OF $500,000.00 "IO  UTI^,^--- and any extensions. reiiewal!: 
or replacements thereof (hereinafter referred to as the 'Indebtedness'). 

0. I f  this 0 is checked, the Undersigned guarantees to Lender the payment and performance of each a ~ u l  
every debt, liability and obligation of every type and description which Borrower may now or at any tiwc 
hereafter owe  to Lender (whether such debt, liability or obligation now exists or is hereafter crcatcd QI 

incurred, and whether it is or may be direct or indirect, due or to become due, absolute or contingent. 
primary or secondary, liquidated or unliquidated, or joint, several, or joint and several; all such debts, 
liabilities and obligations being hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indebtedness'). Without limitation. 
this guaranty includcs the following described debt(s): - .. . 

._-_ -- __---_-- _---_-..-̂ _---. 

-------- . - . . 
The maximum aggregate liability that I am subject to is S 50~000.00 - -- . . .. . . . 
In addition to the maximum aggregate liability stated, I absolutely and unconditionally guarantee paynietit 0 1  
interest accruing on the guaranteed indebtedness, and fees, charges and costs of collecting the guaraiilccd 
indebtedness, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 
This guaranty will terminate on - D- 1 6 . 9  -.------_.__-- . The termination will irol 
affect my liability with respect to obligations created or incurred prior to the termination date, or extensions or 
rencwals of, interest accruing on, or fees, costs, or expenses incurred with respect to such obligations on or 
after the termination date. . 
The term "Indebtedness" as used in this guaranty shall not include any obligations entered into between 
Borrower and Lender after the date hereof (including any extensions, renewals or replacements of such 
obligations) for which Borrower meets the Lender's standard of creditworthiness based on Qorrower's OW!I 

assets and income without the addition of a guaranty, or for which a guaranty is required but Borrower clioosc$ 
someone other than the joint Undersigned to guaranty the obligation. 

The Undersigned further acknowledges and agrees with Lender that: 
1. No act or thing need occur to establish the liability of the Undersigned hereunder, and no act or thing, cxceul 

full payment and discharge of all indebtedness, shall in any way exonerate the Undersigned or modify, reducc. liiiiit 
or release the liability of the Undersigned hereunder. 
2. This is an absolute, unconditional and continuing guaranty of payment of the Indebtedness and shall contiiiuc 

to be in force and be binding upon the Undersigned, whether or not all Indebtedness is paid in full, until this 
guaranty is revoked by written noticc actually received by the Lender, and such revocation shall not be effective a!, 
to Indebtedness existing or committed for at the time of actual receipt of such notice by the Lender, or as tu i w V  

renewals, extensions and refinancings thereof. If there be more than one Undersigned, such revocation sliall ba 
effective only as to the one so revoking. The death or incompetence of the Undersigned shall not revokc ttiis 
guaranty, except upon actual receipt of written notice thereof by Lender and then only as to the decedent or t!w 
incompetent and only prospectively. as to future transactions, as herein set forth. 

3. I f  the Undersigned shall be dissolved, shall die, or shall be or become insolvent (however defined) or ravoko 
this guaranty, then the Lender shall have the right to declare immediately due and payable, and the Undersigned 
will forthwith pay to the Lender, the full amount of all Indebtedness, whether due and payable or unmatured. I f  !lie 
Undersigned voluntarily commences or there is commenced involuntarily against the Undersigned a casc undci tllc 
United States Bankruptcy Code, the full amount of all Indebtedness, whether due and payable or unmatured, slxill 
be immediately due and payable without demand or notice thereof. 

4. Indebtedness may be created and continued in any amount, whether or not in excess of any principal or 
aggregatc amount stated above, without affecting or impairing the liability of the Undersigned as liinitrd Iirrrunrler. 
The Lender may apply any sums rcceived by or available to Lender on account of the Indebtedness from Borrower 
or any other person (except the Undersigned), from their properties, aut of any collateral security or from any olhcr 
source to payment of the excess. Such application of receipts shall not reduce, affect or impair the liability of tho 
Undersigned hereunder. If the liability of the Undersigned is limited to a stated amount pursuant to this paragraph 
4, any payment made by the Undersigned under this guaranty shall be effective to reduce or discharge sucli liabili!y 
only if accompanied by a written transmittal document, received by the Lender, advising the Lender t ha t  such 
payment is made under this guaranty for such purpose. 

. ; This guaranty i s a  unsecured; a secured by a mortgage or security agreement dated 
0 secured by -_-_------ ~ . 
This guaranty includes the additional provisions on page 2, all 

written. 
IN WITNESS WHEAEOF, this guaranty has been duly exe 

, I  . .  - 



ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

tated in this guaranty. the Undersigned will pay burse Lender for all costs 
der in connection with the m 5. Subject to any limitati 

rind expenses (including rea * ble attorneys' fees and legal expenses) incurred b 
wotsction. defense or enforccment of  this guaranty in any litigation or bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings. 

6. Whether or not any existing relationship between the Undersigned and Borrower has been changed or ended 
and whether or not this guaranty has been revoked, Lender may. but shall not be obligated to, enter into 
transactions resulting in the creation or continuance of Indebtedness, without any consent or approval by the 
Undersigned and without any notice to the Undersigned. The liability of the Undersigned shall not be affected or 
inloaired by any of the following acts or things (which Lender is expressly authorized to do, omit or suffer from 
time lo time. both before and after revocation of this guaranty. without notice to or approval by the Undersigned): 
li) any acceptance of collateral security. guarantors, accommodation parties or sureties for any or a l l  Indebtedness; 
liil any one or more extensions or renewals o f  Indebtedness (whether or not for longer than the original period) or 
an\' modilication of the interest rates, maturities or other contractual terms applicable to any Indebtedness: (iii) any 
wiiiver. adjustment. forbearance. comorornise or indulgence granted to Borrower. any delay or lack of diligence in 
?lie enforcement of  Indebtedness, or any failure to institute proceedings, file a claim, give any required notices or 
otlierwise protect any Indebtedness; (iv) any full or partial release of, settlement with, or agreement not to sue, 
Rorrower or any other guarantor or other person liable in respect of any Indebtedness; (VI any discharge of any 
cvidence of Indebtedness or tlie acceptance of any instrument in renewal thereof or substitution therefor: (vi) any 
fallurc to obtain collateral security (including rights of setoff) for Indebtedness, or to see to the proper or sufficient 
creation and perfection thereof, or to establish the priority thereof, or to protect, insure, or enforce any collateral 
security; or any release. modification, substitution, discharge, impairment, deterioration, waste, or loss of any 
crlltatcral security: fvii) any foreclosure or enforcement of any collateral security: fviii) any transfer of any 
Indebtedness or any evidence thereof; l ix l  any order of application of any payments or credits upon Indebtedness; 
1x1 ally election by the Lender under 5 1 1 1  1 fbl(21 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. 

7. The Undersigned waives any and all defenses, claims and discharges of Borrower, or any other obligor, 
pertaining to Indebtedness. except the defense of discharge by payment in full. Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing. the Undersigned will not assert, plead or enforce against Lender any defense of waiver, release, 
statute of limitations. res judicata. statute of frauds, fraud, incapacity, minority, usuty. illegality or unenforceability 
which niay be available to Borrower or any other person liable in respect of any Indebtedness. or any setoff 
available against Lender to Borrower or any such other person, whether or not on account of a related transaction. 
The Undersigned expressly agrees that the Undersigned shall be and remain liable, to the fullest extent permitted by 
a~rilicable law. for any deficiency remaining after foreclosurc of any mortgage or security interest securing 
Ir~delitedriess. whether or not the liability of Borrower or any other obligor for such deficiency is discharged 
rwrsuant to statute or judicial decision. The undersigned shall remain obligated, to the fullest extent permitted by 
iaw, tu pay such amounts as though the Borrower's obligations had not been discharged. 

0 .  The Undersigned further agrees that the Undersigned shall be and remain obligated to pay Indebtedness even 
though any other person obligated to pay Indebtedness, including Eorrower. has such obligation discharged in 
hnnkruptcy or otherwise discharged by law. "Indebtedness" shall include post-bankruptcy petition interest and 
attorneys' fees and any other amounts which Borrower is discharged from paying or which do not otherwise accrue 
t t j  Indebtedness due to Borrower's discharge, and the Undersigned shall remain obligated to pay such amounts as 
tlioirgh Borrower's obligations had not been discharged. 

9. If any payment applied by Lender to Indebtedness is thereafter set aside, recovered, rescinded or, required to 
l ie returned for any reason lincluding. without limitation, the bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of Borrower 
or any other obligor), the Indebtedness to which such payment was applied shall for the purposes of this guaranty 
l ie  deemed to have continued in existence, notwithstanding such application,.and this guaranty shall be enforceable 
iib to sucli Indebtedness as fully as i f  such application had never been made. 

10. The Undersigncd waives any claim, remedy or other right which the Undersigned may now have or hereafter 
acquire against Borrower or any other Derson obligated to pay Indebtedness arising out of the creation or perfor- 
Itlance of the Undersigned's obliqation under this guaranty, including, without limitation, any right of subrogation, 
i.:;)ntribution. reimbursement. indemnification, exoneration, and any right to participate in any claim or remedy the 
llnrlersigned may have against the Borrower, collateral, or other party obligated for Borrower's debts, whether or 
riot such claim, remedy or right arises in equity, or under contract, statute or common law. 

11. The Undersigned waives presentment, demand for payment, notice of dishonor or nonpayment, and protest 
of any instrument evidencing Indebtedness. Lender shall not be required first to resort for payment o f  the 
Indebtedness to Borrower or other persons or their properties, or first to enforce, realize upon or exhaust any 
cnllaterd security for Indebtedness, before enforcing this guaranty. 

12. The liability of the Undersigned under this guaranty is in addition to and shall be cumulative with all other 
liAl>ilitics of the Undcrsigned to Lender as guarantor or otherwise. without any limitation as to amount, unless the 
iristruinent or agreement evidencing or creating such other liability specifically provides to the contrary. 

13. This guaranty shall be enforceable against each person signing this guaranty, even if only one person signs 
and regardless of any failure of other persons to sign this guaranty. I f  there be more than one signer, all 
iigreements and promises herein shall be construcd to be. and are hereby declared to be, joint and several in each 
of cvcry particular and shall bc fully binding upon and enforceable against either, any or all the Undersigned. This 
griaranty shall bc effcctivc upon delivery to Lender, without further act, condition or acceptance by Lender, shall be 
liinifing upon the Undersigned and the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of the Undersigned and shall 
iriiiil: to the benefit of Lender and its participants, successors and assigns. Any invalidity or unenforceability of any 
provision or application o f  this guaranty shall not affect other lawful provisions and application hereof, and to this 
and the provisions of this guaranty are declared to be severable. Except as authorized by the terms herein, this 
y i i i a n t y  may not be waived. modified, amended, terminated. released or otherwise changed except by a writing 
sigilad by the Undersigned and Lender. This guaranty shall be governed by the laws of the State in which i t  is 
executed. The Undersigned waives notice 01 Lender's acceptance hereof. 

. 
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PIPELINE EXTENSlON PROPOSAL 

March 19,1999 

TO: Dan Forsberg 

This equates to a 2.43 year pay out. 
E C  

From: Jimmy Curd 

RE: Planned extension 

I am proposing an extension of 3000’ of 2” main pipeline from Poplar Grove Road to Bob Musgrove Road 
. Thus will enable us to pick up eleven new customers and will eventually loop the 2” line into a planned 4” 
main line. The line is to be laid in-house as it will all be mostly going € o m  house to house running 
services. 

INCOME 4 

Eleven (1 1) customer of wliicli ciglit (9) are free hook-up signees. 
Two (2) customers at $250.00 each = $SOO.OO. 
Eleven customcrs at an avcrage of $400.00 per year pcr cusloincr =$4400.00 

COST 

3000’ 2” main line @ 55 cents =$1650.00 
2000’ 1” Servicc line @ 33 cents = $660.00 
Eleven service connections @ $350.00 each = $3850.00 
550’ of R.O.W. @! $1.00 per foot = $SSO.OO 
Fourteen days labor @! $40.00 per hour = $4480.00 

TOTAL COST $11,190.00 
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LOAN AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 16th day of December, 1998, 

by and between CITIPOWER, L.L.C., P.O. Box 1309, Whitley City, Kentucky 42653, 

PARTY OF THE FIRST PART, (hereinafter referred to sometimes as ‘’Borrower’’ or 

“First Party”), and BANK OF McCREARY COUNTY, P.O. Box 160, Whitley City, 

Kentucky 42653, PARTY OF THE SECOND PART, (hereinafter referred to as “Bank” 

or “Second Party”). 

WITNESSETH: WHEREAS, Borrower desires to obtain a loan from Bank in 

the amount of Five Hundred Thousand and no/] 00 Dollars ($500,000.00) for the purpose 

of: paying construction costs for completion of gas pipeline from McCreary County to 

Scott County and connected to Citizens Gas, and 

WHEREAS, Bank is willing to make such a loan upon the terms 2nd conditions 

herein set fonh; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. AMOUNT. The Bank hereby agrees to loan to Borrower, jointly and 

severally, the sum of Five Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($500,000 00). 

2. NOTE. The indebtedness shall be evidenced by a Promissory Note payable to 

the order of the Bank. The note shall become due on December 16, 1999. The Bank may 

however demand payment in full before the maturity date upon adverse re-evaluation of 

Borrower’s creditworthiness, upon failure of Borrower to comply with any terms of this 

agreement, or upon Borrower being in default of the Promissory note. 

3 .  PAYMENTS. Payments shall be made as follows: quarterly interest 

payments beginning March 16, 1999 and principal due at maturity. All payments will be 

applied first to retire interest due, and the remainder to the unpaid principal balance. 



4. INTEREST. The note executed pursuant hereto by Borrower shall bear 

interest at a rate of 8.50%. This rate shall be in effect until March 16, 1999. Interest shalI 

be computed upon a 365 day year basis and shall be payable according to the terms of the 

note. The note shall bear interest at a rate equal to three-fourths percent (0.75%) in 

excess of the ‘’New York Prime Rate”, subject to change quarterly. 

5. BALANCE. The principal amount of the loan is Five Hundred Thousand and 

no/lOO Dollars ($500,000.00). Principal payments shall be made in accordance with the 

terms of the note. 

EXPENSES 

The Borrower agrees to pay all taxes and assessments, all recording fees, attorney 

fees, appraisal fees, and all other expenses associated with the loan as applicable. 

: SECURITY/COLLATERAL 

This loan is subject to the Borrower providing to Bank security and collateral 

securing the repayment of any and all amounts loaned. The form and substance of said 

security and liens perfected on said collateral is to be in a form acceptable to Bank in its 

own discretion. 

The Borrower shall grant to the Bank a pledge and perfected security interest in 

the following: all assets tangible and intangible now owned or hereafter acquired including 

accounts receivable, inventbry, pipeline, machinery and equipment. The security interest 

shall be evidenced by the execution and delivery of security agreements, assignments, 

and/or pledges in a form acceptable to the Bank. 

WARRANTIES 

The Borrower convenants and warrants to the Bank on the date of the execution 

hereof each of the following matters: 

1. AUTHORIZATION. Borrower represents that there is no known legal 

impediment which in any way restricts or prevents the execution or carrying out of this 
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agreement in any respect, and that this agreement and executed Notc and Sccurity 

Documents are valid and binding obligations of the Borrower. 

2. FINANCLQL CONDITION. Borrower agrees to hrnish to the Bank true 

' and correct balance sheets, income statements, and tax returns which fairly reflect the 

Borrower's financial condition, and hrthermore to continue to hniisk these items on an 

semi-annual basis. 

3 .  TAXES. Borrower has paid all taxes, other ihan those wbich might be duc but 

not payable. Borrower is not in default in thd payment of any tax nor is any assessment 

threatened in respect thereof. 

4. TITLE TO PROPERTY. The Borrower has good and marketable title to its 

respective assets as disclosed on the financial statement supplied to the Bank hcrcundcr. 

5. ACTIONS PENDING. There are no actions, suits, investigations, or 

proceedings pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened against the 

Borrower by any Court, arbitrator, administrative, or ~overnrnental body, cithcr singularly 

or in the aggregate, which might result in a material adverse change in the business, 

condition, and operations of the borrower. 

C0NI)ITlONS PRECEDEMT 

The obligation of the Bank to disbursc the loan shall be subject to thc satisfaction 

of each of the following conditions precedent: 

1. EXECUTION OF PROMISSORY NOTE (NOTES). The Notc or Notes in 

the form acceptable to Bank shall have been executed for the principal amount of the loan 

and delivered by the Borrower to the Bank. 

2. CORPORATE AUTHORIZATION. The Bank shall have rcceived in a form 

acceptable to the Bank ail corporate documents authorizing the encumbrance of corporate 





a 3 .  OTHER DOCUMENTS. The Bank shall have received upon request from 

the Borrower any other reasonable documents relating to this Agreement or conteniplated 

by this loan transaction in a form acceptable to Bank. 

DEFAULT 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default by the 

Borrower under this Agreement and thereupon any Note or Notes issued hereunder, at the 

option of the Bank, will immediately become due and payable upon written notice; each of 

the following shall constitute an event of default hereunder. 

1 .  NON-PAYMENT OR LATE PAYMENTS. Non-payment when payment is 

due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or interest of any Note, 

whether short tern or long term. Any installment of principal or accrued interest on any 

Note not paid in full, punctually when due and payable as provided in any Note. 

2. BREACH OF COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS. The Borrower shall 

fail or omit to perform or observe any covenant, agreement, condition or other provision 

contained or referred to in this Agreement, or in any Security Agreement, Note, or any 

other instrument securing any portion of the indebtedness or Note owed or in any other 

instrument which constitutes security for the repayment of thc indebtedness or Note or is 

related hereto, and such failure or omission shall not have been fully corrected to the 

satisfaction of the Bank within thirty (30) days after the giving of written notice by thc 

Bank to the Borrower thereof. 

3 .  MISREPRESENTATION AND ACCURACY OF STATEMENTS. Any 

representation or warranty or other statement of facts made by the Borrower herein in any 

writing, certificate, report, or statement at any time furnished to the Bank pursuant to or in 

connection with this Loan Agreement or otherwise shall provc to be false and misleading 

in any material respect when made or shall fail to state a material fact necessary in order to 

make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading. If any representation or a 



warranty made by the Borrower in any written statement or certificate now or later 

hrnished by or for the Borrower in connection herewith, shall prove untrue in any 

material respect as of the date upon which it was made. 

‘ 0  

4. INSOLVENCY. (a) The Borrower shall make an assignment for thc benefit 

of creditors, file a petition in Bankruptcy, Petition or apply to any tribunal for the 

appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustee for any one of them, or a substantial 

part of their assets, or shall commence any proceeding under any bankruptcy, 

reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or liquidation law or 

statute of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect; or if there shall have been 

filed any such petition or application or any such proceeding shall have been commenced 

against any of them, in which an order for relief is entered or which remains undismissed 

for a period of thirty (30) days or more; or the Borrower by any act or omission shall 

indicate their consent to , approval of or acquiescence in any such petition, application or 

proceeding or order for relief or the appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustees 

for any of them or any substantial part of any of their property, or shall suffer any such 

custodianship, receivership or trusteeship to continue undischarged for a pctiod of thirty 

(30) days or more; or (b) The Borrower shall generally not pay their dcbts as such debts 

become due; or (c) The Borrower shall have concealed, removed or permitted to be 

concealed or removed, any part of their property, with intcnt to hinder, delay or defraud 

their creditors, or any of them, or made or suffered a transfer of any of their property 

which may be fraudulent under any Bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance or similar law, or 

shall have made any transfer of their property to or for thc benefit of a creditor at a timc 

when other creditors similarly situated have not been paid; or shall have sufTercd or 

permitted, while insolvent, any creditor to obtain a lien upon any of their propcrty throuzh 

legal proceedings or distraint which is not vacated within thirty (30) days from the date 

hereof 



MISCELLANEOUS 

1. WAIVERS. No delay or omission of the Bank to exercise any right upon the 

happening of any event of default shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein. No waiver of any default herein 

shall effect any later default or impair any right of Bank. No singIe, partial or full exercise 

of any right of Bank shall preclude other or hrther exercise thcreof 

2. GOVERNING LAWS. This Agreement, the Note and all documents securing 

same shall each be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

3. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the Bank and the Borrower in accordance with its terms. This 

Agreement, including the Note and other instruments and documents executed to secure 

and collateralize said loan in the forms acceptable to Bank, including any correspondence 

tiom the Bank to Borrower, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 

hereto and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements with respect 

to matters contained or referred to herein between the parties or any of thc interested 

parties or any third parties. This Agreement may not be modified, amended or terminated 

except by written agreement signed by the parties hereto. The headings of thc several 

sections of this Agreement are for the convenience of reference only and shall not cffect 

the meaning hereof 

4. SINGLE AGREEMENT. This Agreement tnay be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all of which together shall constitute a single instrument. The Counterpart 

of this Agreement retained by the Bank for its permanent file shall be deemed to be the 

original for purposes of comparison of provisions. 

5 .  FEES AND EXPENSES. The Borrower shall pay all out-of-pocket expenses 

incurred by the Bank in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder, 



including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of the Bank’s counse incurrec n 

connection with this Agreement, the Note, and other documents related to or referred to 

as collateral or documents securing said Loan. 

6 .  NOTICES. All notices referrcd to or permitted to bc given hercunder shall be 

given in writing or personally delivered or scnt by mad, addressed as follows: 

If to the Bank: Mr. David Ross 
President 
Bank of McCreary County 
P.O. Box 160 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

If to the Borrower: Mr. James E. Curd 
Vice President 
Citipower, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 1309 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

Any party may change their address for the purpose oF this Agreemcnt by sending 

written notice thereof to the other parties. 

7. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid 

under any appiicable laws, such invalidity shall not effect any other provision ofthis 

Agreement that can be given effect without the invalid provision, and, to this end, the 

provisions hereof are severable. 

8. BINDING EFFECT, ASSIGNMENT, AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement and all documents executed in associatio’n herewith shall inure to the 

benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the respective parties hereto, including thcir 

successors, heirs, personal representatives, legatees, devisees, assigns, and permitted 

assigns. The Borrowers have no right to assign any of their rights or obligations 

hereunder without the prior written consent of the Bank. 

. .. 



9. BANK NOT A JOINT VENTURE. The Bank by entering into this 

Agreement or by any action taken pursuant to this Agreement or any loan document, will 

not be deemed a partner or joint venturer with the Borrower, and the Borrower will 

indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from any and all damages resulting from such a 

konstruction of the parties and their relationship. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day 

and year first above written. 

CITIPOWER, L.L.C. 

By: 

ITS: Vice President 

BANK OF MCCREARY COUNTY - 
DAVID ROSS 

ITS: President 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

I, the undersigned Notary PubIic in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby certiFy that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by Citipower, L.L.C., by James E. Curd, its Vicc President of 
Whitley City, Kentucky, to be his free act and deed and the free act and deed of 
Citipower, L.L.C.. 

Witness my hand, this )!@day of , 1998. 

My commission expires: q * / b  -0 z W 



STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced, acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by David Ross, Presidcnt, Bank of McCreary County, to be his 
free act and deed and the free act and deed of Bank of McCreary County, Whitley City, 
Kentucky. 4-h 1998. Witness my hand, this & day of u, 
MY commission expires: 9 -\/o .O - x 



-, 'L.L.C. (61-1 
P.O. KX 160 
KHJ3LEX CTIY, Ky 42653 

P . 9 .  Box 1309 
MITTLEY CTlY, KY 42653 
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AOOITIONAL TERMS OF THE NOTE 

e 
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REMEDICS . I1 I .m n dalnull on thb nota you h a w .  but ma not limited 
to, Ih. I o U o w h ~  1om.dl.s: 

I 1  I You m q  damsnd 'inmediate poymanf 01 dl I awe you u n d a  Ihis 
note lprinctpd. accrued unpaid i n l a r n l  ad olhm mcruad u n p d  
ch8fg.a). 

(21 Y o u  m w  sol olf thk doh1 egninst any right I hnva to tha pwmanl 
of monw f r o m  you. subiact to the tarmi 01 tha 'SET.OFF' 
paregreoh herem. 

I31 You rnv d-md s ~ c w i t y .  dditlond sscuiity. m rrldiliond p r h a  
IO bm oblqatod lo  p q  this nolo as a condition lor not using nny 
0th- ram.ch. 

I41 You mav rslusa to meka advances IO me or allow purchases on 
nadir by me. 

(51 You m w  ufe m y  ramedy you how undar stnta 01 Isdull law. 
16lYou m w  make 11s. 01 m y  remedy given to you in m y  aqasment 

By solacting ony one o. mora of Ihase romotllas you do not g i w  up 
your rMl lo  use lotar m y  olhar ramdv.  By waivmg your rtghl IO dadera 
n event to be e dalaull. you dn not wmiva your rwl 10 consdar latar the 
avant a d a f a J I  i l  it conlinuar or h o p p a s  wain. 
COLLECTION COSTS AN0 ATTORNEY'S FEES . I w a o  IO pey dl costs 
of cMocrton. raPlavin or m y  other or smilar type of cost 11 I m in 
dalaull. In ddltion. il you hire m eltanav to cDI(ec1 this nota. I dao 
q y a a  Io pay any la. you incur with such attornay plus court costs 
Iaxcapl whara prohibilad bv fnwl. To the a x t m t  pami l tad  bv ilia Unitmi 
Slatas Bmkruotcv Code. I dmo W a e  to pay rho faasonable nrtornmy's 
lees ond coals YOU incur to sd(ecf rhis deai an .*.adad bv m y  COUII 

axereking jurisdiction unda the Emkruetcy Coda. 
WAIVER ' I oivo UP my rights to rmquira you to do certain things. I ml( not 
raw.a you to: 

sacurkg I h i m  note. 

(11 demand pwmonl of mounts due Ipe~antmenrl; 
121 obtain officio1 cwtilicatmn 01 nonpvmant  Iprotastl: m 
1 3 1 g 1 ~  nocko the1 m ~ t s  duo have not baan paid lnotica 01 

f wsiva my dafmsos I here  bared on swefvyrkin w impormmf  01 
colletoral. 
OBLIGATIONS INOCPCNDENT . I undorstand that I m u i t  per  lhis noto 
mvm if setnoone dse hw dao w a d  Io pny it (by. for emnpla, skping 
Ihu lorrn 01 a s q m n l e  wanntw or d o r s a n m t l .  You may SIIE me 
dona. or myone etsa who is obliqnred on rhk note. or any numher 01 us 
l o r p t h a .  10 coUecf this nets. You rnm without notice i a l a n o  m y  party 
to thn e g m a e n l  vrithout ralaasing n v  olhnr pmfv. II yoti aive up m v  of 
vow rl@t¶. 4 t h  a without norice. il wdl not allacl my duty to p w  thn 
nota. Any rmwsion 01 new eredil Io my of us. or renewd ol thor nolo b y  
dl 01 lams thm dl 01 us w l  net  rda6ae m e  lrom my duty IO p ~ y  it. (Of 
cow-. y o u  n a  entitled to only m e  p n m r n t  b lull.1 I rmee that you may 
a1 vow option artand this nolo a tho dab1 repraaantad bv this nota. or 
my pwt lon  01 Iho nola a dabc, lrom t h o  IO rim. wilhoul limit 01 notic. 
md for MY tsrm wifkouf alfacfina m y  tiobilift fw o w a n t  of rho nota. I 
rriil not nslg" my obliqaliar under this -..men1 without p i o r  
rrrr1.n . ~ n m w d .  
CREDIT lNCORMAllON . I myas end m l h a i r a  you IO obtain u a d i l  
inlownotion abour me lrom tima to tune (lor aaompla. by raqueminq 
credit raowtl md to r a ~ o n  to o t h r s  y a w  modi( arpotimea wilh ma l w c h  
m a eredlf rworrhg ~ m n c v l .  I a ~ e e  to provide y o u .  upan rayu.st, my 
fiimcid stelammi w informaism y o u  may d a m  necessry .  I wrtrant 
that the I i a c i d  slatamenis ad inlotmoilon I proride to you M. M rill 
be .ccweia. corfecr a d  comoleta. 

dishonorl. 

SIGNATURES: I AGREE 7 0  THE TERMS OF THIS NOTE IINCLUDING m0S.E ON PAGES 1 AN0 21. I have raceivad a copy on today's dote. 

-- CKTIFCWER, L.L.C. (61-1305266) 



GUARANV 

cxR?XR-l5,-1998 -.----- -.-- ..... . 
For good and valuable consideration. the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and 10 induce 

fherctn. w ~ t h  its participants, successors and assigns. called 'Lender'). at its option, at any time or from lime to IIIIV? 
to make loans or extend other accommodations to or for the account o f ~ ~ & L . L . C . [ 6 1 = & 3 O ~ ? G G )  _. 

(herctti called 'Oorrower') or to engage in any other transactions with Borrower, the Undersigned hercbv absolulzl*/ 
and unconditionally guarantees to Lender tho full and prompt payment when due. whether at maturity or elrrlior by 
rcason of  Jcceleralion or otherwise. of the debts. liabilities and obligations described as followS: 

A. I f '  t h ~ s  in is checked, the Undersigned guaranrees to Lender the payment and performancc of thc debt. 
liability or obligation of Borrower to Lender evidenced by or arising out of the  following:^-..^- 
UiG,% IN m!E "r OF s~00.000.0~ To mm,Ur--- and any extensions. reiiewal!: 
or replacements thereof (hereinafter referred to as the 'Indebtedness'). 

E. I f  this 0 is checked. the Undersigned guarantees to Lender the payment and performance of each a ~ r d  
evcry debt. liabiliw and obligation of every type and description which Borrower may now or at  dnv tiwe 
hereafter owe to Lender (whether such debt. liability or obligation n o w  exists or is hereafter crcatcd 21 

incurred, and whether i t  is or may be direct or indirect, due or to become due, absolute or continyeiit. 
primary or secondary, liquidated or unliauidated, or joint, several. or joint and several; all such debts. 
liabilities and obligations being hereinafter collectively referred to as the 'Indebtedness'). Without limitatilm. 

W-GF-f.m!mE- * OXINIY, --- P.O. BQX 160, W" dy. 3KS26f3- - . ~ -  - -- . .. . . ~ - 

__-I__--. - -_-..__. ---- -..--..- ..-. 

. . 

this guaranty includes the following described debtb): --------__.- - . 
------ --_-___._.. . . . ' 

The maximum aggregate liability that I am subject to is S ~00.000.00 - .-- . . .. 
In addition to the maximum aggregate liability stated, I absolutely and unconditionally guarantee paynreilt ct 
interest accruing on the guaranteed indebtedness. and fees, charges and costs of collecting the guarlrirlcod 
indebtedness, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

. The termination will IIUI T h s  guaranty will terminate on 16, 1999 ____.____ 
affect my liability with respect to obligations created or incurred prior to the termination date, or extensions or 
rencwals of. interest accruing on, or fees, costs, or expenses incurred with respect to such obligations on or 
after ttic termination date. 
The term 'Indebtedness' :as used in lhis guaranty shall not include any obligations entered into betwcei! 
Borrower and Lender after the date hereof (including any extensions. renewals or replacements o f  such 
obligations) for which Borrower meets the Lender's standard of  creditworthiness based on Oorrower's owv 
asscts and income without the addition of a guaranty, or for which a guaranty is required but Borrowcr cliouscz 
someone other than the joint Undersigned to guaranty the obligation. 

The Undersigned further acknowledges and agrees with Lender that: 
1. No act or thing need occur to establish the liability of the Undersigned hereunder. and no act or thing. cxccul 

full payment and discharge of a l l  indebtedness, shail in any way exonerate the Undersigned or modify, reduco, liiriit 
or relcasc the liability of the Undersigned hereunder. 

2. This is an absolute. unconditional and continuing guaranty of  payment of the Indebtedness aiid shall contitiuc 
to be in force and be binding upon the Undersigned. whether or not all Indebtedness is paid in full. until Ili is 
yuaranty is revokcd by written noticc actually received by the Lender, and such revocation shall not bo offective a:, 
to Indebtedness existing or committed for at the time of actual receipt of such notice by the Lender, or as tu iriiv 
renewals, extensions and refinancings thereof. I f  there be more than one Undersigned, such revocation slid1 bc 
effective only as to the one sa revoking. The death or incompetence of the Undersigned shall not revoke thi5 

guarantv, except upon actual receipt of written notice thereof by Lender and then only as to the decedent or VIO 
incompctcnt and only prospectively, as to future transactions. as herein set forth. 

3. I f  the Undersigned shall be dissolved, shall die, of shall be or become insolvent (however defined) or revokc! 
this guaranty. then the Lender shall have the riQht to declare immediately due and payable. and the Undersigncd 
will forthwith pav to the Lender, the full amount of all Indebtedness, whether due and payable or unmatured. I f  !IIC 
Undersigned voluntarily commences or there is commenced involuntarily against the Undersigned a casc undcr t l ~ c  
United States Bankruptcy Code, the full amount of all Indebtedness. whether due and payable or unmatured, sliiill 
be  immediately due and payable without demand or notice thereof. 

4. Indebtedness may be created and continued in any amcunt. whether or not in excess of any principal nr 
aggrcgatc amount stated above, without affecting or impairing the liability of the Undersigned as limited Iwrrutid[:1. 
The Lender may apply any sums received by or available to Lender on account of  the Indebtedness from Uorrowcr 
of any other ucrson [except the Undersigned), from their properties, out of any collateral security or from any othw 
source to payment of the excess. Such application of receipts shall not reduce, affect or imDair the liability of thn 
Undersigned hereunder. If the liability of the Undersigned is limited to a stated amount pursuant to this parayraph 
4, any payment made by the Undersigned under this guaranty shall be effective io reduce or discharge such liabili!y 
only i f  accompanied by a written cransmittal document, received by the Lender, advising the Lender that such 
paymsnt i s  made under this guaranty for such purpose. 

'. 

This guaranty i s m  unsecured; 0 secured by a mortgage or security agreement dated _ _ _ _ _ . . .  . 
0 sccured by ---- -_.---. . 
This guaranty includes the additional provisions on page 2. sll o f  which are rn a I part hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this guaranty has been duly execggd+&dersig- y a d year fir:[ above 
writ ten 



e AODITIONAL PROVISIONS 

5. Subject to any stated in this guaranty. the Undersigned will pay or reimburse Lender for al l  costs 
:in4 expenses lincluding reasonable attorneys' fees and legal expenses) incurred by Lender in connection with the 
rirotection, defense or enforcement of this guaranty in any litigation or bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings. 

6. Whether or not any existing relationship between the Undersigned and Borrower has been changed or ended 
and whether or not this guaranty has been revoked, Lender may. but shall not be obligated to. enter into 
Iransactions resulting in the creation or continuance of Indebtedness. without any consent or approval by the 
Undersigned and without any notice to the Undersigned. The liability of the Undersigned shall not be alfectcd of 
intoaired by any of the following acts or things [which Lender is expressly authorized to do, omit or suffer from 
lime fo time. both before and after revocation of  this guaranty. without notice to or aoproval by the Undersigned): 
111 any acceptance of  collateral security, guarantors. accommodation parties or sureties for any or al l  Indebtedness; 
liil a v  one or more extensions or renewals of Indebtedness (whether or not for longer than the original period) or 
any modification of the interest rates. maturities or other contractual terms aoplicable to any Indebtedness: liiil any 
w w o r .  adjustment. forbearance, compromise or indulgence granted to Borrower, any delay of lack of diligence in 
rile enforcement o f  Indebtedness. or any failure to institute proceedlngs, file a claim. give any required notices or 
ritlisrwise ororect anv Indebtedness: (iv) any full or partial release of. settlement with. or agrement not to sue. 
Rorrower or any other guarantor or other person liable in respect of any Indebtedness: lv l  any discharge of any 
cvdcnce of Indebtedness or the acceptance of  any instrument in renewal thereof or substitution therefor: (vi1 any 
fmlurc to obtain collateral security (including rights o f  setofll for Indebtedness, or to see to the proper or sufficient 
rreation and perfection thereof. or to establish the priority thereof, or to protect. insure, or enforce any collateral 
swuritv: or any release. modification, substitution, discharge. impairment, deterioration, waste, or loss of any 
cdlarcral security; Iviil any foreclosure or enforcement of any collateral security: Iviii) any transfer of any 
Indebtedness or any evidence thereof; ( ixl  any order of application of any payments or credits upon Indebtedness; 
bl ally election by the Lender under 5 1 1 1 1 Ib)lZt of the United States Bankruptcy Code. 

7. The Undersigned waives any and all defenses, claims and discharges of Borrower. or any other obligor, 
pertaining to Indebtedness. except the defense of discharge by payment in full. Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing. the Undersigned will not assert, plead or enforce against Lender any defense of waiver, release, 
statute 0 1  limitations. res iudicata, statute of frauds, fraud. incapacity. minoriry. usurv, illegalitv or unenforceability 
wl i ich may be available to Borrower or any other person liable in respect o f  any Indebtedness. or any setoff 
available against Lender to Eorrower or any such other person, whether or not on account of a related transaction. 
The Undersigned expressly agrees that the Undersigned shall be and remain liable, to the fullest extent permitted by 
mrilicable law. for any deficiency remaining after foreclosure of any mortgage or security interest sccuring 
Irtdelitedness. whether or not the liability of Borrower or any other obligor for such deficiency is discharged 
nwruan t  to statute or judicial decision. The undersigned shall remain obligated. to the fullest extent permitrcd by 
iaw. tu pay such amounts as though the Borrower's obligations had not been discharged. 

0. The Undersigned further agrees that the Undersigned shall be and remain obligated to pay Indebtedness even 
rhough any orher perron ohligated to Day Indebtedness, including Eorrowcr. has :uch obligation discharged in 
h n n h m t c y  or otherwise discharged by law. 'Indebtedness' shall include post-bankruptcy petition interest and 
atlnrnevs' fees and any other amounts which Borrower is discharged from paying or which do not otherwise accrue 
Ili Indebtedness due to Borrower's discharge. and the Undersigned shall remain obligated to pay such amounts as 
i l i ~ i i i g h  Borrower's obligations had not been discharged. 

3. If any payment applied by Lender to Indebtedness is thereafter set aside, recovered, rescinded or required to 
l ie rcturned for any reason (including. without limitation, the bankruptcy, insolvencv or reorganization of Borrower 
or any other obligor). !he lndsbtedness to which such payment was applied shall for the purposes of this guaranty 
l ie  deemed to have continued in existence, notwithstanding such application..and this guaranty shall be enforccable 
it?. to such Indebtedness as fully as i f  such application had never been made. 

10. The Undersigncd waives any claim. remedy or other right which the Undersigned may now have or hereafter 
Jcaiiire against Borrower or any other person obligated to pay Indebtedness arising out of the creation or perfor- 
rltance of the Undersigned's obligation under this guaranty, including. without limitation, any right of subrogation, 
b:;intribution. reirnbursemcnt. indemnification, exoneration, and any right to participate in any claim or remedy the 
l lndorsigned may have against the Borrower, collateral, or other party obligated for Borrower's debts, whether or 
riot sucli claim, remedy or right arises in equity, or under contract, statute or common law. 

1 1. The Undersigned waives presentment, demand for payment. notice of dishonor or nonpayment. and protest 
0 1  any instrument evidencing Indebtedness. Lender shall not be required first to resort lor payment of the 
Indebtedness to Borrower or other persons or their properties. or first to enforce, realize upon or exhaust any 
collateral security for Indebtedness, before enforcing this guaranty. 

12. The liability of  the Undersigned under this guaranw is in addition to and shal l  be cumulative with all other 
lii l i i l itics of the Undersigned to Lender as guarantor or otherwise, without any 1im;tation as to amount. UnlCSS the 
irostrtrinsnt or agrcement evidencing or creating such other liability specifically provides to the contrary. 

1.3. This guaranty shall be enforceable against each person signing this guaranty. even if only one person signs 
and legardfess of any failure of other persons to sign this guaranty. If there be more than one signer. all 
,~grcements and promises herein shall be construcd to be, and are hereby declarcd to be, joint and several in each 
111 cvcrv particular and shall bc fully binding upon and enforceable against either. any or all the Undersigned. This 
f,tlafa,liy shall bc clfcclivc upon delivery to Lender, without further act, condition or acccptancc by Lender, shall be 
Ilincling upon the Undersigned and the heirs, representatives. successors and assigns of thc Undersigned and shall 
I I I I~ IC to the benefit of Lender and its participants. successors and assigns. Any invalidity or unenforceabilitv of any 
prnvision or apnlication of this guaranty shall not affect other lawful provisions and application hereof. and to this 
and the provisions of this guaranty are declared to be severable. Except as authorized by the terms herein. this 
yilil lanty may not be waived, modified, amended, terminated, released or otherwise changed except by a writing 
ciglied by the Undersigned and Lender. This guaranty shall be governed by the laws of the State in which i t  is 

84. 1 Ot 21 
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executed. The Undersigned waives notice of Lender's acceptance hereof. 

- -- 
. . . . . .  

' ' 1 .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . i '  , .  . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  . .  



LOAN AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6th day of January, 1999, by 

and between CITPOWER, L.L.C., P.O. Box 1309, Whitley City, Kentucky 42653, 

PARTY OF THE FIRST PART, (hereinafter referred to sometimes as “Borrower” or 

‘Erst  Party”), and BANK OF McCREARY COUNTY, P.O. Box 160, Whitley City, 

Kentucky 42653, PARTY OF THE SECOND PART, (hereinafter referred to as “Bank” 

or “Second Party”). 

WITNESSETH: WHEREAS, Borrower desires to obtain a loan from Bank in 

the amount of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($250,000.00) for the 

purpose of purchasing an 8.6% ownership interest in Cambridge Resources, Inc., and 

WHEREAS, Bank is willing to make such a loan upon the terms and conditions 

herein set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. AMOUNT. The Bank hereby agrees to loan to Borrower, jointly and 

severally, the sum of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($250,000.00). 

2. NOTE The indebtedness shall be evidenced by a Promissory Note payable to 

the order of the Bank. The note shall become due on January 6,2000. The Bank may 

however demand payment in full before the maturity date upon adverse re-evaluation of 

Borrower’s creditworthiness, upon failure of Borrower to comply with any terms of this 

agreement, or upon Borrower being in default of the Pronlissory note. 

3. PAYhIENTS. Payments shall be made as follows quarterly interest 

payments beginning April 6, 1999 and principal due at maturity. All payments Will be 

applied first to retire interest due, and the remainder to the unpaid principal balance. 

4. LiTEREST. The note executed pursuant hereto by Borrower shall bear 

interest at a rate of8.50% This rate shall be in efect until Apnl 6, 1999. Interest shall be 



computed upon a 365 day year basis and shall be payable according to the terms of the 

note. The note shall bear interest at a rate equal to three-fourths percent (0.75%) in 

excess of the Wew York Prime Rate”, subject to change quarterly. 

5. BALASCE. The principal amount of the loan is Two Hundred Fifty 

Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($250,000.00). Principal payments shall be made in 

accordance with the terms of the note. 

EXPENSES 

The Borrower agrees to pay all tases and assessments, all recording fees, attorney 

fee appraisal fees, and all other expenses associated with the loan as applicable. 

SECURITY/COLLATERAL 

This loan is subject to the Borrower providing to Bank security and collateral 

securing the repayment of any and all amounts loaned. The form and substance of said 

security and liens perfected on said collateral is to be in a form acceptable to Bank at its 

own discretion. 

The Borrower shall grant to the Bank a pledge and perfected security interest in 

the following: all assets tangible and intangible now owned or hereafier acquired including 

accounts receivable, inventory, pipeline, machinery and equipment. The security interest 

shall be evidenced by the execution and delivery of security agreements, assignments, 

and/or pledges in a form acceptable to the Bank. 

WARRANTIES 

The Borrower convenants and warrants to the Bank on the date of the execution 

hereof each of the following matters: 

1. AUTHORIZATION. Borrower represents that there is no known legal 

impediment which in any way restricts or prevents the execution or carrying out of this 

ageement in any respect, and that this agreement and executed Note and Security 

Documents are valid and binding obligations of the Borrower. 

. ... I .  i. _. . . .  . , . . . . . 



2. FINANCIAL CONDITION. Borrower agrees to hrnish to the Bank true 

and correct balance sheets, income statements, and ta,, returns which fairly reflect the 

Borrower's financial condition, and hrthermore to continue to hrnish these items on a 

semi-annual basis. 

3 .  TAXES. Borrower has paid all taxes, other than those which might be due but 

not payable. Borrower is not in default in the payment of any tax nor is any assessment 

threatened in respect thereof. 

4. TITLE TO PROPERTY. The Borrower has good and marketable title to its 

respective assets as disclosed on the financial statement supplied to the Bank hereunder. 

5 .  ACTIONS PENDING. There are no actions, suits, investigations, or 

proceedings pending, or to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened against the 

Borrower by any Court, arbitrator, administrative, or governmental body, either singularly 

or in the aggregate, which might result in a material adverse change in the business, 

condition, and operations of the borrower. 

CONDITIONS PWCEDENT 

The obligation of the Bank to disburse the loan shall be subject to the satisfaction 

of each of the following conditions precedent: 

1. EXECUTION OF PROMISSORY NOTE (NOTES). The Note or Notes in 

the form acceptable to Bank shall have been executed for the principal amount of the loan 

and delivered by the Borrower to the Bank. 

2. CORPORATE AUTHORIZATION. The Bank shall have received in a form 

acceptable to the Bank all corporate documents authorizing the encumbrance of corporate 

assets, authorizing the execution of this agreement and any documents contemplated 

herein, and ratifying the same. 



3 .  OTHER DOCUMENTS. Upon request, the Bank shall have received fi-om a the Borrowcr any other reasonable documents relating to this Agreement or contcmplated 

by this loan transaction in a form acceptable to Bank. 

DEFAULT 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default by the 

Borrower under this Agreement and thereupon any Note or Notes issued hereunder, at the 

option of the Bank, will immediately become due and payable upon written notice; each of 

the following shall constitute an event of default hereunder. 

1. NON-PAYMENT OR LATE PAYMENTS. Non-payment when payment is 

due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, of any principal or interest of any Note, 

whether short term or long term. Any installment of principal or a c h e d  interest on any 

Note not paid in hll, punctually when due and payable as provided in any Note. 

2. BREACH OF COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS. The Borrower shall 

fail or omit to perform or observe any covenant, agreement, condition or other provision 

contained or referred to in this Agreement, or in any Security Agreement, I\iote, or any 

other instrument securing any portion of the indebtedness or Note owed or in any other 

instrument which constitutes security for the repayment of the indebtedness or Note or is 

related hereto, and such failure or omission shall not have been fully corrected to the 

satisfaction of the Bank within thirty (20) days d e r  the giving of written notice by the 

Bank to the Borrower thereof. 

2. MISREPRESENTATION AND ACCUR4C;Y OF STATEFIENTS. Any 

representation or warranty or other statement of facts made by the Borrower herein in any 

writing, certificate, report, or statement at any time hrnished to the Bank pursuant to or in 

connection with this Loan Agreement or otherwise shall prove to be false and misleading 

in any material respect when made or shall fail to state a material fact necessary in order to 

make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading. If any representation or 

. ,  . .  % .  .' , . .. . .._ . .  . .  



i 
l e warranty made by the Borrower in any written statement or certificate now or later 

hrnished by or for the Borrower in connection herewith, shall prove untrue in any 

material respect as of the date upon which it was made. 

4. INSOLVENCY. (a) The Borrower shall make an assignment For the benefit 

of creditors, file a petition in Bankruptcy, Petition or apply to any tribunal for the 

appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustee for any one of them, or a substantial 

part of their assets, or shall commence any proceeding under any bankruptcy, 

reorganization, arrangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, or liquidation law or 

statute of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect; or if there shall have been 

filed any such petition or application or any such proceeding shall have been commenced 

against any of them, in which an order for relief is entered or which remains undismissed 

for a period of thirty (20) days or more; or the Borrower by any act or omission shall 

indicate their consent to , approval of or acquiescence in any such petition, application or 

proceeding or order For relief or the appointment of a custodian, receiver or any trustees 

for any of them or any substantial part of any of their property, or shall suffer any such 

custodianship, receivership or trusteeship to continue undischarged for a period of thirty 

(30) days or more; or (b) The Borrower shall Senerally not pay their debts as such debts 

become due; or (c) The Borrower shall have concealed, removed or permitted to be 

concealed or removed, any part of their property, with intent to hinder, delay or defraud 

their creditors, or any of them, or made or suffered a transfer of any of their property 

which may be fraudulent under any Bankruptcy, fraudulent conveyance or similar law, or 

shall have made any transfer oFtheir property to oi For the benefit of a creditor at a time 

when other creditors similarly situated have not been paid; or shall have suffered or 

permitted, whle insolvent, any creditor to obtain a lien upon any of their property through 

legal proceedings or distraint which is not vacated within thirty (30) days From the date 

hereof. 



MISCELLANEOUS 

I .  WAIVERS. No delay or omission of the Bank to exercise any right upon the 

happening of any event of default shall impair any such right or shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any such default or an acquicscence therein. No waiver of any default herein 

shall effect any later default or impair any right of Bank. No single, partial or ful l  exercise 

of any right of Bank shall preclude other or fkther exercise thereof. 

2. GOVERVLYG LAWS. This Agreement, the Note and all documents securing 

same shall each be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 

Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

3. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the Bank and the Borfower in accordance with its terms. This 

Agreement, including the Note and other instruments and documents executed to secure 

and collateralize said loan in the forms acceptable to Bank, including any correspondence 

from the Bank to Borrower, constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 

hereto and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements with respect 

to matters contained or referred to herein between the parties,or any of the interested 

parties or any third parties. This Agreement may not be modified, amended or terminated 

except by written agreement signed by the parties hereto. The headings of the several 

sections of this Agreement are for the convenience of reference only and shall not effect 

the meaning hereof. 

4. SINGLE AGREEMENT. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, all OF which together shall constitute a single instrument. The Counterpart 

of this Agreement retained by the Bank for its permanent file shall be deemed to be the 

original for purposes of comparison of provisions. 

5 .  FEES AND EXPEKSES. The Borrower shall pay all out-of-pocket expenses 

incurred by the Bank in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder, 



including, but not limited to, the fees and expenses of the Bank's counsel incurred in 

connection with this Agreement, the Note, and other documents related to or referred to 

as collateral or documents securing said Loan. 

0 

6. NOTICES. All notices referred to or permitted to be given hereunder shall be 

given in writing or personally delivered or sent by mail, addressed as follows: 

If to the Bank: 

If to the Borrower: 

Mr. David Ross 
President 
Bank of McCreary County 
P.O. Box 160 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

Mr. James E. Curd 
Vice President 
Citipower, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 1309 
Whitley City, Kentucky 42653 

Any party may change their address for the purpose of this Agreement by sending 

written notice thereof to the other parties. 

7. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid 

under any applicable laws, such invalidity shal! not effect any other provision of this 

Agreement that can be given effect without the invalid provision, and, to this end, the 

provisions hereof are severable. 

8. BINDTNG EFFECT, ASSIGNMENT, AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement and all documents executed in association herewith shall inure to the 

benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the respective parties hereto, including their 

successors, heirs, personal representatives, legatees, devisees, assigns, and permitted 

assigns. The Borrowers have no right to assign any of their rights or obligations 

hereunder without the prior written consent of the Bank. 

' :  . . 



9. BANK NOT A JOINT VENTURE. The Bank by entering into this 

Agreement or by any action taken pursuant to this Agreement or any loan document, will 

not be deemed a partner or joint venturer with the Borrower, and the Borrower will 

indemnify and hold the Bank harmless from any and all damages resulting from such a 

construction of the parties and their relationship. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day 

and year first above written. 

CITJPOWER, L.L.C. 

ITS: Vice President 

DAVID ROSS 

ITS: President 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by Citipower, L.L.C., by James E. Curd, its Vice President of 
Whitley City, Kentucky, to be his free act and deed and the free act and deed of 
Citipower, L.L.C.. 

Witness my hand, t h i s a  -+h day o f h L K l  rd 1999. 

commission expires: B-/~-*L?OO/ 

. .., . .  . , I " . .. . ,  . . .. .. ' . .  , . . .  . .  . .  



I -  - 

STATE OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF McCREARY 

I, the undersigned Notary Public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Loan Agreement was this day produced, acknowledged, 
and delivered to before me by David Ross, President, Bank of McCreary County, to be his 
free act and deed and the free act and deed of Bank of McCreary County, Whitley City, 
Kentucky. 

Witness my hand, this @ day of t-4 1999. 
' 

, 

NOPARY PUBLIC 

MY commission expires: '9 -/g -aoo/ 

. . . . .  . .. . .- . .. : , .  " . I 
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This PINANCINCI STATEMENT in presented lo a Piliiig Officer 
h r  filint rmntrslt to UIC [!nilurn Canmemid (It&: 

Mmrily Dale 
1 1 3. (Oolimnl): 

42653 

2. Securcd I'.wy(icr) Nanc(s) and AddreMcs): 

B A N K O F M C T X A R Y E U W Y  
P.O. Bc[x 160 
WHlTJXY CTIY, KY 42653 

7. Descrip~im of Red EsWc: 

I. Pnr I'iling Officer. Time. Date, Nn.. Piling (Iflice 

0 BOX 160 
MlTLEy CITY, KY 42653 

L.L.C. (6 1-1305 266) 

(5) FILE COPY - DEBTOR(S1 
FORM I ICC- I 
Bankers Svnems. lm.. St. Cloud, MN Form UCC-ILAZ-KY 6/26/98 

UNIPOR,M COMMERCIAI. CODE 

e 

L .  . ... 



INSTRUCTIONS 
1. Remove Secured Party and Oebtor copies and send other 3 copies to the filing officer. 
2. A t  the time of original filing, filing officer will return the third (3rd) copy a8 EII acknowledgment. 
3. When filling out this form be sure to indicate state name in appropriate space. 

............................................................. STATE OF KENIUCKY 

Be sure to file this form with original financinu statement. 0 
.............................................. TOTAL N U M B E R  OF SHEETS 2 

U?I'IFowER, L.L.C. (61-1305266) BANKOFMCREXUCKXNIY 2 
DEBTOR SECURED PARTY SHEET No. 

(4) SECURED PARTY COPY - ORIGINATOR - Remove this copy 
and forward balance of form for filing. 

et 1989 Oankers System% IK.. St. Cloud. MN Form UCC-ADD-LA2 11/29/93 

. . . .  . . . .  . . . .  . .  . . . .  ... . . .  .. . .  . . I  
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cTI?powER, L.L.C. ( 05266) 
P.O. Box 1039 
WHlTLEY ClTf, KY 42653 

BORROWER'S NAME A N 0  ADDRESS 
-1- include. ..ch bonowsr *bo".. i m r l v  end ~ w w l l l v .  

SANK OF IMCGEVE 0xUur-r 
e . 0 .  BOX 160 Loan Number 

WUllET CITY, Ky 42653 oats JANuARl 6, 1999 
Mmturity Oats JANclAw 6, 2000 
Loan Amount ~ 2 5 0 , 0 0 0 . 0 0  
Aenawd Of 

LENOER'S NAME AN0 AOORESS 
'"YOU- meant  :he isndar. i ts  S U C C C O S O ~ ~  and assigns. 

0 Open End Credit: You end I agree thnt I ntny borrow uo to tha maxwnum ofincloal sum more then one lima. This feature is subject to all other 

a Clogad End Cisdit: You and I aqrsa that I mny borrow lsubjact to ail other conditionsl up to the maximum principal rum only one time. 

conditions and aapires on 

at (ha rate of 8.500 "/. INTEREST: t nqrce to pny ininrest on the outstondinq principal balanca from 

n V a r i n b 1 .  aata:  This lata may than chnnge as staled bslow. 

6,  1999 
~ e r y e n r u n t i l  A P P n  6. 1999 

=Index Rat.: Tho futuro rate will be 0. 750% the following index r a t s : ~  !?RIME 

%. Thn fa to  m n y  #not chongo more than 

~~ 

0 Installrnants' I agroo :o ony t h i sno is  In pnyment3. The nrst payment will be in the amount of $ 

ond will be due A payment of 5 will be due 

Iheraoller. Tho h a 1  poymont 01 the antire 

AOCITIONAL TERMS. 

~ ~~ ~ 

1- r 'A 31 
UNIVERSAL NOTE A N 0  SECURITY AGREfMENT -- 0 1 Ye4, 1991 Ow.-. S r . l r . .  115.. St.  C h d .  HN Form UNS.LA1 lG'lI90 

f 
. . .  . .. 

i t. ' , . ., , . .. . . , . . . ,... . . . . .  . .  , .  . . . , . . .... , . :. ,; .; ;; , .; '.:>,: . ' i '  .:: :. . .  ....: .. ..: ... . -  . . :  .a:;, . ' ' . . .  . . .  
. .... 
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!a SECURITY 

SECURITY INTEREST: I give you n sec :n ill1 of the Pioparfv doscriheo boiow 'net I n o w  own I nl I mnv own m Iha futuro fincludinq. 
bur not limifcd IO, 011 onrls. accessoriss. reoeifs, imorovemenls. and accessions 10 the ?*ooertyl. ,NhaIever Ihe Plooerty is or may be locatad. end 
ell ofocesds and products lrom Ihe Pfopartv. 
a n v e n l o r y :  All inventory which I hold for ullwnnlo sale or lense, or n h c h  h i s  been 1r ..w!II be supplfed under contracls of service. or which ere 

a q u i p m s n r :  All equiomenf incfudinq. but nor limired to. all machinery. 'Jshtcle9, furnifurc. !irlurcs, mnnufaclurinq muipment. Iwm machinery end 
sguipmanl. shop equtpment. off ice and recordkeeping aquipmenl, and parrs and :ools. 1 1 1  couiomnnl described In a l is1 or 1zhcU11Ie ,which I give 

- !o  you will also be included in rhe SeCUIed properly. bUI :uch L) list is n.)I ceccssery :3r e velid ScCurltY mtcresl 111 m y  equ!oment. 
'-Farm Product#: Al l  farm ProducI'I includmg. huf not limited Io: 

few materials, .work in process, or materials used 01 consumed in my business. 

la1 ell poulfrv and livestock and Iheir youvg. d o n g  with fheir oroducts. produce and 'eolaccmcnfs: 
!bl ell croos. nnnual or perenninl. noid all producfs of the crobs: and 
I c I  nll Isad. seed. IerftlizeP. medicinas. nnd o thw suppliea used or oroduccd 

i?Accounts. Inrtrumsnts. Documents. Chattel Paper and Other Rights to Pavmanl: 1 1 1  ' q h l s  I hnve now ond thnt i mny hnvs h :ha IuIure fo fha 
gnvmenl of money Includina. buf nof limitad 10: 
!al Deymeni lor goods and ofher properfy sold 01 lnn ied or for services :encer.?d. .whether or not I hnve ?srncd such payment Sv parlormanco: 
m d  
fbl tiqhls to owmen1 arising ouf 01  all oroscnt and fu1iiie debf :nslrllments. 5hat!eI  onow and lonns and ntligations reccwnble. 
i h e  above include any rignls and imterests [including nil liens and soCLirit-/ ,r!tetestsI .rmich I may nnve by Inw or ogreomcnt ognmsl any accounl 
,loblor if sbligor of mine. 

.%.n.ral Intangible.: A l l  ganarnl inrangtbles includmo. bur no1 limited to. lax relunds. eoplicnrlonr 101 o a t o n l ~ .  pnlc811r. cooyr~r;nte. Irndemorts. 
lrnde ~ e c r e l s .  3ood WIII. rrada nnmis. customer 11si.i. petmils and I ronchms.  and :he eqhf 10 u s e  m y  nema. 

&ovsrnmrnt Payments and Proqrama: All pavrn intr .  accounts. gcnernl :nlnr?giblec. ' 3 1  other herielits ~hcludinq.  but no1 Iiinitarl !o. anymnnti In 
kind. deficfencv oayments. Iel lers of wtitlemeirt, wwchouse rece~pts. stnraqc ? o v m i n l s .  IniorqencY RSSIT~~II?CC pavnrcntc. !livereion pnymenls. 
ana consorvallon reserve peymentsl in which I n0.w hnve and in the !"tu,. may ha re  any rlqhts 01 ;ntcr1?51 and ,.which eiiso urrael of as a result 
01 any nreciisiinq, current or lulura Federn1 or sfell) governmentnl orogrnm linciudmg, but no1 limifcd to. nll Drogrnms rdmmisfcred by Ihe 
Zommodirv Credif Coroornuon and the ASCSI. 

m v  lsrrnlnq operntions. 

=!:ha secured property includes. but is nof l imited by. the following: REX., m m  11-11-97 
ALL ASSFIS X I B L E  .W DEXGlBLE Ncw ClGEiJ CR HEEWIE7 a3+E?.CIAL BLCG. AND LOT. 

.mJJIRn, I N u U D x  ACQUNIS REaIvABLE, I " r c T L ,  PIPZLDIE, r4A-y AM) ~ l E F . O I \ r r .  

If "Its agfeemenf covers timber to  be cut. minerals fincluding 011 and gasl. fixtures or :roo1 growing 01 to be grown. the description o f  :ne real nslnte rs: 

E II checked. 111e rhls agrement  on 'he real  es ta te  recw/s .  Record owner [if not m i )  

wt!n .?ou. now or tar&. Hownver. il will no1 ~ e c u r e  other debt9 i f  yoti fail 
.WI!. ~ e s o e c t  IO such other 'Jobis. to rnaio any ieoiiircd disclosure aboiil 
:I*:s securtty agrctmeirf or if you lad to l i v e  any required notice of  the 
r q - t  0 1  rescission. I f  prooerty described I)? !his agreement is located 111 

mothe,  Ftnte. l h s  arJIecmci$l mmy .also. 711 SQma circlillistancc9, be 

O'NNERSHIP AN0 OWTIES TOWARO PROPERTY . I represent thef I OWfl 
all of fhe Proberry, of to fhe oxlenf this IS a pwchose money sccurilv 
m i w e s t  I will ecounrs ownetshin of the Pfoperty ,.with the proceeds of  the 
l o w .  I ..wdI deleird i t  ageinsl any olher Claim. Your c lam la 1110 Prooerfv 1s 

ahnad o I  the claims of l i l y  ollier creditor. I aqree to do. whatever you 
tcc.ut,e to piotecf your secwit.f anfcrost attd f o  ta-o.your claim in the 
Ptnoef iy  ahead of the CIems of other credNor3. I wdl not d o  onylhirig 10 
helm YOU, 1osition. . : .  

I WIII +sso Imoks. records ond mccounti ahout :ha Property and my 
businerr ~n genersf. I will let you sxamfrle lhe?)e records at nny inssonoble. 
t m r .  I will prepate any report or accounling'vou requesf. which deals 
with :he Property. 

I w f I  keep rho Property in my possession and will k,cep il in good 
rc ia i r  and use i t  only for the purposelsl described on'page 1 01 this 
agreensnr.  1 will no1 chnnqe lhis specilied use wtthoul.your oxpress 
,wr!t!*- permission. I reoresent. thar I am the origifial owner of the 
Poper f y  and, i f  I am not. that t:.ho vidad you with.a:list 01 prior 
swners  of fhe Property. 

I will kseo :he PIODetty a1 m y  
agreement. u i~ less  we aqres I may 
Property is to be used In another slate;.l.'will give you a fisf o f  !hose 
states.  f will not iry IO sell !he Property u n l e ~ s  it Is <nvcnlorv or I receivn 
your writ ten permission 10 do so. If I sell Ihe P~oper ly  I will have the 
payment mode pnyabla 10 the order of you and me. 

You may demand mmadiafe paymen1 01 <he dcbftsl il fhs debtor is 
not e natural person and wilhoul your pfio, wr i t ten  consent: I l l  a 
bcnslicial infefest in the dabfor is sold of frat?sfer?ed. of I21 there is n 
chsnqe in sither the identity or number of  mcmhefs of  e parinerrhip. or 
13! :he*e is 0 EhsnQo in ownership of mote fhsn 25 perccnt of  the vofing 
s:a: i  of  a cotpotation. 

I will pay a11 taxes and charges on the Properly as h e y  become due. 
You have lhs right of  reasonable access in order f o  irlspect the Propert'f. I 
wdl immediately mfiform you o f  any loss or damage to tho Pfooerty. 

11 I fad Io  mrform any o f  my duties under this seciifity agreement. or 
m y  mortgage. deed of  trusl. lien or olher security intererr. you may 
without nolice IO me perform the dufias or cause them Io be performed. 
Your right to perform for me shall not cream en obligafion to perform and 
your leilure Io perform will not preclude you lrom erercismg ony of your 
o:her rights under the law or :his security ngreemenf. 
PURCHdSE h?ONEY SECURITY INTEREST . For th? sv!e purposp , o ?  
dc!crmining the exlent 01 e purchasa moncy security interesl arising 
under this security agreement:  fa1 payments on any nonpwchasa money 
loan also secured by lhls agfesmsnt will not be dcomcd 10 npply to the 
Putchasm Money Loan. end Ibl paymsnls on the Purchase Money Loon 
will be deemed 10 aoply firs1 10 the nonpurchese monoy portion of the 
loan. 11 m v .  nnd then 10 the purchase money obligarions in the order 
which ths items 01 collateral were ncquived or i l  acquired a( fhe Pame 
ttma, in the otder selected by you. No security interasf will ho to,mmnt*d 
by mpolicmtion 01 lhis lormule. -Putchsga Money Loon- means any lorn 
tna proceeds of which. in .whole or in pevt. ace used to acquire any 
co1l~ierel securing the loen and ell exlensions. renewds. consolidalions 
end relinencing of such loen. 
PQYMENTS BY LENDER ' You ere authorized fo oav, on my behall. 
charges I em 01 may become obligofsd Io pay to  preserve or protect the 
secured proparty (such 8 1  property insurance premiumsl. You mav treat 
those payments e 1  edvances end add !hem to the unpaid principnl under 
fhe nom secured by  this agraament or you may demand immediate 
payment of  the amount advanced. 

t,<?.,*:wwf by !I>" l o w  o f  Ill" S l t l l t ,  ! I t  ."I8W!l+ I f l C  Ptorrcr1y I.; located. 

. . .  . .  . .  

Tht  3roperty -wtu be used for a 0 peryonai XX business Cl eqrtculturol c! purpora. 
AODlTlONAL TERMS OF THE SECL'RITY AGREEMENT 

GENERALLY . This aoreemenl secures this note and aoy other debt I hove INSURANCE - I agree  to buy ~~!sufairCe on tflc Dron**lv dgntnsf tho r ~ k s  
and :or Ihe amounts you require and to Iumtsh you conlirruing proof of 
coverige. i Y~III hove !he insurnncn company t i n m i  'you n~ loss nnvcr: nit 
nny such policy. You mny requirc .uJdd CI?CLIIIIV 1 1  '/nu .~t.lree 113.11 

insurar,ca.proceeds may ha t1setl to reonir 01 rcpliice ' IW ":opwty. I will 
btly itisurancn from a fvln licnnsod In do hiiswins*: $ 1 3  lhn s f i i l i l  wf iwn  yoii 
oIc locntctl. i,tnl wail bc ~ c w ! : w ~ ~ v  ~ X I ~ I M L ~ U  to y o ~  TIM w s t t r w x !  
wail last unt i l  :he P?operty IS  rclearcd lrom flits agrcnmniil. II I fail 10 buy 
or maintilin t1io imuranco lot fad to n a m e  YOU ,IS Inss m v o e l  YOU mny 
pufcharo !f vourself. 
WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS . I f  lh8s aqrecmanl inclurlcs 
accou~jts. I will not sefrle oily occotmt for less fhwl  112 1:811 vulun Wilhoiif 
y o w  W ~ I I ~ C I I  permission. I will COIIUCI nll ~ICCOLIITIE w ~ t d  you rol l  tnn 
othorwisa. I will keep the nrocoods irom nil ihu i iccout~~s nno n w  gaudy 
which ere returned to ms or which I tako Imct tu? !rust 101 '(nu. I will no1 
mix them ,.with any other properly of #lime. I will dslwer !hem lo you , i f  
your reouesi. I f  you ast  me to pay yoti !he liiil price 3n any retitrned 
Itenis or items retaker! by  myself, I ,.w~tll do so. 

I f  this agreamenr covers inventory. I will 11ol dispose of  11 erccpl  ih my 
ordinary coulse of business a1 the fair imorkal velue 101 ! l ie  Properfy. 01 e l  
e mintmum price ~s tab l i s l ied  between you and ma. 

I f  this agreement covers farm products I .ndl  provide you. e l  your 
requesf. a writ ten list o f  the buyer?. commission mefcharits or selling 
agcnfs to or through whom I may sell my farm products. In addillon 10 
those parties nnmed on this wf i i ien list. I nulhoriie you 10 notify nf your 
sole discretion eny sddilional parlies regarding your sacurilv interest in 
my !nun products. I remain subject fo all applicable ~e i in l l las  lo r  selling 
my form products iii violotion of  my ngrecmml with '/ou niid 1he Food 
Sucufity Act .  In this onrngrnoh the lefms farm producta. buynrs, 
commission mercl ioius mid solling agents hnve Iho mesninys given fo 
them In !ne Fsderol Food Security Act  01 1985. 
REMEDIES . I will be in ilcfaulc on this security agraomont i f  f em in 
dcfouft O n  any note fh t i  agreemonf secures or il I fnd to \cso any promise 
contained iii the lerms of  !his agraoment. If I aefmdt, you h w a  elf o f  the 
r iqhls end rcrnedies providod in tho nvte nnd u n d o  the Unifoim 
Corrm:r;inI Cc.':. You mny rcquirs ma l o  mnko the secvrud properly 
avaifno1e to  y o u  a t  a ploca wliicli is fearonably COIIVCI)~~:II. You may take 
possession o f  the sacurad property nnd sell i t  as provided by low. The 
proceeds will be applied first to your exoenteo and then fo the dsbr. I 
h g r c e  thnf 10 days writ ten nutice scn: to m y  Iasi  known address by first 
class mail will he reasonable notice under fhe Utriform Csmrnarcial Code. 
My curreiit address is on pnge 1. I agree lo inlotm you in writing of any 
champs 0 1  my address. 
FILING . A carhon. ohologrnphic or other reproduction of tliis securify 
oq?eencnr or the financing Stafement covoring lhe Property dcscribed ih 
lhrs aye-nicrrl may bo usod as a financino staf%bcn! .rh.ers allowcd by 
l a w .  '/:hers permitfed by law, you ma', f i le  a fitrancing s!alcmsnf which 
does not  con!a;rr m y  sipnotufa. covarinp fho Ptope:!y sccured by Ihi5 
ngi5cment. 

A n v  person '&no c q n s  within fhis hox d o e l  so to Diva you R security 
i n t c r c s i  :n !he ?roosrtv described on !his Dags. Th;r  sts son doer no1 
promiso 10 nov the n n ~ e .  -I* o s  u n m l  it, this s o c ~ ~ r i t v  ogroomoni WIII 
mcludc the b o r f l w e f  and any petson who signs within lhis box. I 

I O8le I 



ADDITIONAL TERMS OF THE NOTE 

OEFlNlTlONS . A -  used o n  onqes a d 2.  "m- mwns !he terms Ih-1 OEFAULT . I wdl be in d o l  nny one or more of the lollowin0 occur: 

.. , . 

m o l y  to this Ionn. -1.. -me- or -rnT mcan? snch 8ortnwar who signs 
Ihis nolo nnd gnch othcr oorson or lnqnl anlily [including guarnnlors. 
andolrers. and rt~rortesl who nqrees Io  pay This note flogolher relorred lo 
'1s -us?. "You' or ' y o u r -  mcans lhe Lender and its successors and 
nssqn-. 
APPLICAaLE LAW . Thn Inw of  ih* stalc in which you nre located will 
govein lhis agreomnnt. Any lnrm of  lhi i  .iqtenmsnl which 4s conlrnrv 1 0  

aoolicohln Inw will not he cllcctivn. !mless tho law parmiis you and me l o  
aqfee to w c h  J venntIon. 11 nnv p:ovisilon o f  lhw aqroemenr cnnnot he 
:nforccd according l o  i ls  terms. this fact will no1 nffaci the enforcanbility 
o f  Ihe remnindcr of Ihis aqresmnnl. No moddicntion of Ihis agresmenl 
mav be mads wilhoul YOUI exorn-s 'wmtnn consant.  Time is of Ihm 
osqnncn in ilti. nqrnomnnr. 
PAYMENTS . i n c h  pnymant I mnks on this note wdl f irst raduca the 
mnounl I owe y o u  for chi rqcs which are neither intercst nor princioal. 
:ha rnmiindcr of eoch Dnvmeni will lhcn rcduco acctiied unpmd inleresl,  
.md then unnoid olinc~pal.  II you and I earns lo R dilleront aDolication of 
pnvmnnls. w* well doscrtbe our ngt*om*nt on thm noin. I may prepny a 
par1 0 1 .  01 !he n n l m  bnlance of  !his loan wiihout pnnaliv. unlnss we 
5 ~ e c l f y  to the Conlrnrv on this note.  A n y  pnr l i i l  pr*pnvrnant will not 
C.CUS~ or rcducr! nny 1m*r :chsduled paymcnt unit1 ihm nolo is  Dald in Itdl 
:uniess. ,when I m o t s  Ihc propnymcnl. you snd I agree in writing IO the 
conlraryl. 
INTEREST . Intorest accrucs on lhe princionl rnmninmq unpaid from lima 
lo  lime. until paid in full. If I receive Ihe princioal in more then one 
advanco. ench advanco will start 1 0  cnrn interesl only w h m  I receive the 
advanco. Tho intermst rain in s f lnc l  on  lhir mole 81 nnv gtven time wdl 
aoolv 1 0  Iho onliro princioai sum oittsinnding nl l ha l  lime. 
Nolw~ths lnnding nnylhiirg 1 0  tho contrary. I d o  no1 nqrco l o  pay and you 
do no1 intend Io charge any rete of  inleresl !hat is hiqher lhan Ihe 
mniimum i n l a  of  inlnresl yoii coitld charno under apoficahle Irw for !ha 
ci icnsion of crcdil Ihnl is agreed l o  in this nole Isither before or afler 
mnturiiyl. I f  any notico of interest nccrunl is son1 and is in error. we 
.miilueIly igroe to c o r r e c ~  it. nnd if you ectt idly COII~CI more interest than 
allowad by l a w  nnd this Jqrcomonl. you noren IO talund it 1 0  mn. 
INDEX RATE . The indox WIII SCIW only as n dovicn lor selling the 
intcrnsl into on this !?ole. You do no1 girarnnloo by rcloclin(j Ihts wder, of 
Iho marqii?. lha l  Iho mlcresl rntc 011 this nolo wfll be the semm rale you 
clrrrge on any othcr loans or closs 0 1  loans you make IO me or other 
borrowers. 
POST MATURITY RATE . Far purposes of  deciding when the 'Post 
Maii lr i ly Role- lshown on pngo I1 apolios. Ihn lerm -mnturily- menns the 

t I I  I f i l d  to mnks n prvmon-n l ime 01 in the nmount due: f Z 1 . l  lad lo 
keep Ihe Properly insured. :I required: 131 I Inif 10 pay. 01 kea0 any 
momtm, nn nny debt or agroemsnl I have with ynu: (41 env other creditor 
of mine 'ltlcmpts l o  collect m y  deb1 I owe him lhrough court 
procc.dinqs: IS1 I die. nm dsclnrod ~nC0mPelenl. msko an aosignmnnt for 
Ihn Sonaiil of  creditors. or become inSOlven1 feilher because my liabilities 
exceed m y  m s e t s  or I am iinahle to pnv my dnbts es lhev become duel: 
161 I mnto m y  wf8llen slntsmnnl or provide nny linanciof informnlion thaf 
1s untrue or maccurnln a i  the l ime il was provided: 171 I do or fail IO d o  
somelhtnq which ca11ses yoii Io believe you will have difficulty collecting 
!he amoiint I owe y o u :  181 m y  collnlefel securing this note is used in a 
rnnnnsr or for a purpose which thren1ena confiscntion by e legel authority: 
I91 I chanan m v  nmmo or osattme nn nddilionsf name wilhoul firsf 
noltlv8nO '?nu bnlorn mnkmg w c h  n chnnqe: 1101 I fell l o  plant. cullivnts 
nnd hnfvcsl CIOOS In due season: I1 11 snv lonn procnods are used for e 
0i irno. i~ l hn l  will conlrlhuto lo excessive erosion of  hiqhlv erodible lmnd or 
to I h m  convwsion 01 'nallnndt 10 prodlice on agriculrural commodity. es 
IUi lhw nrplmin*ci In 7 C.F R .  Pori 1940. Subpnrt G. Exhibit M. 
REMEOIES . If I nm in default on this no le you hew.  but are not limited 
Io .  the lol lowinq remedies: 

f 1 I Vntt m n y  demnnd mmsdial lr  pavmenl of  all I owe you undo, this 
nolo ' ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ c ~ ~ e l .  nccrusd unpad  wmres l  and other accrued unpaid 
charqesl. 

I21 You may scl o f f  (his debt againsl any right I have to Ihe payment 
of  monov from you. rublect to the terms of  the 'SET-OFF' 
prraqraoh hefoin. 

131 You m a y  domnnd sectoriiv. additional sccuritv. or ndditionol parties 
IO be obligated 1 0  POV this note os a condition for no1 using any 
olhnr remedy. 

I41 Yoti mny 1eIus0 Io m a t o  advances 10 rnn or allow purchases on 
credit by  me. 

fSI ' IOU may use m y  remedy you havo undor slnle or fednral law, 
y rnmady given IO you in any agr?ernenl 

n of !here rcmedies you do not give UD 
remedy. By wniving your righl IO declare 

an w e n t  :o be a dsfnull, you d o  no1 wawe your righl Io  consider le101 the 
event a delmrl l  i f  i f  continues or happen. egnon. 
COLLECTION COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES . I agree to DBV all costs 
of  collection. replevin o(;;ny other. or similar type of  cos! i f  I am in 
dofaull..ln addition, i f  you'hlre. orney 10 collect this note. I also 
oqrca ' ( 6 :  pay any fee you incu such allornay plus courl costs 
Ie icept  w h m s  prohibited by law). TO the exlent Dermilled by the United 
Statda Bnniruo icv Code. I also aorea-to Dnv Ihe rnasonable al totnw's  

socuring lhis nole. 

~. . .~ 
d n : n  d thc Inst cchrdtnlcd prymsi r t  indicnled O n  P a m  1 Of Ihm nola 0, . '  

lhc  dnlC you .CCCI#71aIC D*yml3?l O n  the n6llo. whtchevef 19 RLIliCr. 
SINGLE ADVANCE LOANS . :I lh1S is a SlnOlB advancn IOnn. YOU and I . 
OXDCCI that you will mnko only one advance 0 1  princmal. However. YOU 

may add other m o t i n t i  l o  :ha PrinCionl if YOU mako nnv Payments 
dcscrfbod in tho 'PAYMENTS BY C E N O E R ~  pnragrnph on pngs 2 

2nd coglp  yell ,nc,,r 10 collo;t ihos J-bt n~ awarded by nny c & r ~  
axerclsinq iurisdiction ulador !he arnk,uolcy Code. 
WAIVER . I glve up my tights i o  require you to do ccrtain Ihongs. I wdl not 

: 

' require:,ou to: 
fl.1dsmond pnymonr 0 1  amounts duo fp,esenimentl: 
I21 obrain.ollicinl certtlicntion of nonpnymont Iprotes~i:  or 

u n d o  lhis nele ~ g o i n v  nny riglrl I hnvs le Iocoive from evon.if someone elsn hns also ngrnod to plry il fbv. lor example. signing 
lhis,.torm of a scprfnte guarnnree or endorsamentl. You may sua mn 
alonsr 01 anyone e110 who i s  oblignmd on lhis nolo. or m y  numhor of us 
tOQhlher. to  collecl this nolo. You may wi lhoul  notice release any party 
to. lhis agreerncnr wiihout fclansing any other pnrty. If you givo up rny  0 1  

-Righi io  rnccive money from YOU- m e m 5 :  
I I I airy daposil account balnnce I have w i l h  you: 
f t l a n y  m n w y  owed !o me on an item:'br&ntad I 

possnssion lor collection or exchsnge:.aod. 
I31 any rceurchnan ngrcemsnt of. o l h c i  nondeposil obligation. 
*Any nmounl due nnd psyabln ,under this noto" mqnns I 

all or less than all of us will not rnlnnse me from my duly to pny it. (Of  
course, yoti are anl?tled to only one Dnymenl in full.1 I anrea Ihnl you may 
nt your option extend this ,nola or Iha dab1 represented by this note. or 

da is  lor which you properly Jccelorbta under this nole. 

has not agrecd IO pny lhis note. your- ribhc of  
inierest in tho obligntion nnd 10 any 'bther.amo 
my solo r o q t m s r  or ondorsamwrl. V o w  rtqht..of:. 

If my righl IO receive money from y.oU.!r also own 

Accounl or other lax.doferw.d rel ircmenl accounl. 
You will not bc liabln for tho dishonor of any check when the dishonof 

occurs because yoii  $81 0 1 1  this debt agoinst anv O f  my occoun11. 1 agree 
10 hold you hatmlcss !tom any sucl- claims arising as a result o f  your 
exercise of your r ighl lo  se l -o f f .  

as a credit r v o r l i n g  opsncy). I ogres IO provids you. w o n  request. any 
finnncinf staicmcnt or informalion you mnv deem neccssnry. I warrant 
Ihn! the financml statcmnnts nnd informatton I provide IO you are or will 
be accurale. correc! nnd complete. 

SIGNATURES: I AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS NOTE [INCLUDING THOSE ON PAGES 1 AND 21. I have received s copy on Iodey*s dote. 

dI€OK!J., L.L.C. (61-130526GJ -- 

SIGNATURE FOR LENOER: x 
DAVID m s  



! 

J-y-6,- .9?2 ..__I--- - 
For good and valuable consideration. thc receiot and sulficicncy of ,which are Iicrcbv acknowlcdgcd. and t o  inducc - OF McmEARY ~ ~ ~ - P , . O - . - g M _ X l S O , . ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ - , _ i y _ -  -?25?.. (herein. with its oarticipant;. succeszois and assigns. called "Lender"). at i ts  o1itioii. J I  i w y  i i i i ic nr f ro in  t i i i i r :  10 iinic , - ,  . _ .  , _ _  _, _ _  , - 

to make loans or exlend other accommodations to c r  for t l ie  account o f C I z K p E R ,  L . L . C . .  , !61.:130.52G~) --, , 

therein called 'Borrower') or to cngagc in any other transactions with Oorrowcr, l l ic  Unc1cr:icJncd hcrcby abzolutcly 
and unconditionally guarantee; to Lendcr thc rol l  and promot paynicnt wl icn dm. whcihcr a t  maturity or carlicr I I ~  
reason o f  acceleration or nthcrwise. of  thc dcbt;. liabilitics and obligations dcscrlbccl as follows: 

A .  I f  this is chcckcd. tlrc Undcrsigncd guarantcc; to Lcndcr ~ l i c  Vi ly inei i t  a n d  pcrlorinancc o f  i l ic del,(. 
liability or obligation o f  Uorrowcr to Lendcr cvidcnccd Iiy or arising out  o f  thc frillowinc~:LO/W DWiD, ~ 

JB!LW-Y-G ,rs?~-~..TF~..~Crr-c~.-$~So ,..?o.o.: 0.0 ._ aiid ai iy  CXICIICIII~~. rciicwiil:; 
or replacements lhereof ilicreinafter refcrred 10 as the ~~ lndcb~cdncs . ;~~ l .  

E. If this @ is chcckcd. the Undcrsigncd guarantccs i o  Lcndcr tlic m y i i i c i i t  atid pcrforiiwiicc of tach and 
every debt. liability and obligation of cvcry typc arid dcscriution whicli Cor-rowcr i i iay now or at any tinic 
hereafter owe to Lciidcr (wlicthcr siicli dcbt, lial,ility or obligatioii now cxizt: or i:: I1i:icaItcr crc;itctl or 
incurred. and whcthcr i t  is or may be rlircct or indircct. due or to bccomc d w .  ~IISOIIIIC or coiitingcnt. 
primary or secondary. liquidatcd or unliquidatcd, or joint.  scvcral. or joint aird scvc~al: al l  such dcl~t;. 
liabilities and obligations being hercinaftcr collectivcly rcfcrrcd to a; thc " l i~dc l~tcdne~;"~.  Witl ioii l  litnilation. 
this guaranty includes tlic following dcscribed debt(;): - . - _ _  _ _  , ~ ,. 

The maximum aggregate liability that I am subject to is S 250,000,OO _, . 
In addition to the maximum aggregate liability statcd. I absolutely and uncotiditionally guararltcc paynicrit of 
interest accruing on the guarantccd indcbtcdncss, arid fccs, charges and  cnst; o f  collcctiirg tlic c~i;araiitcctl 
indebtedness, including reasonablc attornays' fccs. 
This guaranty will terminate on J?"7Y G ,  2000 _ _  . The tcrminatioii *mill not 
affect my liability wi th  respect to 0bligation.s created or incurrcd prior lo tlic tcrtiiiiiation tl i i te. or cxlciisions or 
renewals of, interest accruing on, or Ices. costs, or cxpcnscs incurrcd w i t 1 1  rcspcct to sucl1,obligations on or 
after the termination date. 
The term "Indebtedness" as used iil this guaranty shall not include any ObligJtiOn: cnicrcd into bciwccn 
Borrower and Lender aftcr thc date hereof (including any cxtcnsions. rcncwals or rcplaccinciits of siicli 
obligations) for which Borrower niccts the Lcndcr's s:aiidard or crcditwortliiirnr.; ba!;ctl flii !:urrowcn 'n o w 1 1  

assets and income without the addition of a guaranty, or for wl i ic l i  a giiJrairty is rcuuircd h i t  Corrt~wcr c1ino;cs 
someone other than the joint Uildcrsigncd to guaranty tlrc cl~ligation. 

--- - ..--- . .  - ..... __..I.______. __ . -- .-- 

, _. - 
---.---. -- . 

The Undersigned further acknowlcdges and,agrees wi th  Lcndcr that: 
1 .  No act or thing need occur to cstablish thc liability of the Undersigned hcrcundcr, and no ;Ict cr thing. CXCCDI 

full payment and discharge of all indebtedness, sllall in any w a y  cxoncratc thc Undcr;igncd or Itlotlily. rcducc, liinit 
or release the liability of the Undcrsigncd hereunder. 

2. This is an absolute. unconditional and continuing guaranty of paymcnt of l l rc Indcbtcdncss and .:hall continitc 
to be in force and be binding upon the Undersigned. whether or n o l  all Il1dchtcdnc:s is Wid ill full. until this 
guaranty is revoked by writtcn noticc actually rcccivcd by the Lcirdcr. and sucll rcvocatioti 51ial1 not IIC cffcctivc as 
to Indebtedness existing 3r committed for a t  the time of actual receipt of  such notice by the Lcndcr, or as to any 
renewals, extensions and refinancings thercof. If there I I C  more than onc Undcrziglied. sr.1~11 rcvocalioii s l ia l l  bc 
effective only as to tlie onc so rcvokiny. Thc dcath or incomDctcnCc of tlrc Ulrdcr5igncd :hall not rcvokc this 
guaranty, except upon actual rcccipl of writtcn noticc thercof by Lcndcr and [licli oiily as to tlrc dcccdcnl or tlic 
incompetent and only prospectively, as to futurc transactions, as  hcrein sct forth. 

3. I f  the Undersigned shall be dissolved, sllall die. or shall bc or become inzolvcnt (Iiowcvcr dcfinedl or rcvoke 
this guaranty, then the Lender shall have tlic right to declare immediately duc and payablc. and 1Ilc Uirdcrsigncd 
will forthwith pay to the Lender, the full amount of al l  Indehtcdncss. whcl l icr duc and ~~ayab lc  or unniaturcd. If thc 
Undersigned voluntarily commences or there is commenced involuntarily agaiilst the Uiidersrgnccl J ca;c uirdcr IIic 
United States Bankruptcy Code, the full amount of all Indcbtcdncss. wlic!licr duc a n d  pavablc or ullmaturcd. ~ 1 1 ~ 1 1  
be immediately due and payable without demand or rioticc thcreof. 

4. Indebtedness may be created and continued in any amount. wl iclhcr or not in C X C ~ S ;  o f  any principal or 
aggregate amount stated above, without affccting or impairing tlic liability o f  the  Ulidcrsigncd a s  lirnilcd hcrcundcr. 
The Lendcr may apply any si;ni: rcct ivcd by or  avzilablc tc Lmdcr  on account o t  llrc Ilrdcbtcdnc;; from Barrower 
or any other person (except the Undersigned), from their prcpertics, out  o f  a:iy collateral sccurity cr I r o n  any otlicr 
source to payment of [he cxccss. Sticli aliplication of rcccipts shall not rcducc. i i f lcct or i11111iiir tlic l i a l ~ i l i l ~  of llrc 
Undersigned hereunder. I f  the liability of thc Undcrsigncd is liiriitcd to a stated aiiiount pursuarit to this paragraph 
4 .  any payment made by thc Uiidcrsigiicd undcr this gtiaraiiiy s l i d 1  be cffcctivc lo rcrlucc or dizcharg[: X I C ~  liallilily 
only if accompanied by  a written transmittal document, received by thc Lcndcr. advising tlic Lcndcr that such . 

' 

payment is made under this guaranty for such purpose. 
This guaranty is .a  unsecurcd; 0 secured by a mcrtgal;c or sccurlty agrccrnent dalcd , _  

0 securcd by . . __. _ _  . 
This guaranty includes tlic addirional provisions on Iiagc 2. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this guaranty has bccn duly 

/-' .. ...... 

I written. 



ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

5. Subject to any liinitations stated in this guaranty. the Undersigned will pay or reimburse Lender for all costs 
and exoenscs (including rcasonable attornevs‘ fees and legal cxoensesl incurrcd by Lender in conncction with the 
protection, dcfcnsc or enforccrnent of  this guarantv in any litigatron or bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings. 

6 .  Whether or not Jnv exis‘Jng relationshio bctween thc Undersigned and Borro J ,er has been changed or endcd 
and whethcr or i i o t  ;his guaranty has been rcvoked, Lendcr may. but shall not be obligated to, enter into 
transactions resulting in thc creation or continuance o f  indebtcdncss. without any consent or approval by the 
Undersigned and without any no!ice to thc Undersigncd. The liability of the Unrlersigncd sha l l  not be affected or 
impaired by any of the lollowing acts or things (which Lender is exoressly authorized to do, omit or suffer from 
time to time. both bcforc and after revocation of :his guaranty, without notice to or aoproval by the Undersigned): 
( i t  any acceptance of collateral security, guarantors. accommodation parties or sureties for any or all Indebtedness; 
f i i l  any one or rnorc extensions or renewals of Indebtedness (whctner or not for longcr than the original period1 or 
any modification of ;ha interest rates. maturities or other contractual :erms applicable to any Indebtedness; liiil any 
‘waiver. adjustmerit, forhcarancc. compromise or  indulgence granted to Borrower. any delay or lack o f  diligence in 
the enforccnicnt of ii1debtcdne:s. or any failura to institute procccdings, file a claim. give any required notices or 
otherwise protcct any intlebtedncss: liv) any full or oart ia i  relcase 7f. settlement witli, or agreement not I O  sue, 
Borrower or any olhcr guarantor nr other person liable in respect of  any Indebtedness: (v) any discharge of any 
cvidcncc of  Indcbtedncs: or the xccDtancc of m y  instrument in renewal thercof or substitution therefor; (vi1 any 
failure to obtain collateral scciirity (including rights of setoff) for Indebtedness. or to see to the proper or sufficient 
creation and Derfection thcreof. or to cstablislr the priority thcrcof. or to prolcct. insure. or cnforcc any collateral 
security: or any release. modification. substitution, discharge, impairment. deterioration, waste. or loss Of any 
collateral security: (vii) any foreclosure or enforcement of any collateral security; (viiil any transfer o f  any 
Indebtedness or any cvidencc thereof: lix) any order of application of  any payments or credits upon Indebtedness: 
I x )  any election by the Lender under 11 1 1  1 (b)(2) of  the United Statcs Bankruptcy Code. 

7. The Undersigned waives any and all defenses. claims and discharges of Borrower. or any other obligor, 
oertaining to Indebtedness. exceot the defcnse of discharge by payment in full. Without limiting the generalitv O f  
the foregoing. the Undersigned will not assert. plead or enforce apainst Lender any defense O f  waiver. release. 
statute of limitations. res judicata. statute of frauds. fraud, incapacity. minority, usury, illegality or unenforceability 
which may be available to Borrower or any other person liable in respect of any Indebtcdness. or any setoff 
available against Lendcr to Borrower or any such other person. whether or not on account of  a-related transaction. 
The Undersigned exorcssly agrees tliat tlic Undersigned shall bc and remain liablc. to the fiillesi cxtent permitted by 
apolicable law.  lor any dclicicncy rcrnairiing aftcr foreclosurc of any riiortgage or sccurity interest sccuring 
Indebtedness. wlicthcr or no! the liability of Sorrower or any other obligor lor sucli deficiency is discharged 
pursuant to statute or iudicial decision. The undersigned shall remain obligated, to thc fullest cxtent permitted by 
law, to pay such amounts a s  though the Borrower’s obligations had not,bcen dischargcd. 

8. Tlic Undcrsignccl Iurtlicr agrees that tlic Undersignad sIiaII  be and rcinaiii ol)ligatecl to pay Indcbtcdness evcn 
though any otlrcr ~icrson obligaccd 10 pay Inacbtedncss. iricluciirig Borrowcr, has such oblig;ttiorl dischargcd in 
bankruptcy or ollrcrwise discharged by law. “Indcbtednes;” shall include post4ankruotcy petition interest and 
attorneys’ fees aiid any other amounts which Borrower is dischargcd from paving or which do not otherwise accrue 
to Indebtedness due to Borrower’s discharge. and the Undersigned.shal1 remain obligated to pay such amounts as 
though Borrowcr’s obligations had not bccn dischargcd. 

9 .  If any payment applicd by Cendcr to lndebtcdness is thercafter set aside. recovered, rescinded or required to 
be returned for any reason (including. without limitation. the bankruptcv. insolvency or reorganization of Oorrower 
or any other obliyorl. the lrrdebtedriess to which such payment was applied shall for the purposes of this guaranty ’ 

be decmed to have continued in existence, notwithstanding such apolicadon. and this guaranty shall be enforceable 
as to such Indebtedness as fully as i f  such application had never becn made. 

10. The Undersigned waives any claim, remedy or other right which the Undersigned may now have or hereafter 
acouire against Borrower or any other person obligated to pay lndebtedness arising out o f  the creation or perfor. 
mance o f  the Undersigned’s obligation undcr this guaranty. including. without limitation, any right of subrogation. 
contribution. raimbiirscmcnt. indemnilication, exoneration. and any right Io particiDate in any claim or remedy the 
Undersigned mav have against the Borrower, collatcral, or other party obligated for Borrower‘s debts. whether or 
not such claim. remedy or right arises in equity, or undcr contract. statute or common law. 

1 1 .  The Undersigned waives presentmcnt, demand for payment. notice of dishonor or nonpayment, and protest 
of  any instrument evidencing Indebtedness. Lender shall not be required f i rst  to resort for payment of the 
Indebtedness to Borrower or other persons or their properties, or first to enforce, realize upon or exhaust any 
collatcral security for Indebtcdncss. bc!orc enforcing this guarantv. 

12. The liability o f  tlic Undcrsigncd under this guaranty is in addition to and shall be cumulative with all other 
liabilities o f  the Undersigned to Lender as guarantor or otherwise. without any limitation as to amount. unless the 
instrument or agrccilicrit cvidcncing or creating such oihcr liability SDCCifiCJlly provides to the contrary. 

13. This guaranty sliall be enforceable against each pcrson signing (his guaranty. even if only one person signs 
and regardless O f  any failure o f  other persons to sign this guaranty. If there be more than one signer. all 
agrc?iilents and I)roinisc% hc:ci:r sliall br. corirlr::cd l o  Lc, and a r e  l iereby dcc1;lrcd lo be, joirit and scrcral in each 
o f  every particular and sliail bc fully bindirlg upon and cnlorccablc against cilhcr, a n y  or a11 thc Undcrsigncd. This 
guaranty shall be effective upon delivery to Lcndcr, without further act, condition or acccptance by Lender, shall be 
binding upon the Undersigned and the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns o f  the Undersigned and shall 
inure to the benefit o f  Lender and i ts participants, successors and assigns. Any invalidity or unenforceability of any 
provision or aoplication o f  this guaranty shall not affect other lawful  Provisions and aoplication hereof. and to this 
end the provisions o f  this guaranty are declared to be severable. Exceut as authorized by the terms herein, this 
guaranty mav not be ,Naived, modified, amended. terminated, released or otherwise changed except by a writing 
signed by t he  Undersigned and Lender. This guaranty shall be governed by the laws of the State in which it is 
executed. The Undersigned waives notice of Lendcr’s acccptance hereof. 
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A D D l T l O N 4 L  TERMS OF THE N O T E  

SIGNATURES: I AGREE TO THE T E R M S  OF THIS N O T E  I lNCLUOlNG T H O S E  ON PAGES 1 A N D  21. I hnvc rsccivod J COPY on lodor'r dale. 

m m m ,  L.L.C. 

SIOHATURE FOR LENDER: :( wvm RcSs 



I , . ,/ 
:. ,,. . . . . . .  . . . . .. , , , , . - ...,..... ,. . .: ..... .... . . ?-.. ' .. . ._ . .  - .  . .  ... . . 

-.-- A 
DAvlp  Rcss 

PURPOSE: T h a  purposa ut rhip lonn Ir : 
' 

szI?Ec= C G  

T H O S E  ON P A G E  21. I haw- recslw-d CODY on cadmy' .  drc-.  
SICNATURCS:  1 AQREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS NOTE IINCLUOINO. 

. .  
I. . . .  
, '  . .  

. .  . ' :: 
... .. . .  . .  . , .  . .  . . .  . . .  . , .  -- an-wxm..  L.L.C. , .  
. .  
. .  . . .  . .  

. .  . . .  
.. . 

. .  



Signature 101 Londsr CrrIFcwER. L.L.C. 

I- I .I ?I 
UNIVERSAL NOTE 
* 3  I,.. I , , l * r u . T . " C . . , I L . , I  C * u ( . " * , 1 ~ 1 * ~ . , , . 1 1  '""I"" ?,#?"I 
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P4GE 81 

.,.' Your oavmont dchaduld will bo: 
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. .  
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PACE 83 

..&waz##5 
"-a,.. ........ ........... 

M U LTl - P U R POSE e - 
CONSUMEt.. ..JSTALLMENT LOAN AND SECUI. .. Y AGREEMENT . .  

i 0 .. J\.3 
?. 

. , ;i .... ... ... 



' n 1 / 1 3 i 1 9 9 ' 3  12: 1 9  6853768838 CITIPOWER. L.L.C. PAGE 04 

.. .. I 
.. . 
; . :I 

,a:. $ . .. 

. .  
promise IO pny to ua. a to Our order, the Prfnclpat :: 

Amounl (aetined below1 Plus I n l O I B O l  at the onnual interest raro indicaiea.: . 
neluw.. The term :'Punclpar Amount" 'mean* the Amounr Flnence*.$ 
plus the Propaid Ftnsncr Charge Ilsted In. Imm 9 or the Iromlx~tlon; i, 
of tns Amount Plnancad. lnrernst wilt IJW ctguraa daly on me unpaid.;; 
Prlncipat Amounr on s simple mtBres l .Dae~s:  beginning on thu dole ot'i;: 
rnis Agmnmenl'and contmuing until paib.in ftril. .You ororntge IO make:'.: 
rnontnty payments according .IO me payment achedulo above on tha..'.; 
mme aay 01 mcn mantn. I1 Ihla.kQrcMrnent proviaes lor a vadaolo annuat '. I 

rnte of iriterosc mid .Ihe fate changes. Ilin numoer 01 payments rhay .i 
tlianye tmt.the amount of e a c h  ocrymant will rwmrrin rnr same (eacopr :: 
perriaus tur the last Oavrnent): 
Antruul Ram of IntereR! 
Mar* !no aunrouriaio nox mtn :in 'X' 

. I  . .  

- YOU AGREE T H A T  THE ADDITIONAL T E R M S  A N 0  CONDITIONS O N  THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS PfiGE ARE INCORPO-' 
RATED BY REFERENCE, WHtCH MEANS THAT T H E Y  A R E  PART OF THtS A G R E E M E N T  J U S T  AS IF THEY WERE PRINTED 
RIGHT HERE. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT O F  A TRUE A N D  COMPLETELY FILLED IN COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT AT ', 

' THE TIME OF SIGNINQ. 
: ., ..,,.. 

. ,. :d.. COSIGNERS: I7eae the important notice on thn reverso s ide  before you sign this'Agreoment. ' 

WHITE -BANK C A N A R Y  -SELLER PINK - eUYER 

. ,. 

.. . 



AMOUNT GIVEN TO ME oiRecrLY e 15.500.00 
AMOUNT PAID O N  M V  ILOANI ACCOUNT D 

* 
AMOUNTS PAIO ro OTHEHS ON MY BCUALF: 

1 0 1  01  co*arago.  111 pov I 



I- 

AODITIOHAL rmrrs OF THE N O T  * ADDITIONAL I tu. e OF THE S6CURlTV AORCLMUNT 



--OF- 

Ib) u lotherl 

LATE CHARGE . I aprse to pay a late charge on the portaon of any Davment mads 

morn :?an 

01 1-9 unpaid amount UI) to a martmum 01 5 5. 00 
POST MATURITY INTEREST Intwest will accrue at the m e  of 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ t , ~ ~  the 

This loan IS made under Kentucky Rewsed Statutes. Chaotsr 287 

m m  m m  4wD PICKUP 

PAYMENTS - Thlq Is  a prncompuled note whtch mnani that the siim I have agreed 
lo Day alreadv tncludes the Iinance charces Dnvable hereafter to matunly 
PREPAYMENT . I mav oreoay thtr note In whole or 8n part .at m y  :me Hnwwnr  
any oanial Drr)Dayment wnll nor reduce or excuse any subsrquoniry sc'vrlulcd 
pavmenls uno1 this note I S  paid m fu l l  II and wnmn prennid on full or Ijpon matimty 
bv accelelation the finance chafqe will be recalcuiated 10 dniermmo the exact 
amount then due a usmg the Rule of 78's method 11 the martmum ltnance charge ~ s r r r t t l e d  8s 

charged for this loan 

10  days alter 11 IS due equal to 5 .  OOO?.. 

9 . 4 5 0 %  
at matu"ty' 'nC1ud4ng matur'ty by Of 111'5 

0 usmg the proportional rate melhoa THE PURPOSE OF THIS LOAN I S .  B b Z m  : PURCiiPSE 1996 
No refund caiculated l o  be less than 5 1 OD will be made 

M FINANCE CHARGE . I agree to pay a minimum finance charge 01 

application o f  the 

YCOJiVIY 1 cITI!xwm, L.L.C.  
I P.O. m< 1309 Loan N u m b n r ~ ~ 3  0s f 71, , 

WCiT??f CITY, ET$ 42653 Date FEBRUARY 10, 1998 
Maturity Date m. 10, 2002 
Loan Amount $ 22,742.40 

e P.U. Box 160 
WHI"f a, KY 42653 

LENDER'S NAME AND ADDRESS 
'You' means the Lender. i l s  successors and assipns. 

la1 n7h8s  loan IS secured by dated 10, 1998 
Ibl =Security Aofeement . I give you a security m e r e s t  tn the PrnDerly dnscr8bed below The rlght 

agreement SecuIes are defined on page 2 of Ihis agreement 1996 m m  4 
61 In this ProDQfty and the obligations this 

i c 4 m 2 N x l z 0 8 5 9 9 1  

purposes. 

BORROWER'S NAME AN0 ADDRESS _. I includes *ach Borrower above. jointlv and sevnrally. 
TERMS FOLLOWING A 0 APPLY ONLY IF CHECKED 

RanewalO1 

SSN: 61-1305266 

YES. I want 
-, an tlemizaiton 

610 I do not want 

1 Nonliung Insurance 

e more than 10 days alter it 15 due equal to 5.0009bol 

o accoun mv renuarea oeoosit 

und of part 01 the linance charge Prspayment . If I pay o this note ear y 

INNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE FINANCE CHARGE 
The awla, nmnrnt !he 
cma~1 will cost me. 

The cost 01 mv crmht 
as. *..,I" 101.. 

I can see my c m l m ~ r  dasvmanli lor m v  IddNtond srtmhon aboul nonpwmml a d a ~ t 1 1  

CREDIT INSURANCE . Crednt 1hfe msutance and credir haallh 8nsiiranCe are no1 
reaumd 10 obtain credit. and wll nor be prowded unless I sign ana agree to pav 
thw addittonal costs. 

AhlOLiNT FINANCED , '.' TOTAL OF PAYMENTS I have the right to receive at !his 
.me amount I wdl haw nad when I I Amount Financed. 

Th9 ammnl 01 5 1 a d  
p ~ ~ ~ d ~  10 me or on IPY QenaU. . , ! hayo made all  =hldul*a oevmtni% time an itemiration 01 the 

Tvoe Premium Term 

. ~~ 

Credit Lile 

~ ipna:ure  BY: 

Ciedil Hoallh 

Joint Credit Lila 

I 0 do 0 do not want credit lile insurance. 

I 0 do 0 do not want credit health insurance. 

f 0 do 0 do not want joint credit l i f e  insurance. 

I 0 do 0 do not want 
X 009 

insurance. 

Y nnR 

. ~~ 

PROPERTY INSURANCE .I may obtain PIoDeny insurance liom anyone I wan1 that 

is acceptaole 10 you. If I get the insurance from or throuph you I .will pay 

S lor o f  coverage. 

SINGLE INTEREST INSURANCE . I may obtain single interest murance llom 

anyone I want that is acceptable 10 you. II  I get the mulance from of tnrough you 

I will pay 918.00 for 48 m. 01 coverage. 

~ ipna:ure  BY: 

PCIC .r*( ,*~.vmeni beiorn in, .cnuinn*l d m .  am n r e p ~ r n m  ..IU"~. .,,,I ornns~t,~. 

ITEMIZATION OF AMOUNT FINANCED 

AMOUNT GIVEN TO hlE DIRECTLY S 18,836.00 
r \ u o u N r  PAID ON MY ILOANI ACCOUNT 1 

m T D I D E z  S 16.00 

to Inswance Comoan.as S 18.00 
to Pubic Ol!cials 1 17.00 

AMCLhTS ?AI0 TO OWERS ON M Y  BEHALF 

9 

s 
0 

:less1 PREPAID FINANCE ChARGEfSI 8 16.00 

Amount Financed 5 18, 871.00 

IAdd all slams lmanced and subtract Diepad !tnance chaqes 1 

SIGNATURES . I AGREE TO THE TERMS SET OUT ON PAGE 1 AND 
PAGE 2 OF THIS AGREEMENT. I HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF THIS 
OOCUhlENT ON TODAY'S DATE. 

CI~~',",ti~jflI~ON PAGE 2 BEFORE SIGNING. 

PRECOMPUTED NOTE. DISCLOSURE. AND SECURITY AGREEMENT 
ul981. 1988 B a n k m  Svrtsmr. I%.. 51. Cloud. MN 11 .800 .3~7 .23~11  FOim NOS.PI.KY 31151113 

CONSUMER L O A N .  NOT FOR OPEN4NO CREDlT 
/Page f Of  21 



AOOITIONAL TE F THE SECURITY AGREEMENT ' 

SECURE0 OBLIGATIONS . Thi ritv agreemeni secures tnis loan linclu4inQ all 
l:A!:ns<(lni. reriewals. ielinanci Y and imodilicationsl and any other debt 1 have 
vl8tn you now or later. Propeftv described in tnls securtlv agreement will nor secure 
otriw w c n  debts 11 you 1.41 to give any lequired notice ot m e  right 01 rescission 
w!l? ~ e . ~ p c c i  IO rhb Proparty. Also. thts Ieculily agraernenl will not secule other 
u w t s  11 inti sdcv~tty #astomst is in tioustlhola goods ana the otner debt is a 
c u ~ s u r n e i  ! o m  lh4a S~CYIIIV agraenwit wail last until it Is alsChalQed in writing. 

For :no w i e  iu ious~l  0 1  datoimtnmg the aatent 0 1  a purchase money securitv 
~?tsrest srisirig uzddr Inas jecurlly agrdemant: 

f a ;  P3ymants on any I(onDuIcnas6 moiiev loan ais0 secured by this agreement will 
iiut 3e UebmsU to apvlv to the Pwchase Money Loan: and 

'bl Pdvrnsnts an !ne Purcnase Munay Loan will On aeemad 10 apply tirsl to the 
ttontmrcna~e money portion " 1  inn Iodn. 11 any. ana then to tne purcnese 
m o t w y  oblqailons 10 inl, ordei an wnicn tne items were aCQulIed. 
NU securtty lnteiust .NIII be terminated by application 01 tnls lormula. 'Purchase 

.'L>nev Lodn" roclans any loan ttie ufoceds 01 wntcn. In whole or In pan. are usod 
to acsusra any p,op(rtty securing tho loan ana all tmtenslons, renewals. 

. .  
((11 ?ne ~ropa;rv Is uomaged. destioveu or stotdn: 
in) I tad to VIO~NJW d u ~  *damondl ~~CUIIIV tnst Y O U  may reqwa: 
(11 Any layal antoty l:uch ah d oartnersliip 01 cofpolal~oIIt rnal n3s agreed to pay 

this now mstyas. dissolves. reorgamras. ends 11s Uusineis or e ~ ~ s t e n ~ e .  or a 
Partner or ilialoi8tv slocknoider dnas or 4s aecldrdu mcotnpstmt: of 

11) Anytniny dlse hapyens that causes you to Deloavd t n d  y w  wdI nava a8llicuIty 
cultecuny [ha atnount I owe you. 
I t  any 01 us are in default on this note or any security agreement. you rnay 

exefcise your remedies agamsr any nr all 01 us. 
REMEDIES . I1 I ani In detault on this loan 01 any agreement secdrinp tnis !oan. you 
may: 
la1 At!ef apolymg [ne febate described on Page I. make unpaid principal. interest 

(bt Wse tnd c q n t  01 se1.011 as erplatned betuw: 
151 Demand more secuiity or new parties Obhgalea !o pay this loan lor L3othl in 

w u w  lot not usmg a w  o t t w  rafnlady. 
Id1 :Adhe a CI.IIII 10, ally dn(l at1 mswance Denelits or relunds that may be 

avdllablo 011 I l ly  delauil: 
le1 Usa doiy iemauy you have under state 01 lederei law: and 
Ill use dny rv#nady g ~ v e o  to you 8" ally agreement securmg !his loan. 

9 y  c l loo~my any UIIM UI  nlolu 01 tnese 0)111edmeS you co ~ l u l  QIYC up your right 
to Y S d  anothw rttmddy later. By uec:Jlng not !o usa any fcmrdy should I bo in 
adault ,  YOU a0 not gwe up you, riyht to constau! tna avent a delauit il 11 nappdns 
arjalii 
COSTS OF COLLECTION AN0 ATTORNEYS' FEES . I aqfee to pay yourall 
reasunable costs you I I I ~ U I  tu cotldct tnis debt. or reahze on any seturi ty .  .hod 
mnc!ucds. ~ m l e s s  piohtbited by law. court cosis arld rnasollabie dttorneys' lees. I t .  
:Ius lobn is ~ i iaue  ur,dnr K e n t u c ~ y  Ptwtsud S t a t u r ~ s .  Cnapier 287, I ayrer to pay 
vuul lbasunablr attoi~levs'  lees 01 ut> !o 15rb 01 111e unoaid Datance 01 :nls note. 
as long d s  [ne attoinev I )  ,IO[ vow sa:med minmovdd. 

Tnos viowsoon 31ro shvil D D O ~ V  t l  I Ids a De1111011 or any othor claim lor relmf 

and all 011)(11 agreed CllarQtS I O W b  y U U  UndBf 1niS note 4nllIladlatUly dud: 

cansDIIdations and ralinancinqs 01 such loan. 
PROPERlv . ?ne word -Provurty,' as used nere. includes all propany that is listad 

0 1  ~ ~ ~ d t s  l iwn In- Proo*rtv. 
O'NNERSHIP AN0 DUTIES TOWARD PROPERTY . Unless a CO~Ow~rr r l~ l  01 the 
P.uvettv slgneu a tnvd party dgrerinant. I represent that t own ail m e  Propertv. I 
w8tt delenu tne Propeny againrt any otner claim. I agree to do whatever you 
iecu~rc to peftect your illtbt(tS1 and keep your priority. 1 wit1 not do anvlhing to 
nilmi your position. 

I ~ o l t  i(eev the Piopafty in my possession Iexcept it pledged and delivered 10 
youl. I wdl k e e p  4 1  in good repair avd use 11 only tor l is  intendud purpossr. I will 
keep  t t  a t  my addreas unless we agree o inerww in writing. 

I ,.wIl no: try tu sa11 or transfer the ProDellv. or permit the Property 10 become 
at!ached tu any real estate. wnnout your written consent. I will pay all tares and 
cnargas on thd Property a s  they become due. I will inform you 01 any loss or 
daonuglt to !ha Provwty. You nave the rtunt 01 reasonable access in order to 
imsoect tna P ~ O P W I V .  
INSURANCE . I agree to buy cnsurance on the Property again11 the risks and for the 
amounts you fequtre. i will name you as loss payee on any such policy. You may 
r e w i r e  a d d e d  securitv O n  this lodn il YOU agied that insurance proceeds may be 
usdo :o repair or replace tne Propeity. I agree that it m e  insurance proceeds do not 
cover ina amounts 1 still owe-you. I will pay tne dilterenca. 1 will buy the insurance 
trom a lirm autnoriioa io do.buamesr ;,I Kentucky. The lirm will be reasonably 
acctotablo to you. I will ke insurance until all debts secured by this 
agrarmenr ate paid. 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. I1 delauit. in addition to the remedies listed in 
tne note portion 01 tnir document. VOU may: 
tat Pay tares or otner charges. or purcnare any requlrad Insurance. 11 I lail to do 

!hdSe rniiigr lbut YOU awn01 required to do sot. You may l a d  the amount you 
pay to tnw loan and Kc rud  Intbrwt'on that amount at a fate equal lo the'rate 
sl>own IN the 'POST.MATURITY..IKIEREST' paragraph on paOe 1 until paid in 
lull 

(bl Requlre me 10 gather the Propefty and anyrelated records and make 11 available 
to YOU in I reaaonanle fasnton 

( C l  Taku lmmddldto pOSSd3rlOll 01 the PfOpdny, but In dolng SO you may 001 
bredL'i [ne pdacd or unlawlullv enter orno my premses You may sell. lease or 
C w o s d  01 tno Property as Prowdad by law You may apply what YOU ruce~vo 
troin the kale 01 me Propelly to your expenses and than to the debt I1 *mal 
IOU ILCUIW l r o w  tnd sate a1 m e  Proparty IS less man wnat I owe you. you may 
tddd me to couit tu rocovef the a#ttersnce 110 ins extent  permtlltd by law1 and 

Id1 Yevp tna oropeitv to >dtislv .ne debt 
I 3vae rhat whan you must ,jive notico to me of your mended sale or 

awoztt lon of the Propertv. the notice 8s reasonable 11 8 1  IS sent to ma at  mv last under dnv U d t I k I w l c y  rule of law ut 11te unltaa Stetdr, or 11 buch petitm 
:tau!- 'of  f c k l  I, '!tea ogwis t  #me by anolhur 
S2T-3FF 
note against dity right I nave to recetve money from you 

known sadrear 3v l i rs i  class mail 10 days belore the lnrandea sild or alsposition. I 
agree to inform YOU In wrttiiig 01 any chailge in my address. 
FlLlNG A copy 01 inis security agre8msr~t rnay bo used ds a Itnancing statement 

I agree tndt you may b e t  url any amourlt due and 

'R19nt to recewd nionev from YOU' medm 
la1 AwV ,Jepostr a x o u n i  balance I ?ave Wotn you. 
Ib l  Any money owed to me on ,an item prrsenied to YOU or tn your possess#on tor 

collection or exchange. ana 
(c l  Any (epurchase agreement or other nondeposir obllgarton 

'Any amount JL. an0 vavabl* ultddr ttus note timans the. toto1 amount 01 
Which you arb dnutted tu demand pavinoot under the tetuts 01 utts nut8 at !ne tune 
you >st 0 1 1  Tn!, totdl tncluGes any balance tho due Gate fur whtch you properly 
.cLLle,dle ""de, In,> 1IOttt 

I 1  m y  fiylit to ~ a c s i i e  nionev lroin you 6 also owred by someone who has not 
agreed to Day tnts w t e .  (our rnont ot sar.olt w~ll  apply to nry marest m the 
obligation and 10 any othel dinounts I could wtmdraw on p l y  sole request of 
a iworsmmt  Your rignt of set 011 (106s nor apply to art account or other obllgarion 
where my rights arise only in a reprwmiativo caodwy It also boas not apply io  
dnv Indlv#dudl Retirement Accounl or Oihw 1ax.amfarlad relttemenr account 

You wtll nut be lhdulo lor tna disnonor 01 any check w h e ~  rho dlrhonur occurs 
because you ret 011 this debt agamst any 01 m y  &counts I agree IO hold you 
namlass Iiom any such claims ainsmg as (I result ot Your exercise of your rqnt 0 1  
1"1.011 -. . . . .  . 
OTHER SECURITY . Any pfesent or Iu1uri:agroement 5ecuring:any other debt I 
owe YOU also will secure the payment O t  Khi6loen. Plopertv ddculing another de01 
WDII not socwe tms loan: : .  
I 1 8  II and IO [no ~ V I I I  SUCI, property $ 5  In nousenoid oooas; 
121 I1 such p ~ o p w t y  is m y  p~~r~copal  uwsll~ny and you luil to prowdo any fequiied 

notice ut right U I  tascissioii: afid 
13) 11 :ntb loan I S  made under Ktntuckv Revised Statutes. Chapter 287, and the 

secumy IS a liist l l rn or lirst inongage on real estata.  Howewer. thd proparty 
secuiiiiy anotnei debt wII apply to this loan 11 tne security 4s a first 1bn or torsi 
niortgaye on uninwiovea leal as13te not over 10 acres in size or I S  on real 
dstdte on wnicn mere is located or to be :ocated a residential mobile home. 

OBLIGATIONS INOEPENOENT . I understand I t a t  #t?y ohligsr8wi to pay inns loan is 
uodwdatent ut t ! ! ~  oblqdtwn 01 any utnar 1efson who has slso aprecd 10 pay it. 
You Inby. w~tnout  notice. release m e  or arty 01 us. $we up ai iy  rigltt yuu may have 
agatnst any 01 US. extend new credit to any 01 us. or mnew QC change tnls tlote 
una UI more tmgs and lor b , w  term. and I will )id1 bo uulig~tud tu pay tlvjs !uam 
' iuu n i q .  wy~~nout nottee. tall tu vefiect yuur Pecufity ~ u ~ t e ~ f i s t  m tunvdo,. or rekdse 
3iiv secuiity and I will st111 be  obhgated to pay tnls loan. 
WAIVER . I waive !to tne ftxteolt parmt tvd  by law1 detnand. presentment, protest. 
tnouce 01 amonof  and not~ce  u1 moterc. 

. .  . . .  

PRIVACY . I agree inat trom t i m i  to r i m  YOU may receive Crddit intormation about 
m e  l r w n  others. ~ncluding olh61 1d1,Jtrr alld credit rlro0,rmq agencias. I agree that 
you , t idy lurnirn on a rb~jular  baso crudit arid 2 x w P e w e  i idoiiiiatmi rrgardiiip riiy 
tuer tu otners sedkiny iuct i  ihlorination. To 111- estef i t  permitted by law. I agrtb 
thirt you will not bd Inable lor any claim a r l s q  from the use 0 1  mlormation 
vruviJed to yuu by others 01 lor DlOvidlny such ir~lormatton i u  oihers. 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . I wd1 y w a  you dnv ltnanctal s ta i ements  or intormation 
inat YOU tee1 is nocessaiy. All litlaticia1 statrlments and inlortintian I give you wall 
9- cotreci ana coinulete. 
PURCHASE MONEY LOAN . I t  tnns ts a Purcnase .Money Loan. you rnay include the 
name 01 tne seller on the check or drall lor :hm loan. 

- 
THIRD PARTY AGREEMENT 

For the purposes 01 the p ~ o v w o n s  wathln tnts enclosure. -1.. .me- or -my. 
meanb tne pdrson rigninp below m a  'YOU. means tne Lender Iaenllfled on 
page 1 

I agree to give YOU a security tnterosi In the Property tnai IS described on 
page I I AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS NOTE AND 
SECURITY AGREEMENT SET OUT ON PAGES 1 AND 2. but I am 
in no way oersonallv liable lor payment 01 the debt. mil means the1 if tne 
Borrowar aelaults. my 111turesI In the Properly may bo used to satisfy the 
Borrower's dcbl. I agree thai YOU may. without releasmp me or the Propmv 
trom [his Thrd Party Agreement and without notice or demand upon me). 
dxtmnd naw credit to any Borrower. renew or change thia note or security 
agrdement one of mote times ana lo( any term. or lait to perfect your secuiiiv 
interest in. impair. or release any SeCurilv lincludino Quarantier1 lor the 
obligations 01 ai!y Borrower. 

I HAVE RECEIVED A COMPLETED COPY OF THIS NOTE AND SECURITY 
AGREEMENT. 

NOTICE TO COSIGNER 
You (tho cosigner1 are being asked to guaranly this debt. Think carmfully 

belora you do. I1 the borrower dosan'l  pay tho debt. you will ham to. Be sur. 
you can ellord to pay i t  you have to. end the1 YOU want to rccapl this 
responsibiliry. 

You may h a v e  to pay up to the lull amounl of tho debt 11 the borrower does 
not p a y .  You also nlsy Iieve 10 pay lele 108s or CoIIeclion costs. whlch Increase 
this aiiiount. 

The cfeditor can coIIecI this debt lrom you wilhout first tqlng lo colleci 
trcni : t u  bofruwar. TI,& ~ r d d i i z r  con use thv m n e  c;oll6ction molhuds ageinst 
you that can be used again.1 the burrower. such a i  sulng you. garniihlng your 
wages. *IC. If tnt. debt IS w n r  iii ddauli. that lect mav bacom. pan 01 your 
credit record. 

This notice is not the Contract that makes you lieble for the debt. 

A!!ach FTC -Preservation ot Consumer Claims 
and Oelenses' N011ce il Applicable 



This TITLE LIEN STATEMENT Is presented to a filirg officer pursuant to KRS Chapter 186A. 

mm, - 1. Debtorl$) (Last L.L.C. Name First1 and addressies b b b i n g  2. Secured Pany and address Officer (Date, Time, Number and Filing Office) 

P . O .  BQX I309 P.O. BOX 160 
WITLEY CITY, KY 42653 

I 3. This Title Lien Statement covers the following: 

YEAR MODEL MAKE 
1996 ?wcIIIA 

IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

4"72"IZO85991 

I 
ADDITIONAL DESCRIPTION 

?IAoclMA 4wD PIcxlJp TRUCK 

IOatel (Signature of Debtor) IOataI (Signature 01 Oebtorl 

DEBTOR COPY 
Bankers Syrtsms. Inc.. St. C l d .  MN Form TLS-LAZ-KY 1211 5/93 

. . .  . .,. .. .... , .. . , - .. . . , . . . .  . *.': . . .  . . .  . . ;  


